STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17t, 2013 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AMENDED AGENDA
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER  CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for September 17, 2013
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 18, 2013

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

5. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 8/25/13 for $427,610.95 and
Accounts Payable date 09/04/13 for $15,000 and date 9/06/13 for $1,037,314.98

6. For possible action approval of Treasurer Report for August 2013

7. Yor possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:
a. ALIO MEDICAL - Home Business/21850 Asobe Rd, Reno (independent contractor, books only) VCH
b. SPRIMOG, INC. - Contractor/9965 Cincinnati Dayton Rd, West Chester, OH (install equip.)
¢. SIERRA HEARTH & HOME - Contractor/2350 South Carson St, Carson City {install fireplaces)

1




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

PAINTING RENO.COM - Coniractor/204 Ave de la D'Emerald (handyman) RB

WIDE OPEN EXCURSIONS - General/1777 Peru Drive (off-road tours and racing) TRI
HIGHLND PHOTOGRAPHY - Home Business/400 Panamint (photography - books only) VCH
CHEP USA - General/8517 South Park circle, Orlando, FL (pallet rental)

VISION DESIGN PAINTING - Contractor /11 Glen Carran Circle, Reno

RS

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION {No Action - No Public Comment): Committee /Staff Reports

DISCUSSION (No Action): Nevada Division of wildlife (NDOW) to give update on trapping
and hunting regulations as they pertain to Storey County code within the Virginia City
Highlands, Highlands Ranches and other congested areas,

DISCUSSION (No Action): Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) presentation on its
Regional Water System Report and the Bureau of Reclamation Plan of Study for the regional
water system.

DISCUSSION (No Action): Ed James, Director for the Carson Water Subconservancy District
(CWSD), to present the CWSD's Regional Flood Management Plan and Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) flood risk Map Charter applicable to counties located within the
Caron River Watershed.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve bid award for Siphon and Waterline Air Release
Valve Project

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Proposed Jail Fund Resolution to resolve issues and clarify
the maintenance and use of the Jail Fund; and to record such resolution with the Nevada
Department of Taxation.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Proposed changes to brothel license fees

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

15.

16.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Application for Final Map for Division into Large
Parcels-Merger and Re-Subdivision. By Storey County Properties, LLC/Harold R. Lucey.
(Lockwood)The proposal is to reconfigure and divide two existing parcels to create two
additional parcels. The new reconfigured parcels will be approximately 74, 187, 440, and 8,325
acres in area. The request will be accomplished through the Division into Large Parcels and
Merger and Re-Subdivision processes pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes. The subject
properties are located approximately at 3005 Canyon Way (APN 004-131-08 & 004-111-01), lying
within Portions of Sections 13,24,25 & 36, Township 19 North, Range 20 East, and Portions of
Sections 19,20,21,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34 & 35, Township 19 North, Range 21 East M.D.B.&M,
Lockwood, Storey County

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. KATHERYN E. HORNDAY - Massage Therapist/100 North E Street {Silverland) VC
b. DATA GRAPHICS - Home Business/2031 Saddleback Rd. (equipment storage only)

2




COMSTOCK CIVIL WAR RE-ENACTING - Nonprofit/ 1575 Plumas, Reno

CROAKERS PEST MANAGEMENT - 565 Sparks Blvd, Sparks (pest control)

PRAXAIR, INC. - 39 Old Ridgebury Road, Danbury, CT (lease equipment in TRI)
CHURCHILL MILLWRIGHT - Handyman/ 665 Joel Way, Fallon (maintenance/handyman)
AMPLUS, LLC ~ General /3033 Waltham Way (precious metals recovery) TRI

A B CUSTOM WOODWORKING ~ General/625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI

NEVADA DISTRIBUTION SERVICES, LLC - General/ 625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI
SCHWABE NORTH AMERICA, INC. - General/2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI  (distribution
center for dietary supplements)

TR @ e Ao

17. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
18. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

19. CORRESPONDENCE (No Action - No Public Comment)
a. Notice from waste Management expressing their wish to exercise their option to extend the
Solid Waste Franchise Agreement

20. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

¢ Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

o Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and US. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.} To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.




CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before September 11, 2013;
Virginia City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

1o/

Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasure

1004




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 17, 2013 Estimate of time required: 3 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for June 18, 2013

2. Recommended motion: Approval of minutes as submitted

3. Prepared by: Dore Nevin
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes from the June 18, 2013 Board of County Commissioners’ Meeting

3. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reﬁéwed :
epartment Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~reee

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 18TH, 2013 12:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Sjovangen, Vice-Chairman McBride, Commissioner Gilman, District
Attorney Maddox, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Dore Nevin, County Manager Pat Whitten,
Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Public Works
Director Mike Nevin, Administrative Office/Senior Planner Austin Osborne, Deputy Recorder
Roberta Martinoni, Government Affairs Director Greg “Bum” Hess, Community Chest Director
Shawn Griffin, Legislative Lobbyist Yvonne Murphy and Community Services Director Deny
Dotson.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 12:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 12:00 P.M. (Closed
meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220(4) for the purpose of conferring with the County’s
management regarding labor negotiations.)

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 2:01 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 18, 2013-
Chairman Sjovangen continued item #11 until July 2, 2013 meeting.

Mark Joseph Phillips brought to Commissioners attention that the May Treasurer’s report has
not been on the agenda this month. He explained that it is actually criminal that the May
Treasurers report would be needed for the augmentation of the budget today. There is no way
that the Commissioners can know where the funds are at right now. He told the Commissioners




it was their duty to make sure the County Treasurer submits her report for the month
proceeding,
Chairman Sjovangen asked Mr. Phillips what changed he would like for today’s Agenda.

Mr. Phillips said they should have put the Treasurer’s Report on the agenda.

Chairman Sjovangen again asked Mr. Phillips what changed he would like for today’s Agenda
and if he didn’t have any changes to please sit down.

He wanted the record to reflect that the Board of Commissioners have not approved the
treasurer’s report for the month of May and the next meeting will be after the fiscal year.

Chairman Sjovangen asked if there was anything else if not he was going to ask for a motion.

Motion: Approve the agenda for June 18, 2013 with continuation of item #11 to July 27¢ meeting,
Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
Dale Beach asked if he could speak on the Agenda.

Chairman Sjovangen said he was a little too late and to have a seat. Mr. Beach said he tried to sit
up there but he was told no. Mr. Beach said “No he wanted to talk that's what he is here for”.
Chairman Sjovangen said “No to have a seat.” Mr. Beach again said “NO” Chairman Sjovangen
said his options were to sit down and be quite, leave the room or he will be escorted out. Mr.
Beach said escort me out Chairman.

Chairman Sjovangen called for a recess at 2:05
Chairman Sjovangen called back to order at 2:06
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 2, 2013

Mark Joseph Phillips asked for the April 2, 2013 minutes to be on the agenda, he was assured
that he was the first one to ask for them but he waited weeks and months to have this put on the
agenda. He wanted to read a letter in to the record for today’s minutes:
Dear Chairman Sjovangen,
The Draft Minutes of the BOCC meeting 02 April 2013, fail to indicate that I was...willfully

disrupting the meeting to the entente that its orderly conduct (was) made impractical...and that I
was legally removed (NRS-241.030(5.)(B).

Instead I was wrongfully excluded from the remainder of the meeting, against my will. You had
been informed of my plans to give public comment, to items later on the Agenda.




Mr. Chairman, I was wrongfully excluded from the meeting because of the content of the public
comment, I had prepared to make. A criminal misdemeanor (NRS-241.040(2.).

Janet Houts thanked BOCC for letting her speak. She didn’t have a lot of time to review the
minutes because they were put out late on Friday and she was reviewing the Agendas. She
spoke on the comparisons between the Fire and Sheriffs that the budget was 2 million for the
sheriff and in the minutes it does not state anything at all. She would like the minutes corrected
on those basis..

Chairman Sjovangen told her to take up with the Clerk afterwards.

Motion: Approve the Minutes for April 2, 2013 Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an éxtensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 05/24/13 for $1,276.76, date
06/07/13 for $467,447.25 and Accounts Payable date 05/31/13 for $173,218.30

7. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:
a. Caldera Electric - Contractor/508 Jackson Way, Carson City
b. Kalen Johnson- General/1480 Grey Bluff Drive, Fernley
c. Cool Breeze Refrigeration & Heating - Contractor/275 Gallaway Lane, Reno

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve the Consent Agenda Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride
Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
8. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports-

Legislative Lobbyist Yvonne Murphy- She read a letter in to the record:
Good Afternoon, I am Yvonne Murphy

May I take this opportunity to thank the Commission and the citizens of Storey County for
allowing me to serve as your legislative lobbyist from January 2009 thru August 2012.

Over that period of time, I had the privilege and honor of working with devoted Storey County
employees; all of whom were exceptional in their duties.

3




Additionally, I was pleasantly surprised as I developed several friendships with both individuals
and families-giving me a much deeper insight and connection. This is something I will hold dear
for many years to come.

That said, during this past legislative session, though I no longer officially represent Storey
County, as a friend. I continued to monitor issues that could impact this unique and very special
community.

And, for the record, I report my observations to my client (and your Commissioner) Lance
Gilman.

In closing, as [ venture forward into my life and career, I look forward to teaching and attending
the John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University where I will study 21st
Century Public Policy.

To that end, I'd like to leave you with a quote from Albert Schweitzer (who said):

I don’t know what your destiny will be, but the one thing I do know is; the only one amongst you
who will be truly happy are those who have sought and found a way to serve.

Thank you,
Yvonne L. Murphy

Deputy Recorder Roberta Martinoni-

Talked on the legislative bill that passed regarding redaction, it gives counties more time to get
all personal information such as social security numbers redacted. She added that the Recorder’s
office is doing great, they are very pleased with Marney Hansen as the Recorder’s Office new
employee, business is picking up less defaults and more deeds coming through, an indicator our
economy is picking up. Chairman Sjovangen said he was glad that the redaction bill passed.

Community Services Director Deny Dotson-

He thanked the department heads and businesses that sent their employees on the FAM tour last
week they had 65 people for the tour. He spoke on 4th of July; lots of planned fireworks, parade,
Comstock Cowboys, Wine Walk, and a fast draw competition at the south end of town across
from the Fourth Ward School. Positive numbers for the month of March means they are doing a
decent job in town $10,000 bump from a year ago with room tax and sales tax.

Chairman Sjovangen says he likes these FAM tours it gives everyone a chance to see their county.
Administrative Office/Senior Planner Austin Osborne-

Appreciated the BOCC continuing Item #11 Comstock Chapter/ AFSCME Local Union contract.
They all agreed to look back over the contract one more time and fix all grammar. Also thanked

the union for being very cooperative and enjoyable to work with.

Austin has received nine applications for the planner job they are all well qualified.




He needs to do more research on planning in regards to SB374 which would amend NRS 453A
with medical marijuana dispensaries, it hasn't been approved by the Governor yet. They’ll be
things that the county will have leverage on regarding zoning and regulations. The bill allows
them in commercial zones. The way the bill reads Storey County would be able to have one
dispensary. He just wants to start planning for when it does come across his desk, because they
will need to update codes. He will update BOCC as soon as more information is available.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin-

Louise Peri Park improvements are almost completed they are waiting on NV Energy to make a
decision on the street light placement across from the park. He has been working with Austin
regarding a job description/announcement for a seasonal maintenance for that park in
Lockwood; he hopes to fill that position by first of July. He thanked Marilee and John Miller for
all they have done down there on a volunteer basis with opening and closing of the park gate
and keeping an eye on things down there,

Local pool opened for the season on June 8t, there were some broken plumbing problems that
got resolved but it is open. Handicap restroom and lift project are 99% completed. They had a
walk through on Friday. Cherie and Mike from Miles Construction are doing the final accounting
of the grant and match funds. There will be a determination on how much will be left for the
purchase of the portable lift which is a very important part of the project. The grant was
originally for $152,000.00 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding and we
provided a $20,000 match. The grant fund got cut by $20,000.00 so there wasn’t much left to work
with and that was a prevailing wage project.

Public Works has been involved with St. Mary’s Art Center; the board has asked Public Works
for assistance on some improvement to the driveway and parking lot. That project is about 75%
completed; they had to move on to the next project. (Due to flash flood)

On June 10% they were hit hard and heavy with some severe thunderstorms and flash floods
with damage they had not seen in recent years the main damage was to Six Mile drainage, TRI
(Portofino drainage area). He thanked Storey County Chief Gary Hames with his assistance in
providing help with the dozers and operators.

Chain link fence behind the Courthouse will be replaced with a new solid redwood fence next
month. State Office of Historic Preservation is providing grant funding. The reason for this is so
there is no view into the courtroom for security reasons. They allocated $15,000 towards the
project got a good quote from a Tahoe Fence in Moundhouse for $3,500.00. Cherie is working
with the company to use the remaining grant funding to start some work on the west wall to
make it safer. Mike added it is getting to the point of being unsafe.

Chairman Sjovangen asked Mike if the Highlands people have asked him about paving
Cartwright.

Mike has had some initial discussions about it with Pat Flanagan and Jim Stewart to see what
they want out there and what they will be able to do. He will sit down and have a meeting with
them before they develop a scope of work out there to see if they are in agreement to pay for
some of the materials that are going to be required. They are basically talking about approaches

5




on Delta and crack sealing and a sealant over the crack sealing. As long as nothing pops up he
hopes to get on it soon.

Merilee Miller Rainbow Bend-

Had pictures (pictures available in the Clerk’s office) of the dying grass and goat heads, she feels
there is not enough water pressure to water these areas. Mike feels that GID need to do
something about the pressure and he will talk to Doug and Steve about it also. John Miller
commended Mike Nevin and all his crews for making the park look like a park. It is being used
by several families.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher-

Internal Financial Statements ending in May 2013, these are unaudited but gives us an idea on
where we are as to the budget for all of our departments to make sure from now until the closing
which is in 12 days they don’t get surprised by anything and that they use diligence in there
expenditures and that all revenues get recorded properly. This statement for the end of May
reflects a couple of figures that are very positive in going forward. Our overall general budget is
about $900,000 more than we anticipated last year. He feels that is a very good number. Personal
property taxes and centrally assessed was about $214,000 over and above what we had budgeted
he feels that is a good number understanding the assessed evaluation, CAP values, he credited
Jana Seddon, Tobi Whitten and Vanessa DuFresne on getting numbers out before taxation is. The
number we had before taxation was only about $214,000 less what he came up with, they have a
lot more time and stuff to go over then we do. He feels those three ladies should be commended.
Merchandise licenses were up $9,000 from before which means something is going on, special
use permits are about $10,000 over and above what was budgeted, sales tax is up about $8,000,
Assessor fees was up $46,000 which was a very good surprise. This is an indication businesses
are starting to pick up. Ultilities fees are up. Vanessa has done a great job at trying to invest things
to get a bigger bank for a buck that was about $28,000-$29,000 over and above what we thought
we were going to get considering the interest rate. Penalties for personal and real property taxes
were about $98,000, which was a lot less than before which indicates people have enough money
to pay their taxes.

Vanessa and Hugh went to a GFOA conference in San Francisco; he talked about the courses they
attended 1) Office and Management of Budgets it was about federal grants and improper
payments 2) Lt. Governor of California Gavin Nelson spoke about wanting to get citizens
involved in the government. Hugh is going to do a power point on the current budget and the
process of the budget sometime in July with the members of the Highland, Mark Twain and
Rainbow Bend Lockwood. He hopes this will help everyone understand the budgeting process.
3) Course on audited financial statements trying to get the audited financials out and approved
by the county commissioner’s within 120 days, he said that is a real stretch but not impossible.
Trying to get all the revenue and expenses in before we close the book which is usually 60 days
he wants to try to do it in 45 days. He is going to try to do new things like PBC’s (Prepared By
Client) which take the accounts that are done by the outside auditor and do it internally which
saves money by not having to pay the auditor to do it.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro-




Spoke about sheriff’s office volunteer Chaplin Gary Bowers passing away last week, his services
will be on the 29t in Carson City he has been with the department since 2009 and he will be
missed.

He talked about the VCTC obtaining a liquor license, they have received the packet and the back
ground investigation has started, he feels the only way they can issue them a license because they
are not recognized as an independent entity or independent business the license would have to
be issued as part of Storey County so between now and it being put on the agenda he told the
Commissioner’s to really think about wanting to be in the alcohol business because if something
happens they will be responsible. The only other way would be if they were under their own
entity.

Fire Chief Gary Hames-

Pump testing has been completed for the type I & II apparatus, they all passed with a few
amendments to the gallons per minute ratings from the factory, they found they were rated at
1500 but they are passing test at a 1000 so they are declining,

They have completed county wide a sand table exercise for all county personnel, it was based on
a wild land fire in Gold Hill just above what used to be the Cabin in the Sky it ran into the old
tire from 1983, it was excellent training. This was the 6t year of doing one with wild fire, and he
is hoping to do one for an earthquake next year.

Fire restrictions going into effect today by BLM and NDF, they received notification of it late last
week, Storey County will be tagging on to it starting June 28t there will be a press release going
out in both papers.

Chief Hames thanked Mike Nevin for letting him use equipment for fuel reduction projects.

He will be getting a press release out regarding the U-Call/U-Haul program; anyone doing fuel
reduction can use the trailer to haul off the brush at any time. They will be purchasing a chipper
soon s0 he told the public to haul brush to Highlands Fire Department and Mark Twain and they
will be throwing it in to the chipper instead of burning it.

County Manager Pat Whitten-
Reminded everyone that there was only 12 days left to get your ambulance subscription in. He
added that CFOA is going on in Carson City this week.

District Attorney Bill Maddox- let everyone know they are shorthanded until January so please
be patient with them. He spoke about Judge Ed Reed who has passed away. He was a great
Nevadan.

. DISCUSSION (No Action): Greg Hess, Mary Walker and Maggie Lowther - Recap and

highlights of the recently concluded 2013 Legislative Session and Special Session.

Pat Whitten told BOCC that Maggie Lowther was at the CFOA conference.




10.

Mary Walker, with Walker & Associates and Storey County Lobbyist, explained the Legislative
Coalition which consists of four counties Storey County, Carson City, Douglas County and Lyon
County was started 14 years ago, Storey County being involved with it for 7 or 8 years. Basically,
when they go to the Legislature and testify on behalf of four counties instead of a single county,
Mary thanked Pat for being a strong information gatherer for them. She said they had a
wonderful team which consisted of Pat Whitten, Greg “Bum” Hess, Maggie Lowther, Chairman
Sjovangen, Hugh Gallagher she really appreciated all the cooperation they received. She stated
there were 1,123 bills this session and 404 bills they were monitoring. She feels this is the most
successful session in many years. Most of the bills they were supporting became law most of the
bills that were detrimental to us were either killed or amended. Some of the bills that they were
supporting she talked about AB68, SB3, SB452, SB272, AB511. They spent a lot of time in defense
on bills that would have been detrimental to us AB157, SB217, AB423, SB316, AB139, AB286 she
was happy with all the outcomes. She talked about the Governor’s budget and contrary to what
happened in 2011 a lot of cost shift down to us, this time around, because of request to the
Governor and Mike Wilden about getting some alleviation from the past push down to us in 2011
and for Storey County they got the assessments decreased by 7%. She spoke on the internal
session for the next 18 months those issues that were primary importance and are very
complicated issues they can’t be dealt with in a four month period, so now over the next 18
months the legislature is going to have a series of studies in regards to a verity of issues it’s going
to be on water, property tax, health care, funding of community college which is very important
one because they are trying to get the counties to pay for the community colleges and not the
state. She said it is very important to be involved the next 18 months, because she said the first
question at the 2015 is going to be where you were the past 18 month.

Mike Walker spoke on water resources SB400 with the mining coming back to Storey County it
will be valuable to our county. He also thanked the Storey County Staff for all their help.

Greg “Bum” Hess thanked Mary and Mike for all their help.
Pat Whitten commended them all on their hard work.
Chairman Sjovangen called a 10 minute recess at 3:14
Chairman Sjovangen called to order at 3:24

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification to existing license of VC

Sheriff Antinoro said only thing they are doing is adding an owner to existing license.
Motion: Approval of modification to existing license of VC Outlaws. Adding Marla J. McKechnie
as a primary owner. Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by

Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)




11.

12.

13,

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modifications and extension of the Agreement
between Storey County (Employer) and Storey County Employee’s Association (Union) also
referred to as AFSCME Local Union, Comstock Chapter.

Continued to July 2, 2013 meeting
DISCUSSTION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-373 setting salaries

Pat Whitten explained this happens at the end of June every year these set the salary grade
ranges for

Non-represented employees, it also acknowledges the NRS statues pay for the Assessor,
Recorder, Sheriff, Clerk/Treasurer, District Attorney, Commissioners. There is one elected office
plus a non-represented and that is the Justice of the Peace that you do have discretion authority
to set. From the original resolution that was provided in the packet there has been two notable
changes 1) After talking to the Sheriff there is no need for Court Bailiff or no need for Licutenant
2) IT Director.

Mr. Whitten read Resolution No. 13-373 into record:

A Resolution Setting Salaries of Elected County Officers and Employees fixed by Ordinance or
Resolution per NRS. 245.043 for Elected Officials and NRS 245.045 for Appointed Officials.

Effected July 1, 2013

Mark Phillips stated that per NRS Appointed Officials need to file financial statements he feels
Austin Osborn, Greg Hess and Joe Curtis should all be filing financial statements. Chairman
Sjovangen asked Mark what this had to do with this resolution.

Janet Houts wanted to know why the VCTC is on this resolution if they are their own entity.

Pat Whitten explained that even though the VCTC is its own separate local government, we have
been working with taxation, VCTC employees urider one or more Attorney General Opinion are
considered employees of Storey County. VCTC pays portions of the salary for Community
Services and Tourism Director, 100% of salary and benefits Tourism and Marketing Manager, but
under AG opinion still considered Storey County Employees. Commissioner’s still set their
salaries.

Chairman Sjovangen said it would be the same for Fire Chief too.

Motion: Approval of Resolution 13-373 setting salaries Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE NRS 473 STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD




14.

15.

16.

17.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-374 for the dissolution of NRS
NDE Fire Protection District. The new Wildland Fire Protection Program (WEPP) will replace the
need for the NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection District.

Mr. Whitten recognized Mike out in the audience. They have wanted to do this for a long time. It
is going to save a lot of money. Pat Thanked everyone that helped make this happen. He said it
will be in effect July1, 2013.

Janet Houts presented questions regarding the 473 and 474 and salaries. Mr. Whitten answered
her questions. Janet Houts thanked Mr. Whitten for answering her questions.

Motion: Approval of Resolution 13-374 for the dissolution of NRS NDF Fire Protection District.
Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approvai of Resolution 13-374 for the dissolution of NRS
NDF Fire Protection District. The new Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) will replace the
need for the NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection District.

Motion: Approval of Resolution 13-374 for the dissolution of NRS NDF Fire Protection District.
Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-376 augment the NRS 474
Storey County Fire Protection District Fund.

Pat Whitten spoke on the augmentation being an isolated fund like Chief Hames has with the 474
district being able to minimize the augmentation with flexibility with in the funds. But the Chief
operates a great Wildland Fire Protection Program of his own with the dozer operations and
those out of district assignments create a large fluctuation that trigger these kinds of
augmentations.

Hugh Gallagher spoke on the augmentation out of the 474 fire fund of $384,566; this is a result of
our Mutual Aid program which is a special revenue fund that they created in July 15t of this year.
Previously, they were putting it in the fire emergency fund because they needed to know what
was being paid and coming in at the end of incidents outside the county. So which means
everything in his budgeted items made a great amount of increase then normal so this
augmentation will take care of some of that, so anything that comes in with mutual aid fund will
go in to its own fund. He said that upon their approval they approve the $384,566, which is
higher than the anticipated to go against salary, wages, services, supplies and capital outlay as
they have on the resolution.

10




18.

Janet Houts had questions on the financials and performance. Mr. Gallagher answered her
questions these increase in this revenue go towards salaries in the amount of $67,000, which was
used for fires outside this county. They were billed for separately for this county. So there is an
increase of revenues from those fires that were outside this county that he Fire Chief had to
absorb with in his fire district. We are now taking revenues that are higher than we thought
because of those charges. Now they will budget for those items that were not previously
budgeted for in his original budget, because they did not know what kind of money the fires
would be, they didn’t want to anticipate that because they are a separate incident outside the
county. So they have done this for his salary, wages, services, supplies and capital outlay. This
will not be the case next year because they have a special fund for all those expenditures and
revenues for all the fires outside this county.

Mrs. Houts had more questions on sending employees outside this county and their salary. Her
and Mr. Gallagher continued their discussion regarding the salaries employees receive while on
assignment outside the county.

Motion: Approval of Resolution 13-376 augmentation of the NRS 474 Storey County Fire
Protection District Fund. Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by
Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of fuel bids for vehicle and propane.

Pat Whitten commended Jennifer McCain on her hard work on putting together these bids. He
explained they went out for a 3 year bid this year. They bid on regular unleaded, mid-grade
unleaded and diesel fuel. They opened bids last Thursday at 10:00 am it included, Jennifer
McCain, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Public Works Director Mike Nevin and himself and two
representatives from two of the bidding companies when they publicly opened the bids.
Presently we are getting fuel from Flyers. (Spread Sheets are available in Clerks Office). Carson
Valley Oil came in at $.08 a gallon at all locations except Lockwood. Flyers were asked if they
would be willing to just serve just Lockwood and they came back with $.12 a gallon. Mr. Whitten
asked the Commissioners when they award the fuel bids to Carson Valley Oil with exception to
Lockwood they include Flyers to do Lockwood.

Motion: Approval of acceptance of fuel bids to Flyers bid for Lockwood for vehicle gas and
diesel and award Carson Valley Oil for all other locations of fuel bids for vehicle. Action:
Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Mr. Whitten spoke on bids for propane we are currently with Ferrell gas at $.24 over RAC rate in
Sparks. This is for the County and School District, zero dollar tank rentals, zero fees for Haz-Mat
or surge charges. Our employees last year received a $.50 over RAC. Vice-Chairman asked that
they get a resident rate also during the bids (Spread sheet available in clerk’s office on different
bids). He asked that if they award Ferrell Gas the bid, that the residents contact them to get the
rate, He also explained that it might be the cheapest because everyone’s rates change so much.

11




19.

20.

21.

22,

Janet Houts asked if they will be sending notification out to all the residents.
Mr. Whitten said they will work on press release.

Pat Flanagan questioned the RAC rate, he said it changes a lot. How do we know they are
tulfilling the commitment over the RAC rate.

Jennifer said every time the propane RAC rate changes Jay e-mails her the changes.

Motion: Approval of acceptance of the propane bid to Ferrell Gas for a 3 year contract. Action:
Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 13-379 providing for an increase in
the water and sewer rates.

Mike Nevin gave a brief overview of an annual occurrence this happens at the second meeting in
June this is setting of the annual rates for the Storey County Water and Sewer System. The rates
increases are for residential base rate $4.11 for and $5.90 for commercial for water and for sewer
its $4.02 for residential and $7.09 for commercial.

Mr. Whitten stated that this should be the last year of the operational increases for the sewer, but
bottom line there will be more increases on the sewer on the debt service side of it.

Janet Houts had questions on increases. Mr. Nevin answered her questions.

Motion: Approval of resolution 13-379 providing for an increase in the water and sewer rates.
Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Renew, extend or allow to expire a lease on County owned
property known as the Gold Hill Depot between Storey County and Gold Hill Historical Society.

Chairman Sjovangen stated he received an e-mail from Kim Fegert wanting this item continued.
Request was denied.

Pat Whitten explained that the County has been leasing the Depot to Gold Hill Historical Society
they had a 20 year contract but renew it every 5 years last time it was renewed was August of
2008. Mr. Whitten's recommendation is not to renew the contract and he said they could extend it

12




until August 30, 2013 then ask the Gold hill Historical Society to vacate it and we need to do
exploratory talk with vested interest as well as the Gold Hill Historical Society and go out to bid
and have a RFQ that says what you would like to do. He gave several reasons why not to renew
the contract and reviewed several documents that are available in the Clerk’s Office.

Kim Fegert, Gold Hill Historical, handed out documentation to the Commissioners he started by
reading a letter dated 10-14-2011 from Stephen Drew:

Kim:

You beat me to an e-mail reply. A personal thank you to you and your Gold Hill Historical
Society cohorts for rolling out the red carpet and giving the V&TRR History Conference
attendees a rare behind-the-scenes look at significant restoration-in-progress! I trust you realize
you were amidst a most appreciative audience. Your opening presentation and openness to

Q & A were “spot-on.” You were articulate and capably “stand and delivery.” You very
eloquently make the case for what you did and why you did what you did. You are an excellent
spokesman for your organization. Hats off...congratulations...and our renewed thanks! The
Sunday field trip to Gold Hill was a highlight of our conference. And we've already booked the
Gold Dust West for the same weekend next year.

It was a pleasure working with you on our little booklet. I hope you like the way it comes out.
(Skipped down to end of letter)

Again, Kim, our profound thanks. It was a great pleasure to work with you on the booklet and
field trip. The interest of our members in the Gold Hill Depot is only increasing. We'll ook for
excuses to work together again in the future.

Kindest personal regards,
Stephen

Kim continued talking about the booklet regarding the improvements of the building. He went
on about the work they have been done and not haveing the support from the V& T manager for
the best 10 years. He feels it's a personal issue. He feels they have done the County well, When
they took the building over from the county it was worth firewood, now it’s worth over $350,000,
he has done it all on his own time he has made not one dime on it,

Chairman Sjovangen wants to give others a chance to talk on it.

Judy Cohen had some questions regarding why they are not renewing his lease when he has
done work on it.

Pat Whitten answered by saying they want to take a fresh approach at it. He said Mr. Maddox
said this is really a lousy lease with no milestone or benchmarks that would governor on a
county building. His recommendation is not to rush on redoing this lease, but to look and
reassess their options over the next 3-6 months. He would like to see what Kim and Tom Grey,
Jim Clark and others have to bring to revitalize it and make it the treasurer it can be.

13




Chairman Sjovangen added some personal observations over the past year, He sits on the V &T
Rail Commission he said at one of the meetings Mr. Fegert went on under public comment for 40
minutes berating Mr. Grey and insulted every one of them that sat on the Rail Commission. He
said it was an inexcusable act and the last meeting he did it insulted them again. He said we can
no longer operate the rail road under this behavior. His recommendation is its time to move on.
He told Mr. Fegert he has done an excellent job on the Depot, but his behavior has been
inexcusable for the past year. His opinion is he wants him out of there and out of the picture.

Mr. Whitten spoke on some remarks that are in the packet as public record that Mr. Fegert had
wrote to the Nevada Commission of Reconstruction of the V & T Railway on October 5, 2009
saying they planned on being open for business on the summer of 2010, being it is almost
summer of 2013 this is one reason he gave his recommendation about not renewing the contract,
because the progress of the building is just not happening in a timely manner.

Commissioner Gilman spoke on a personal observation the V & T Railroad and the expansion
and the opportunity of tourism and the entire project for Storey County and Virginia City is a
critical one and he feels it is a very important one their personal group including himself have
sent funds approaching $15,000.00 to the V & T Rail road fund. They are committed to excellence
and professionalism of the operation. He does support a professional and successful operation.
One of the outcomes he had heard that was appealing to him was to step back and re-evaluate
and request proposals from a variety of individuals and keeping with a bidding process. He feels
with Kim's experience would definitely be qualified to submit his vision of plans to the
commission. He feels not renewing his lease but take a fresh look at it and consider him a
qualified entity to resubmit to the community.

Kim Fegert spoke about the comments on the obscene gestures, at that time he addressed that he
asked if there was any possible truth to this, because it would be insane of them to act in such a
childless manner, He said no one in their organization has ever done such a thing. He said he
put out an award of $250.00 for anyone that could provide evidence of this. He spoke on his
relationship with Mr. Grey tried to bury his letters that he wrote to support the Depot. (Available
in packet) he went on to tell about all the improvements in and around the depot that they have
done that would benefit the community. He is frustrated because he has pictures of the depot
back in 1983 he can testify that it was nearly ready to fall down and now it’s a fine structure now.
Quite a bit of his own funding came through the State of Nevada through the Cultural Affairs
Commission for which he has signed covenants that make him responsible to keep it up and
that’s what they have done.

Chairman Sjovangen said he was going to cut him off because he was drifting off of the
conversation.

Mr. Whitten spoke on the gestures. He received a letter from Mr. Grey that Everett Schropshire’s
son was here visiting and he is a rail fan. He saw the locomotive at the Gold Hill, he stopped and
got out and ask three men standing there if he could take some pictures, one of them was an
engineer said to him could he not read the NO Trespassing signs and he could take pictures from
the county road.

14




Mr. Fegert replied to that letter and has a copy of the letter he wrote you, Mr. Whitten stated that
he has not seen that letter.

Chairman Sjovagen called for a motion being that there was no further comment. Vice-Chairman
McBride said there is no doubt about the work that has been done, however based on the
correspondence testimony heard today and conversation had with rail members he moved to
allow the lease to expire. Commissioner Gilman added that he encourages Mr. Fegert to be
involved in the future of the depot and to continue to work with the County.

Motion: Allow the lease to expire on August 30, 2013 Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
Chairman Sjovangen told him that he needs to get all personal items out by August 30, 2013; any

large items need to be inventoried. In case things that were donated need to be accounted for. He
wants him to provide Deny Dotson with keys,

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

23.

24.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance 13-248, an ordinance
amending Storey County Code Chapter 15.20 Flood Damage Protection updating provisions,
providing for new definitions, requiring maintenance in watercourses, and providing for other
properly related matters.

Robert Morris explained the ordinance being amending (a full copy of the ordinance is available
in the Clerks Office.)

Gunther wants to know if this is in regards to the meeting they had on May 16%. Bob said no this
is separate.

Motion: Accepting Second reading of Ordinance 13-248, an ordinance amending Storey County
Code Chapter 1520 Flood Damage Protection updating provisions, providing for new
definitions, requiring maintenance in watercourses, and providing for other properly related
matters.

Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
Austin asked that B, E, F, G, H, I, ] & K be Continued and A,C & D be approved.

Queen of Spades - General/11 North C Street, VC

Virginia City Mining Company - General/171 South C Street, VC

Commercial Restroom Solutions, LLC ~ 1379 Waterloo Lane, Gardnerville
Bulette’s Restaurant & Saloon - General /5 North C Street, VC

Nevada Distribution Services, LLC ~ General/625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI

15

o oo o




f. Schwabe North America, Inc.- General/2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI

g. Mars Petcare US - General/725 Waltham Way TRI

h. Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot ~ General/188 South C Street VC

1. Hot Pot, LLC - General /420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI

J-  American Arms Delta - General /224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B TRI
k. Battle Born Munitions, Inc. - General/625 Waltham Way TRI

Motion: Approval of A, C & D with continuations of B, E, F, G, H, 1, ] & K Action: Approve
Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
25, PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Mark Phillips spoke on Item #25 being moved that it is perfectly legal to switch it.

Chairman Sjovangen said it did help a lot it got rid of Dale Beach and it will help when there is a lot
of speakers they don't have to wait for all the public comments.

Mr. Phillips readdressed his concerns over the treasurer report not being on agenda.

Janet Houts spoke with concerns on the public comment and commissioners not respecting them DA
has told them to respect the commissioners and they will respect them. She also spoke regarding not
letting Dale Beach speak regarding Public Comment. She also spoke on package not being out on
time for the residents to review it; they don’t have time to have be able to get questions answered by
commissioners.

Mr. Whitten explained that the package is posted that is when the Commissioners get the packet to.
The agenda is always posted on time. He explained the agenda and package process. Janet Houts
said the NRS is 5 business days to get packet out. Mr. Whitten disagreed and wants a NRS stating
that.

Gunther Prosser commented that we need to fix the Notice on the Agenda to fix Public Comment
being at the end of the meeting. He continued about the Louise Peri Park that it is looking better but
needs a lot of work. Mr. Whitten commented that they are hiring someone to take care of the park.
26. BOARD COMMENT
Bill Maddox thanked Bob Morris for all his work and being left until the end of the meeting.

27. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at the call of the Chair at 5:20 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

By %ﬂl A~
Dore Nevin, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer

16




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 17, 2013 Estimate of time required: 0

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 8/25/13 for $427,610.95 and Accounts
Payable date 09/04/13 for $15,000 and date 9/06/13 for $1,037,314.98

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006
4. Staff summary: Please find attached the payroll summary and accounts payable listing for the
dates referenced above.

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

' thy Manager Other agency review: _

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—t

Agenda Item No. )




AMVNIWI TG

S

8

abed

L

9

S

1

FEANSTIAL

rgdnoxs [roxded

HATTOLLANCD
HINOISSIHWCD HENQISS IHHOD NYWEIYHD
PSAJUCTESTUWOD IO paeod AJUNo) Asicng oyl AQ panoxddy
S6'0T9 LEY IPREANASTT TRAOL
SE'089°6 iIojonpad 03 I935URLY, I9S0 TEI0L
8 98T'¢C taTTd dad A1g uc PITASISURAL SuoTIonpad sedoTdum (e23or
S6°€E€T'55¢ tareodag joeata ssdordug Telol
86°829'¢ reyooay) ssfordwd Tel0l
£2°080°08 I S¥OOYD Xo3Pnpag TRIOL
£9°008'99 i§d1Jd 103 ISISURI], Iag TeIOL
unowy asdied # Paq
/& dwg
TI/SE/80 i23eq pus-porzed £T/0£/80 232q Yo3UD aernbey :adir Troxled

asgseThey yoauyd
NILSAE TIOMAYS ALNAOD AFIOLS

8ZIERIVT ET/B
w0t

¥ aq
/AoayD

z/80
50494




YENOTSETWWNOD

JL¥d NOTL¥ZTYOHLOV ANV MIIAHY

00°000°ST
£T/%0/6 00 000°ST
O¥Y TAWY.> HSVD ALIEd
NOILdIdo53d #ADIOANI ZLYA TYLOL

ADEHD  DEHD

HALSIDHE SADEHD

abeg ALNDOD

0 INZWEZDUAEIMONADY

TYLOL SADEHD OEdRL

204 815994
00°000'ST 1002 fat4
LHNOWY EWYN OUNIA #TUODEY  ¥VHA  WIEWNN
TYDEIA NOFHD
CAAL £1/50/60 ! @3eg uny
AT¥OLS 06ETH {oN Jaodey




T

00°0T8'1

(A4
00°'0S5L
8% ETE
66’6

L9 Tig

8P 91T

TYLOL
ADEHD

afieg

TE°L
28T
ZL'8%2
¥e 18
gT'%E
SE' ¥
86°66
¥T'E9
Qo' 0LY
00° 562
00° 562
00 0oLy
00°S562
98" €TL
SZ°LE
60° 00z
LY 6ED
90 TOT
§1°'58¢
40 00T
0t'et
T4 48T
00'08L
L4 4
86° 74
6Z°65L
08681
00001
09° 69
v9T6TE
05" €¥%S
ST°E9
5%°82
LT 912
[4: R+
S¥°08%

Q0 0%
00°0LL

Zv be
00'0SL
8b'E€1E
66'6

LI TEE
20" 0%
90°0%
89°8

EP° 0T
SZ'LT

- LNOCHY

»0v99
ggeESe
£TEI9
E2E99
9Z2%99
92%99
929399
9299
81%99
8T¥99
BI¥99
8T¥oo
81%59
4400
ETESS
EZESS
E2E9S
£ZE99
EZTE99
£2€99
£ZE99
£2g99
S2¥99
SZv99
SZv99
£Z£99
£2€99
ELEDY
ETEDY
£2€99
£2E99
ggege
ETESS
€2£99
£2E99
£2€92

£PE99
£re99

£E2Y99
6EE39
T¥F93
0€€99
LLE93
99¢£99
99¢g99
TTL99

[A4 1]
[44%-1]

HONTHL

£ET/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£€1/90/86
£T/90/6
£1/90/6
ET/90/6
£T/90/%
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/50/6
£1/50/6
£1/90/6
E1/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/8

£€1/90/6 .

£1/90/6
€T/90/8
£1/90/6
£T/90/86
£1/90/8
ET/90/6
£T/90/6
£I/90/6
£1/%0/8
£1/50/6
£1/20/6
£1/90/6
€T/90/6
£ET1/90/6
£E1/90/6
£1/90/8
£€T/90/6
£1/90/6
£T/90/8

£T/90/86

£€1/80/8

ET/90/8
£1/90/86
£€1/920/8
£€1/90/6
£T/90/6
£1/90/6
£T/80/6
E1/80/6

£1/90/6
ET/90/6

TLYA

Ha=

Hax

TILOW AUIL HONWY HLINS
1808 FYIJ HONYY HLIWS
00STH AZHD 1002 SEY
od AW OL OB

WYIS XE14 “WIY 'QuEv0sxovd
0 ¥IA0S UYWA'T ‘ATYA TTI¥EId
21/6-017/6 EONIUTINOD
21/6-01T/6 HEONENTINOD
TI/6-01/6 TINIUHINOD
2I/6-01/6 AONIIFANOD
ZT1/6-01/6 FINIIAANOD
€T0Z ODWN

TYEN XETAHOD AGNSIHM
TANI XETIWCD ASMSIHM
TaNd TYIL MYED ONIU4S
THNA XATANOD AENSTIHM
TANE XATAWOD AENSIHM
TANE XETAWOD AEMSTHM
TYEN XETIWOD ATASIHM
TENS E¥II AYAd HNINAS
AZLENH -DIYLYWZYH
ADMENE AN OL fIWW
D4ET -SEOATAIUYD MNT
TENd F¥IJ NOSIE

TING HYIA AD0W QI
TaNg F¥Id Mo0d aEy
TANd @EId NOSIE

LNYd WHOJINA XFHON
TIAVYEL

TaNd B¥IE 210429007
dIVAEY Y0cd FOHVAVD
TaNd FRIL EFIOAIDACT
TI0E AUIL FTO4ESACT
YIVdTE MYSNIYHD

ETGZ '8E-S1 ISno0vY
SHINIINS R4

TYAILSRL 3IS0H ¥NYOIUAWY
EONYENSHI SHEMILEY Ld43s
TIEEEQTOTH IDOW

»I02 1sSOPOY - ILdES
A¥ANOY'T dOHS

AYJNAYT 40HS

AUANAY'T ¥4 LS

AYANNYT 2L IS
AYQNOVYT TL IS

HOILLII¥WDSEA EDIOANI

£1/90/6 YALSIOTA NDIAHD

ALNOOD ATHOLS

voLE# YOLYHWY 4O ANVE

HNS ADNYN ‘dANYE
AQNEN ‘Snovd

ONI ANYAWOD IZLY

d¥0D SNI H2TT SYITEEWY
d7 HNYAOMd SYDINEWY

CdWOD 0 ALIIDOS NVOINIWY

ONI COSIV
FOAMAA

£1/50/60
STETEd

LESOL

92594
SZS9L
bZS9L
€2894
22934

TES9L

QZs9L

HELHON

ADEHD
roeYeq uny
o 3zeday




4

56°'€5T

00 5L¢
00°000°2
00 €81

00-8v€'T

PE 98T T

TYLOL
¥23HD

abeg

ST"LE
€09
c0'¥
08y

S6'€5T

Q0" 2¢g
00" €pg

00 Qoo’e
00" €81

00°¢L9
00 €LY

00'052
&0’

00 gg
SE' %26
BP'6L
Ly'o09¢g
0L'8g
PSS EZ
60°POE
€ LE
61°E
¥Z E6Z
94 €T
6T HTOT
v LY
0962
107002
057997
¥e' Py
ogrgs
LE'ECT
Z0 WL
ST°'8
069711
9T'6%
0o et
0% 62t
PET VY
LE'TS
Te %9
00 2¢€T
€L°LOT
20 LE
$9°6
00°Te
LT L¥E
S2'ET
T6 €T
BE'FET

INOOHY

89€99
BBESS
89€99
89€99

8LES9

TreE99
PPeog

SEEII
PLEDS

LEFS9
LZY99

sTEes
§TE93
ZTb99
21999
t0%99
98€99
£2€99
£ZL99
£ZED9
£ZE99
£2€59
£ZEDS
EZESS
£2£99
£z€99
T6€99
£2E99
£2¢£99
£rERy
£ZESS
£ZE9
£zE9s
£2€99
t2ESS
£2£99
£z£99
£2€99
£€CESS
£TESS
£2£99
£2£99
£2¢99
£ZEY9
£2£99
£z£99
£2L99
BTbOS
§TP29
8T%99

#SNIL

ET/90/5
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/6

£T/90/6

ET/90/6
ET1/90/6

£1/90/6
£ET/90/6

£1/90/8
ET/30/6

ET/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
€1/90/8
£T/90/8
ET/90/8
£T/90/8
£1/90/6
£1/%0/6
£1/350/6
£1/90/6
£T/90/6
£1/90/86
€1/90/8
e€T/90/¢é
£T/90/8
ET/90/6
ET/80/6
£T1/90/6
£ET/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/8
£1/90/8
£1/80/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/8
£T/90/6
£T/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/€6
£1/90/8
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
ET/90/56
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/6

e da)

ET/90/6

# 0/d

HELTIL WONLLVId-PL0 2814
YIAOD IAN TITHM-ZL0 AT
YEAOD ION TEEMM -€L0 EUII

PId M¥dS-ZTLN FUTL

NS HTTO0L

ET0Z '8Z-ST lsnony
BEQTOHXUOT

WESSY WCOH X3'Td % oin

ANCWATY HISSEA/IN0L ENIN
S5659 WHHDONOA AT¥d LUOHS
INSWESWTddE A¥ELIVE Sdn
AHDYLS HOLINOH

Ha®

HaE

TENd HYId HEIIRE

VAW FEId WETIOG

1204 F¥I4 HITLIOG

IYAR F¥Id YITLAS

LIY E5n4 RANIM ©Ig

TENd FUI4 AANIM 9Id
TYEX Z¥Id AANIM SI8
TANZ H¥IA KQNIM SIg
TYEW H¥I4 ACQNIM SIE

Had

1804 FET4 EI04IDA0T
TaNd HYIA FTTOZADGOT
TEOI XETIWCD FAISHAATA
1804 XTTIWOD AZASTHM
104 XFTAW0D AENSIHM
TE0L XATIWOD AENSIHM
TYEW F¥I4 OML ANIL

TING EYIL OML ANIL

IE0d XNTAW0D AZMSIHM
TYEW FNIJ OMIL ANIL
HONUNELNIVW 84-0 % §4-G
TENI XETAWCD FAISYIATYH
1ENA FRId OML ANIL

THOS XATIWOD AENSIHM
TALOW XATAWOD AEASIHM
TaNd NEIIWOD AANSIHM
TENd XETINOD TAISUAAIN
IYEW F¥Id OML ANIL

TI0L A¥LL OML ANIL
TILOW ZdL4 OML ANIL
IJUO0A MBYI ANYT OQ¥N
qASENEWERE E8 OL

H0¥0Z MEWI ONYT 0DWN

NOILATYISHET IDLOANI

HELSIDAY MDITHD
ALNNOD ATHOLS

5I¥¥d OLOY ALID TYLIAWD

ONI FdId S NOLENE

SIMET LLODE 'TIEddng
WYGY 'Jaa10HME0g

SASIULYRLNT AduEa

OL¥W TYISUANWOD ¥Iawuag

HOaNIA

ET/S0/60
cTETEE

£€S9L

ZE89L

TES9L
0ES9L

6259L

geaoL

HIEHWIN

ADEHD
! 93eg uny
toN aaodsy




AMOL TNYWIIIUA TSSSL

§z'zve’t BL PET'T SLESS £1/90/6 : TISHIA ¥ JYEIND DFA-AMAT
D8 LOT LTESS £1/90/6 TYETTH LIo0W
DT ADWENT SUIATI 0549¢L
LY 1§ RE-TA 4 Z¥E99 £1/90/8
£0°06 ZpE99 £1/90/6
25°18 ZpE99 €1/30/6 €ET/62/L
-1€° g8 ZPESY £1/90/6
-10"5¢ 2vE99 £1/50/8
03 SO¥E dEWMYS 6%¥59L
05" LS 0S'LY ELESS £€T/90/6 YOLJENNOD ‘ENCJIIS IINY
SLoONaO¥d NOILYOIMNI ONIME 87g9L
00°0ZE vo'gee 0EF99 £1/90/6 ALNd ZMOL SAVQ 8
¥ SYISN0d ' AIWTE LPSIL
£1° 909 ~00°00¢€ ZLEDD £1/90/6 : OHD HYOD-ZLY FUIS
£1°908 ZLESY £1/80/6 HOIOTD NYJ-TH YIS
ONI 'THSHIQ DIWYNAQ 9%GoL
oL'62T’E 0L 62T'¢ £££99 £1/90/6 HYII XTTAWOD ATASIHM
T NOSIYD 'ENWHa SPS9L
00 00E 00 00¢ C9E99 £1/30/6 HOL'HOTEM
H2I440 JAI¥EHS 0O Sv¥Ionca YYSYL
00'0zE 0¢roee 62599 £1/90/6 ALOG A¥OL SAVQ §
AYD IHLIWY 'O74Y¥D TdC £¥49L
00°Z6T 00°'261 9%€99 £T/90/6 €102 ‘8Z-ST 1l$NoOny
¥ OIAYLIOO 'YLSHUD Zh§oL
00TO0FT'Y 00°0%T'T T9£99 £1/90/6 £102 '8¢ LSNONY-T AIOL
11 SOIANLS EIACOW HDCLSWOD T%§9L
00’ €8T 00°9LT SPE99 £1/90/6 ET02 ‘B82-§T 1snony
00" ¢ SPE9S £1/90/6
D77 TIIW dT09 ADOLSHOD 0F59L
LS 9T¥'S L9'91%’s z6€%9 £T/90/6 SHILTIAILOY HIACK
ONI LSEHD ALINDWHOD 6ES9L
00'521 : 00 SL vZE99 £1/90/6 TOYLNOD 189d St 1S
' 0008 YZE99 £T/90/6 : TCYINOD 1SEd 2L LS
TOMINOD LS3& MUYID BESOL
00°005'2 00'005'2 0g¥99 €T/920/6 H3&aL NOSTI#M
HEENSYAYL NOSUYD 40 ALID LESHL
L' 862 ZL'aLe 50%99 £T/90/6 SAYI I +NHOL ' INIW-Z90E9ZELL
zo-oe 50%99 £1/90/6 INYTd-ZTEP9ZELY
dIHSYANIYYd QDIIHD 9E59L
6T SEE’R EF'THE‘E 59£99 £€1/90/86 TESHEIT ¥ QHAYETING SEY Md
T9'LEL £9€99 £1/90/6 ATNG TESHIC d¥IA HDA
ET'CLT E9€99 £1/90/8 AING TESHIA F¥Id IW
69°9LL 69t93 £1/90/5 TISEIA % QYATIND OF8 Md
£F'L8Z'¢E 69£399 £T/90/6 TISEIC 3 QV¥IATINAO DIN Md
ONI 0D "IO AZTIV¥A NOSHYD S£59L
85'LL 18t L9ESY £1/90/6 AN ASY v -AUL dWNa
PV 6§ L9go9 £1/90/6 anlsS-TTE9S 0OF
ONI Quod TYLId¥D FESDL
6F' €25 86 €€ BIESS  £1/90/6 FZHEAHATINGY- 8L d FdI4
LY %0t §3£99 £1/90/6 I8 1I0°14ANg ‘¥IY-1D01s
96 ' &S 89€99 €1/90/86 TIOUYESNAS LD T-8id T¥I4
¥TLS 89¢€99 £1/90/8 LI WONIIYIE 4L¢-84d H¥ta
66'22 89€99 £€T/90/8 JMDVTE ENODITIS-ADOLE
Lts'g 89£99 €T/90/6 TYHE ‘HIYL JETE dOHS
8T*'SPT 89£99 £1/30/6 ANITEVE AYMS-PL O H¥IJ
TYL0L LNOOWY #SNYHL grva ¥ 0/a NOILAI¥DSEq FDIOANT HOANIA VIEHNN
ADIHD JMDEHD
€1/90/6 WILSISEE MDEHD £T/5C/60 ! 238@ uny

£ abeq ALNOCD AEEOLE STETEd ‘oN 3Ixodsy




00°008°1T £6E£99 £T/90/6 q234
LEUYOUVH 'YEHLMOT 9959 L

£6°£55'¢ 00°005'T 09goo £1/90/6 HANIVIHY YAaWdldds
£6'€40°Z 09ESS £1/90/6 SESNIIXY LSEd UNYIIHEWY
377 SINEAZE 079 aIndIt 59594
08'LZ LT'6¢ S6€99 £T/90/6 YIWWIAS ' INIOVHY
00'LT S6£99 £1/90/6 POOO-TLH0Y INEOTHY
-L%°8g S6£99 ET/50/6
ONI HJdES0L ZE7 EEET
a6 000’y 00' 000’y 8ZE99 £1/90/6 add LNVEO HIIVS
SNOS ® SIL¥AD N 1 £959L
00°ZL5°1 60 €€ 9%€99 £T/90/5
00°TZS'T 8¥£99 £T/90/6 ET0Z '82-ST 1SNONY
00871 8¥E9Y £1/90/8
I¥HD 3 EJOTANAL ' MATHORIN ZHE9L
g9'289 89259 06€£58 £T/90/6 LI¥ HSnua
. TYLNIWNOYIANE OMD 19594
9" 5z (-2 4-4 T0%92 £1/90/8 TYES -H¥L ININE
-26'46 16%98 £T/90/8 TISETEANT ~EQUD PLIH HNIJ
69 LT §8£99 £1/%0/6 MOOH JOOH NMOQEIL
077 adp 0989L
TL'LS9'T 2L YT ETY99 €1/90/6 FOIL40 DEY WANOL &H
T2 9€8 6LESS £€T/90/6 ALISEAM ¥O4 0IANLS
8L 9LS 6LEYY £1/90/86 BLISHAM ¥Od dOHSOLOA
JTT EDUNOS TLII 69894
00°8ST 00°6L 60799 £1/90/8 LEANMEINI ZL84
00°6L 60799 £1/50/6 LANYELNI 2.843
ONI ANVEAYOUH LOdS LOH BSS9L
BY'52Z0'T 0L 92 LBESS £1/90/6 aNYSYIITIS
LE % LBESI £1/90/6 ONIZ TY¥LIEW 1EZZHS
PLUECT L8€99 £1/90/6 ¥I4 ON0G-SYHAEZ
LZ' 6L LBE9S  £1/90/8 DNITEN0D ‘¥ATDINIYAS AOIOY
69°'671 LBESS ET1/56G/6 HTONYH ‘HSYE WYOod
BT' &S LBESS £1/90/6 HEONAIZA EWOH OHLHO
$9'2Z¥I LBESS £1/90/6 "ALS EDIMAL ‘DISYS WHEHM
8L 0 LBE9D £1/%0/6 ‘daviE 1nd TYLEW
0011 L8€99 £1/50/6 FIYNIWYT IHM AISOWd OdWAl,
10 0% LBESY £T/90/8 INE $50T9 HONON 'OMINSYK
69°621 LBE9Y £1/20/6 ' YIWI¥d 'STIVN FWYdd :
LB 18 LBESY E1/30/6 THIM HIL 'ANYE NOISNAL
TP 9T LBETS £1/90/6 YIS SNINNYd
gzrete L8E99 £1/90/6 HINT ¥
£2'TL L8E99 £1/90/6 SME¥DS ‘LINANOGD '0% HOS
ADTAYES LIAHAD 10430 FWOH LEGSL
05902 00" PT LYE9S E1/90/6
05°26T LYESS £1/90/6 €10z 'gZ-ST isnany
OHDS QUYM HI¥NCOA JTHOLSTH 95594
00'00T 0000t £TE99 £1/90/86 £T0Z/%2/8 NOILYAMHASHYE
ONI S8ETIUIM SANWIHOIH S569L
00'08s 00°08% FEEY9 £T/90/6
A¥YD ' ONOTINZIYO FES9L
00008 00°'00S 01%98 £T/90/6 aNod ¥EMOL avnd
. . JTT YEHOL TYEOTD £5594
00'052 so-ose 08£99 £T/90/6
LINSNOS ADOTOHEINACILEYD ZS85L
09192 09°192 0vES9 £€T/20/6 QOONAT-NIAUYD ALINAWNKOD
THLOL LNOOWY #ENYTEL FIYa # o/a NOLIGINOSEA HOTIOANI YOANEA YIERAN
ADEHD ADTHD
ET/90/6 MILSIOA® HOIHD ET/50/60 ! ®3eQ uny
¥ sbeg ALNOCD ATHOLS STETHA ‘oN 3xcdey




1

97°289
0s ot

[t A
E6'2CT

00 8Ly

81'2L

00°' G09S

£ 0LL’T

05" ¥LB

ZE'ELO'T

Q0'sg1
00°'521
91" ¥8
T9' 06

09° 92T

00°02E

0006

00'00S'T
TYLOL
AJEHD

abrg

00 FLD
971289
05° 07

00 28T
£6°' 921

Q0" EFT
00’498
00052

66°6D
0S'T1T
69'0T

0o 009

98 '¥6b
8¥'Ze9
S0°§PP
€1°84T
28°67T

-05°965'¢
00 tLy'e

86 CLT
¥8'9

[4: -]
Sg gL
ST

87 °'52
T67E£0T
0£"68
E8°O0LS

00 seT
00§21
9T %8
19706

95' 08
P0° 5%

00" GEE
00°0¢

00'0€E
00'0¢

LNOOWY

0tbas
CEFS9
LEE99
EVEDS
66€99

86€9%
TEESS
9LE99

0Zg£o0
ST%89
S1b9%

g38g£99

i344F]
127838
iZvos
12999
TZba9

[A S 1)
ereee

LEESS
L6ESS
LEE€99
LEE9Y
L6E9%
LEESI
LEE9Y9
LBESS
LEEDS

TvES®e
LA &K
£9€£99
68E99

TLESS
[434F

TEv99
aT€99

871€99
8TE£93

HENYHL

£T/90/86
£1/90/6
E1/80/6
£ET/90/6
£1/90/6

€1/90/¢
£T/90/8
£1/80/86

£1/50/6
€ET/90/6
£1/90/6

£1/90/6

£T/90/6
£1/90/8
£1/80/6
£1/90/6
ET/20/6

£1/30/6
ET/90/6

£1/90/86
£T/90/6
£1/90/6
£T/90/6
£T/90/5
£1/90/6
£1/%0/6
ET/20/6
£1/90/6

€T/90/6
£T/90/6
£T/90/6
€1/90/%

£1/90/6
£T/90/6

£1/90/6
£T/90/6
ET/90/8
£1/90/8
ALYA

€1/90/6

TINYUOSNT HANILIE 14ES
FOVETIW + ALNT SAVd 8
SLAYD MEN - SDYI INNOIDY
£T0Z ‘8E-§1 Isnonv
DNITAROD -dCHS

HdWD ALITIIN ‘ MYL 5IOL
NDIE ¥0Od ONINNYTA
ATIVEL dWC MAN DNIMELLAT

HWALYIH
SHIaNId
HONNd ZE7I0H

ONIGILS STIYLIS M¥d 1S =

NOISSIWWOD DNIMNYTIL
H2IAYES “WWOD

LEAL HYIA

LNEREOTAATA WWOD
SPES-SPL HNOHd YALXE-Md

YNYD IHaWY
TYAILSEA DISNW YNYDINANWY

HIVYE DSIA-PTZZ905

FENT MOTE NS

J81d FIITOE IW -T4L0 TEIL
av¥d EXWYE DSIa-TL0 HHEIA
2E0T MO'Td TINA -DOLS
WITE ¥IV TANYE-PTZZ9 OF
HAVHE JSIA-09%L% 0F
HDIAMES LY¥-~09%LS OF
YOLOW/WNUA-09%LS OF

£€102-8

NYWAYHD

AESUYNISIT INFWHSINGYD
YOLOW N IS-¥52S¢

HONN& d10H 7 'SIAYIILON
HONNE ZECH €

ALNA A¥AL SAYQ 2

NOILJIdDS3A AJIOANT

YILSIDEY MDEHD
ALNQCD AZ¥0LS

SSHDOV JUINFud

YHEHI ¥3LLO4

AVRIDNE ¥ JWWLS YSOUEANOS
a OTIONY 'INIYLEA

SETYS INEWJINDE SNAMO

IS % SDIHAYYD HAIS EHL NO

ONI LO48EJ #DI440

L ACNWH "HONNOD ©

ONI YINIOJAITYD 40 TILXIAN

ONI NOIINATNISIA LSEM MEAN

SI¥¥d OLnv DN
YAYAAN A0 STIYN
DDYN

TOUMD SIMM TYETTIIW

00 ¥OLOW THOH TEYHIIKW

NI SNOILNTIOS EDIJJ0 OULIEN

VAW RTTOW ENOTIYW

4 LYYYHAYH T YIYILYYH
dOaNEA

€1/50/60
STETEd

¥859L

€888L
28594
T8G9L

o8s9L

&LGSL

8L89L

LLS9L

9LS58L

§L59L

TLE9L
TLE9L
ZLG9L
TLS9L

0Ls9L

69594

8959L

LISSL

HEGWNN
MOEHD

ajed uny

oN 2xoday




Zgr00v't LEPDHO £T/%0/6 ESNOHLEN0D L5 ° 5 9%

9E"6TY LEYDY ET/90/6 (ENINIVHMLI) LS 2 N T¥T
96" ¥9L LEVSS £T/90/8 ASHANIZ 48 9 N
¥2'%2 LEFSS £1/90/6 HUATIVE LS NOSHYD
£6'68% LEFSE £1/90/6 418 2 5
£5°62 LEPOY £1/90/6 IHOT "M¥E ¥O WOCALAC 1S D8
§2°35 - LEPI9 £1/90/6 418 D 5
65°LT LEBIY £1/80/6 qOVEYD 18 § § 0T
08'62 LED9S £1/90/6 L8 NOLLNS
z2g' 9% LEPID  ET/90/6 ¥9¥d DA LS 3 R 502
8L'68 LEYIY ET/90/8 wAw Q¥ EMNIAYY TIYINYdS 00§
£€'¥0¢ LEFI9 £T/90/6 dWISYH I8 D § 12
£6°8LE'T LEYYS £1/90/6 INTE ¥LM LS HLINOS M 0071
PT 8T LEY9Y £1/30/8 Hd¥d IW  SNAWITD WYS 067
68262 LEV9Y £1/90/6 £L5 FAY SNAWITS WYS 00§
§6'8ST°T LED9S ET1/90/6 . TI¥L  THE AMH SO 116
66°92¢€ LEYSS £1/90/6 08 18 2 § s0T
ggreee LEFSS £E1/90/6 08 LS O § £02
55's%2 LEBSS £E1/90/6 ¥d H¥LS D 9§ 10T
19 €52 LEDSS £T/90/6 a¥ 1105 00T
S0 81E LEFIY £1/90/6 a¥ 1705 0TI
85 0% LEFS9 £1/90/6 ay TI0L 0£T
¥ BEE LEF99 £1/90/6 LINO L8 O N S¥t
EE€'8ZE LEDIY £1/90/6 ESHAUIL LHOIMMLIEYD 0192
5Z2° 06T LEFI9 £1/%0/6 FONAATSAY IHOTUMLEYD 2192
SL'8ES LERYY £1/30/86 ¥ LS SMUVY4S AM NOANYD TE%
[ 148 14 LEBYY £1/90/6 ISHAWE a¥ LHOTUMIMYD 0192
L' BE LEVYY £1/90/6 q¥¥E @8 HONWY I¥Ed 600T
F0S6T LEPY £1/90/6 ¥ LINO A¥M NOANYD 0Z¥
O ¥AMOd DIIIDWA WHHEIS §659L
05°671 05'61 15€99 £T/90/6 £10Z '9Z~§T ISQONY
NITITY NYINE ‘4YOHS ¥659L
¥E'81S'8 66°08% 96£99 £1/3%C/6 YHEOD
SE°LED'S 6EY99 £1/90/6 GONVINSNI HHYILEY JLSES
VHH QRYNILAYE SANYW INIVE E6S9L
00" 00'¢L £SELS £1/90/6 €102 ’*gZ-ST 1sSNONV
DNI ¥EINEDLEY SAUVW INIVS 2659L
9L LTL 9L LIk EEFS9 £1/90/6 FOVATIWN + ALNA SAVA 8
AQCD NIAZM ‘HOIY T659L
00'032 00 0o 18€99 £1/90/6
‘ O TYOIGEW TYNOIDEM NMONEY 0659¢L
05° €96 05 geT 9T¥99 £1/%0/6 T0-9L9END ¥HALLOTE SID
002w 9TH99 £ET/90/6 1OW DWE-LS98LPESLL IDDY
) (¥2) DONI QD NYOUOW AW 6859¢,
SL° LB SL°L8 05£99 £1/90/5 ET0Z '8E2-ST 1SNOnV
W WRAGNYS ‘' adodavs 8BS9L
00' 008 . 00°008 S8E99 £1/50/5 ENEWEAONAWI NIV ETIW 9
. ONIUEENIONT NOSYIANY O o LBSIL
By ¥59°'Z p9 2tz 00%99 ET/90/6 HIYdAT-2LE HYIT
59°pEL 00%98 ET/90/6 MAIIVAL ¥Z0Q FYIA
67 v89 O £E1/90/6 ' AIVAEY SNYIL 3dia
0L'200'T 0039 £€T/90/6 WIYAEY -1y HYIZ
: 0D MEEENY % AYIL TIZDUNL $859L
00°' 08T 00" 5L EEE99 £1/90/6 €102 9% DEG-LZ 1438
00" 5L £8€99 £€1/90/6 62 DAU-0EJAS HOLINOW
ONI SEDIAZA NOILDELOYA §889L
00'%LY
IYLOL LNOOWY FENYHL Z1vq # 0/4a NOILAINOSEA HIIOANT AOGNTA ATEWON
MDEHD ADAHD
E€1/90/6 HILSIHAY MDEHD £T/50/60 ¢ @83BQ unyg
9  9beq ALMNOD ATNOLS STETEd oN 3xoday




L YLINY 'ONOALS 01994

S0°€69'%2 00'LY LTH98 £T/90/6
LE ¥E LI#99 £1/90/6
LY 26 LT?99 ET/20/6
€T LET LIpO9S £1/90/6
$2'T0T L1%99 ET/90/6
L8007 ’ LIP99 £1/20/6
L6 SL LT¥99 £T/90/6
£7' 708 LT?99 £T/90/6
£1'862 LT¥99 £1/90/6
LB 26 LT¥99 £1/%50/6
BT ZET LT%99 ET/90/6
Ly'E6 LTY9% £1/90/6
Ly 28 LTF9 £T/90/6
BG' 96 LTIP99 £€1/90/6
0€ EQT LTP99 £1/90/86
LY 26 LTI%99 £T/90/6
WALSAS YELYM 0D IS 6099¢
9€'£EP'LES 9E"EEY ' LGS 8£v99 £E1/30/6 UVEX XYL $T0Z/€T02
YIANSYIUL OD IS B0S9L
EE"EES'OT £L°££8°01 ¥6E5S £1/90/6
(DAY YEINID HOINAS 0D LS L099L
00°'082 00 05E F5E99 £1/90/6 TOOHDS HOTIH OA OL A¥d
LOINLEIA TTOOHDS 00 1S 90994
00°¥Z 00 g 55€99 £1/90/86 £102 ‘8Z-5T LsSneny
LOTULSIA "OOHIS 00 18 50994
06'g 06°% 2¥99 £1/90/8 HEYD ALLEd EWIAN
MMED 00 1S ¥099L
00 ¥9g 00° P98 [$4%-1-1 £1/90/6 SAINEJNS DNINVHTD
III £ DINIWOQ 'ENCOTIVES £099L
00'0ze 00'02¢ PEFSS £T/90/6 ALNd A¥AL SAVA 8
ERT NOYYHS 'TITENS 20994
0z°8s¢ 0Z'gse 42%99 £1/90/6 AOYATIW + SAY¥A S
ADITULYd ENEONT AHTING 1099¢L
00912 00° 97T 9TESY £1/90/6 ZOAYE HIASNYHWIOOM
00002 9T£99 E1/390/6 AINUL NO SHIADLLS
YEQ 077 STIULSOHANI ADITE 0099L
00°'E6 00°' €6 Z5E8%  £1/90/6 £T02 ‘82-ST .LSNOHNY
V34 TYNOTIYN ALYILS ¥IATIS 66594
00°968°'1 00" L6¥ 61799 £1/90/¢ HAYTIE MOTIMONS
00'66€'T 6T%99 £T/90/56 AAZHD T00Z INIVd H¥rg
SEIULSNANT HLVLS HIATIS B6SAL
00" 05T 00°0§ P9£99 E£1/80/6 aqoOMID0T
0000t ?9€£99 £T/50/6 [ol]
ONI TOWLNOD 153d WHNAIS LES9L
15'L6 15" L6 28E99 £1/90/6 £TAN0E
I¥IDOSSY ADOQYMOHLYA WIHEIS 96594
00" ¥9L21 18 v¥ LEP99 £T/90/86 dOLSLSEY 15 O N 18€
¥2'vT LEVSS £1/90/5 AUYd HOA QY FAIAWE Thtz
£9°08 LEDIYY ET/20/6 g LIND AW¥M NOANYD 0Z%
28'5LY LEV9Y £1/50/6 ¥a NYAd so0Lt
90°29% LEVSS £1/90/6 T4 HONVY I¥ad 008
£¥ 661 LERSS ET/90/6 ' SIHDIT &8 2 § 1¢£s
[4: 3 TAY LE®SS E1/90/6 SIHOIT 18 D § z¥e
58021 LEFS9 £1/90/¢6 SIHRIT 18 D N 94T
30'96% ‘1 LEV9S £T/90/6 NCANYD FTIW XIS 0zZee
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNYHL Ziva # o/a NOILAT¥OSHEd EDI0ANT HOENIA HTEWON
ADEHD HOEHD

ET/90/6 AUILSIOAY MDAHD ET/50/60 ¢ @3eq uny
[4 afeg ALNDOD AHYOLS STETES 'ON 2x0day




8

86 'FTE'LEG'T
00°0Z¢

00"s%2

00'se
00'668

0z 921

007302
Lg'9ce

00°QLE’T

00" 00% ¥

09 6PE

E1 268

05'982'¢

00°'02s

00°8ST’'T

LL'OBE'T

00 €£59'E

0§ PEL'T

40 oee

TYLOL
JJEED

abeg

TYLOL 3¥DEHD
00'0Z¢
00’ 0¢€
00002
00°ST
00'sz
00668

00°'69
02’45

00°902
LB 39ET
[T RAT- R
00" 04
00" 00¢E
008y
0o'ges’e
00 80t
00'000'T
00° %2
09°6bE

S6'€4T
[AS:1 44

SE'EPSY
SZTEVIY

Q0-0eL

00°86T
00°096

0o o¥
LL'ODE'T
2R v
00°€99°¢
0s'%6
0070881
o]l e}
00°02g

LNOCHY

2€%99
Pi£99
PIES9
PTE99
STESS
Ti%99

L0799
LOSS

20799
SEEe9
TEESS
TEESS
TEE99
TEE99
26€99
258892
89€89
85£99
LEEOY

[4k4:E]
[Ash k]

82e99
8292

65€99

LGE99
LSEDY

oLESS
QLE9
GLESS
8E€99
95£99
95€99
9G€99
Sgbog

HENYHL

ET/90/%
£T/90/8
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£1/90/6
£€1/90/6

£1/90/6
£T/90/6

£1/90/6
ET/30/6
£1/90/6

£1/90/6
£1/90/6

E€T/90/86

£1/90/8
£T/90/6
£T/90/4
£1/90/8
£1/30/6

E1/90/6
£€1/90/6

£€T/90/6
£1/90/6

£1/80/8

E1/20/6
£T/a0/8

£€1/90/6
£€1/90/6
£1/90/86
£1/90/6
£ET/90/6
£1/98/6
£€1/90/6
ET/90/6

LY

ALDT R¥ODQ SAYG 8

SHOVY TIWYD

avy LSEM alIM £/7
LANYEINTD OTXOT

2dId SMW X704 ISd
LIM I¥n ¥iIa

HIDOLLIN "WHOATITOD TYIEd

HAYOHSONOT

NOILVIMOASNYEL Y TEWYD
€102 ‘gZ-ST IsSnony

€102 ‘92-9T 1SnO0Y
(eedy

H¥T- N¥3d 90LT
S/M- NU3d SOLT

HATIVEL JWNg Te LSIA
YETIVAL dWnd Pt 18Iq

ANIM SEOVY THEWYD

€T10% “82-ST LSNDNY
SEYLL INNOW ¥YIZES 0§
SHYIL v-0LD9 Fdid
STYIL LHOOW 09FLS OF

LNSHAYd HSYHT ¥IZOQ

£ET0Z '8E-97 LSNOAY
ALLO A¥OL SAv¥g 8

NOILETUDSET EDIOANMI

£1/90/6° BELSIDIR MDHHD

ALN[IOD AEHOLS

TTAWD 'WITNZ

SEITICD ' qOOM
KEIUNOL ALNNOD ENIJ ELIHM

01T YAYAIN IENLSTZM

GO ATGENS YATAEN NYTLSIM
YT IYINIWNNOMIANE NYILSEM

HAROMOD 05 HOHSWYM

SNI SHOQL ALID WIMIDHIA

0D H¥ HEMONUL ¥ YINIDYIA

11 WAVAIN J0 ALIWJOSIND

IHNIWIACHANWT TVHENID Il

ONI S507d SYETIVHEL

0 ADIQ 'ONITESSLIL

SACHMCD FNOLSEWOL FHL

YOSIO0D SYWOHIL-LIYNIAY FHL

ENTD ' NEWIL

SEASIMAYHINT M¥Ed NNS

EOANEA

£ET/86/80
STETHEI

LZI9L

929sL
S¢994L

»Z89L

Lg99L
ZE99L

TZ99L

0Z29L

619594

8T58L

L1994

97994

ST99L

71994

£T89L

21998

T189%L

FHEWON

HIEHD
T og%eq uny
ioN jaodsy




HENOISSIWWOD

s o oL ANOTSSTID
et e B i
..... bbb
......... b oo SETIOMIANOD

£1/90/6 3IV¥A ADIHD

NOTIWZTHOHIONY NV METAZY A0 INIWISAITMONEIY

86 PTE'LEO'T TYLOL SADEHD




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 17,2013 Estimate of time required: 0 min.

Agenda; Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of Treasurer Report for August 2013

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of Consent Agenda

3. Prepared by: Vanessa DuFresne
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969
4, Staff summary: Please find attached the Treasurer Report for August 2013, included in the
report is the unaudited fund balances, secured and unsecured tax apportionment and a

listing of the outstanding checks as of August 31, 2013.

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney

Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

¢
- _
@ﬁnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
e e

Agenda Item No. @




Q0"

00"
00"

-95° £L6°899
~6ETDLSTOLET
€2 ¥9T'Ca
~Z9°Z0T 28T
-€0°BEL'OTT'Z
-ZT LIS 9

00"
-69°GLI'ZE
-£5'08L761
-99°Z299°LZ
oc”
-Z¥LOL V9T
~20°ST¥ 00T
~SL SLST0T
-T£'6ELTDES
-00 €T9 '8
~¥6° 600 LT
LT TIT'T

»Z T0T
-00°00D Q00T
~Z¥ ¥ZTSOT'T
-09°L6S TEG T
-08' 208 00E
~69°8TT' 78T
-65°D6E"S6
-L¥ FTO0F
-66° ¥55 ' BOS
-06"9EE ' pOT
BE"ESL'EST
00"
-¥6°L60 PET'T
00"
-T¥ LSE'BTS
-0T 895 ‘PLC’R
007008
00°000'Z
00°00T°T

0L GEF

08 FEB9LTI’S
50°6FT'S

LT ISLLYT L
8 FZ6'0FC Y
00"

00"

85 TPZ0G0°T
00"

-06° 926 'T

HONVTYE DNIGRA

1 abeq

0o*
00
00"
00°
80"
g’
00"
ao-
00"
[eli py
00’
00-
00"
00’
Q0"
00"
oo’
0o0*
00"
00"
00"
00*
oop-
0o~
00"
oD-"
00"
oo
00"
0g’
00"
00"
00°

00"

00"

a0
00"
Q0°
oG
eli
00"
00"
00"
oo
00"
00"
oo-
00"
0o’
00°
00"
0o
00"
00"
0o
00*
00’
1]vhy
00"
00"
o0

LG SUALSNVEL NI SEJJSHYHL

oc’ 00" 06" 00"

60" 00" 00" 09°

00° 00" 00" 00"

00" 95 BLY 9T 6Z°08%LTT -6%"81I8'G6
00" 00° 00" 00"

00" PETBOLOL 6E' 500" % ~86° 189 '0L
-68°656 T 0o* ¥8 SPE‘99T -80"619'2%T
00" 00" 0a0° -zg°0z8

00" 00" 00’ [N

00" 00" 00" [

00" 00" 00" -SL TTE

00" 00" 00" -6% ZEL'OT
007 ZT 00" 0o -00° IBE

09" 00" 00" cG*

-00°ZT 00" €9 849’0z -Zr g9k veT
00" 00" €0°005'0€ -58°L6T'F
00" 00" TI"9L8'LE -T€'629°201
00" 00" 86099 '96T ~Z6 BIY"0ES
0a” 00" 00" -00° 04
6879561 $9°ZLE LT LO°¥95'TT -26'€LD 0T
00" 00" LT TIT T 00"

g’ 00" ¥Z TOT [

00" 00" 00" 00"

00" 6% EOF'2T 96°S5EPET -TB'9Z¥%’ 09
00° oo* 00" ~£5°T0B 0T
00" 00" 00" 00-

00" cc’ 00" -65°Z¥%'SE
00" [ 00 0g”

00" Z9°050°C6 TL°ELE'0E -T5'985'012
00" 08 Z50’ 0¥ ¥E 11T ~ELBYELL
00" 06’ o0 00"

00* TIZ 886 '60E 9E° 65552 -GE LTS ' 80¥
00" co" [N 00°

00" 08 L0L LY SS°06¥%'TT -98° 568 ' b9
00" [N 00" 00"

00" oc” T#°0%9°0€ -65°§5T 'L
00* BE IZ¥ L99 OT TTIT ¥ST -TT*€0E'605'T
00" [T:N 00* 00"

00" oc” 00 00"

00* 00" 00" 00"

00" co" 00 00"

I9 FEL’000'T [ ]the a0- 0o

oo’ oo’ 00" 8-

00" 00" 00" 00"
-00°000'008°E 00" 00" ¥ 968'289°C
00" oc" 00’ 00"

o0o" 00" 00° 00"
BE'GOZ'GEL T  -VL E€BZ'9LZ T -P¥° 980 'ELE D8"TOS5 ‘968
00" [N 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"

SYHHON0A NENOr  STTIOUAYd SINAWISHYNEGSId SLATEDEA
£T0Z/80 ¥Od
L¥EHS ONIDNVIVE XTHINOW
DNILHAQOIY So¥dHNSVELL
YTAONSYIEL ALNNOD ASIOLS

00"

00"

00"

-Z8"ETL L6Y
-6ETOLS'9LET

BP ZLT'BS
-6%LLB E0T
-1Z LLE’EOT’T
-ZE €TSS

oo’

-v6 £9Z°'1E
-¥0°8¥0°6
-9%' €69 92

00’

-ZB 588708

-1T 8T T9ET
-S5°ZZB'LE
-LE"DBE9ST
-0D €S58
-29°826 "BLT

00"

00"
-00°000°000°T
-90° L6080 T
-L0°96L'0T6'T
-08°Z08 ' 00€
-0T 9.9 QT
-65°06% '56

TL 8% '6¥F
-0% D9E 'TLY
-06°9€¢ ‘POT

9T 8TL'SET

00"

-EP 00¥BET’T

00"

-ETERL LYS
-LPLEL 9VS L
0¢" 00z

0o coe’z

0o eeT’T

CGE"EEF

T 05T 9LT Y

LT @PT’S

LT BOL LFT L

¥% BZO'BSY'S

[

o’

LS ¥¥B E0S

oc*
-06°¥Z6°'T

QUYME0d "IvE

SONNI TTE TYLOL

SNIJICH SAXYL QFANIES 006
ONIQICH SEXYL JZ¥NDESNA 008
NOISSTHWOD WSI¥NOL DA 062
LIECQEd IIWd DA 0ZZT

aNNI XITH TI¥L 5. d4I¥FES 0TZ
SINVED TUEIATE 902

HOVEAYA THL 06T

AN MYYd 06T

LEN IUL 66T

AROT L¥00D AJTLSNC L8T
LEEACLDOY LNIDIAONI SRT
LHNOD LOIULSIC G8T

TUVO"E NOLIWIAHDHY ¥ JIVd SLT
IYIS 0LT

dNNd ADOIONHDAL S97

JEH0 TCCHIS 097

A00HDS 0ST

1800D HOET 0T

HEMAS AAYAYO WINIDUIA OFT
ALID WINIODWIA J0 HMOL 0OZT
TIIH 4709 20 NMOX 011
NOILVZITIEVLS 00T

HALSAS YILYM 060

ANDE ZAALONALSYHINI 080
SLIEL0¥d TYLIAYD 0L0
NOILISINDOY INZWAINOdI 090
FOTAEIS 050

QI¥ "INOLOW S0

IOINLEIA IYII OGP0
AORAOEAWE FIId SE0

JdId ¢E0

NOILNLILSEE ¥Z0

Savod 020

MdlL- HONVISISSY INADIGNI ST0
TYOIAIW INIDIANT 010
TYYEANID T00

FOSSASSY HSYD ALLIAd 506
JAIWIHS HSYD ALLA& #086
HSYD ALLId €06

SNICD 410 106

INGODOY dIDT dINIS 96T
ONIATOH LEN0I LOIHISIO ¥6T1
LAY XINOK ODUYd S77dM 16T
LNOODDY o0 0D¥Yd STHAM 66T
SPIYS ALYII0Nd ¥ 40 H 8BS
SAHYD2 ANVE SSENISNE L6T
ANVE NI HSYD &6T

SAT TENOTIYN ALID E6T
JONYHNENT HITYIH Z6T

RCIILATYOSEA 1oW

60165280 ¥If60/60 uny
00IZYL :oN 3Izoday




BO'E0'SYY'T 5 | EvZESE § | TOL6L 3§ | OLZ65Z | TG STTBE 5 | TBOCE 5 | E6G50E0E § | 5209615 § | LTLZE  § | LEvba's  § | PL0S00T $ [ 69°00Z°L & | Q0'9LLBIT § | BISSLSE § | BEVESIOT 5 | SZ.205°0¢5 © | OV VSEOVS § | 56065200 $ | W10 ONVYD
- 5 - H - H - $ - $ - $ 1519 XN
110 2d
- 5| - S~ 5] - st - $ - H - 3 1510 Xd
= HEE s~ s - 51 - S L5H0 %
25U
it _— mamiea _— — s — S
LEVITRET  § | WTEST S [TLv S [ 0TI6S'L S| wEKET § | ST S|6LETAPT $|IBS0ST S [TFTST 6 [TO0ML'E S [€1'005 S| POBEE  § | 9ZCL'S  § | L59BOT G | GEBIBY § | ZROVZ'ST S | S6T090S § | 06°L15°9 5 | J3SNNW1OL
S0'00p'DIT 5 [T's0Z% § | 1Lv & | GEZZ89 § LSLSL'EL S | 8e4BI'C S [9TEET S | OLEECE 5 [EEIby S | bBYEL § |OLee6¥ § | BBTLYT 5 | O9CSLF S | vIPE0LZ § | 9B60SLTD § | LLELDS 5 YTIOZ/ET0Z
TCEIeLL 5 | TEEZE § - 3106696  $ | preb9’t 5|52 $|ZT998T  §]eg'elE  § | sEBL $ | sezey $ | ogre s1OTEr 6] 78'08L HEGARETRE $|arzZr’eE S| 665PRS  § | GLEEYT $ [ uomdIvIOL
0L £8872T G| v¥'SIE S £E9v6 S| 8T965T § OLZE8T  ${3ETTE 5| 888T HEEED s [%629 S| E6TY 5| LTI $ | E9'60Z S | 69909 S| ZSWTE S [eesre’s  $ 89021 S ET0C/ZT0Z
5ok S| 8L 3 L5°EE $ | 8T'ES [ sTL § | B0HL ${5T9 sTivo S [ po'TT S | eBT S| LTT FIEAA] % | 90's § ! or'st [AEET 3 TS ELT 3 |E¥aghs
0ETLT 5 [£5F 3 6ZFT S [6LEE B 751 S eLT R BED St HET RIEE B BT AEE] 5 0T $ | Tmor/rio
Tepee s |ore G T 5 | iv'el B $ [vsstT $TET S 610 Slsre BED HEES $166%s ¢ 06T HE $ [ swee B LR S [ tioe/otor
HOS5355Y
18'882'618'C § - s]oeTeL S - S| B0'99Y9T § | LSELE  § | VLCEP'BAT § | E6-bSv ol § | SGGITE O | DLSELEL | TOPUTOL 5592939 5 | BOESO'EEL § | IS TLVEE & | 6000606 5 | bPSSE'I05 § SYYSL 5k § | SOELOOED § | SIV1OL 1B0J3 |
- $ paini3s punioy
18'88L6TET § | - sfoster 8| - $|80°950°9T $ [ ZS°ET8  § | PU'ZEV'SEE § | ELvSe'sh § | SSGITE 5 |OTHET'EL S | TODYLOE § | 592380 $ | VHESO'ETT § | TOTLVEE § | 6P 09696 § | PWSGL'T0S § | SUTGLGED § | SOELO9ES 6 | Q3UNDIEVIOL
ZEELSBTZZ & - BT - 3P - 5 OP'96T'6LT § | 65°BYO'SY $ | 2UZZ0E § | TE008'0L 5 |5T028'6 § | ESOPO0 § | ST LUEBOL § | ELBOYZE § | S0°0C0'E6 G | LV9S0°SBF & | 95°STEG0D § | Z0DLLELE $ | vE/ETIVIOL
OEZ6L_§ SCvoE’T S| seEer | £TEC S | Ersee HET S| ovie s |peeEs STICZsT S| 6Ewst BEEEEE ST OEE'S S | Ssessy [epads)
PTPIEITZT § TLTERZLE S | bOV6LLY $ | 6Z'BODE  § | BrSSP0L 5 | OT'ELL'® § | EL609'D § | SLZbBBOT § | €4 15C°CE § | 99°T8c'E6 5 | LLTOL28Y & | 95SIE 00 § | bLEVE'ZID $ PIOT/ETOT
68'PIZI6 S - HEE S| - $ [ so'eavaT $1iSEIR  § | 89SECE  § | vSIPT § | £ 46 S)6TIEET S|s5L'Eze  § | IUTeT 5 | cewi9T  § | wEe90T § | WWPILE | 696181 & | 6BSEFEC § | EOGBLET § [ womawior
TOBI9BE 5 PEVODE S vEI6ST S | v9EBL  $ | £4ib STO0EILT  Slewest S| TEFSOT S| 9BBGLT  $ | [68ES | LBGEST 5 | LeWEGL 5 | GLLECHL § | BLVILE $ | Eror/rine
LESESTIS %[ - $] S| - S| PETILEL $ | L5EIR & | vESEOT  § | 0ZZE9 5 | 096 SISTHITT S| £TSOT S| TE9TT S| OEEZ®T  § | T6EES  § | LSP6ST § |OLLOZ'E ¢ | 098616 § | SLPLOG 3 =10qng
R [ TL8p9C § | 9TvSE 5 | woil S| oenie S S[e509  s[isef0T  §|wmawes | tETEE S|v0ELSY S| ecoBeTs S | DOTSTE $ | Troefiror
CUgat'er 5 OUEAT'7  § | £5'618 S [ Z07¢s8T 5 |Z09T & | BLOT e BELE BIEEEETEER R BEEEEE [A547T7A § | 1I0%/0T0T
BLYPET 5 zaBBr 5 S5'ZEL X HIEES RET3 s[5t S [sts HERS 5[ sest $ [vrer § etz S £E91LS $ | oror-6o0T
HIENSVIAL
WIoL %Z UV 1Wauac %8 /v SILIVNIJ [Peqhed ML | Bawa/auld 19T 03 HINOA ALSIHOA 20V AN W ONI ETT oY dva 60 HJS 40 HIS di5 1Snani TWHINID
59T 9059€-F00 | VOIPE-LOD 100 [ ) otz o0 k0 SET aTo ol 090 [ 05t 005-100 100

ELOZLSNDNY 40 HINOW 3HL HO3 TYA Qv




00" 0& €ET/€2/8 ODAVH  ‘ AHJUONW 688E0% 00 S6T Pa¥sL MO

00" S2e €T/ce/8 a ILSIEA "EOIAONHENNW SEZHO0¥ 00 S6T £5%9L D
0T 69§ cT/ce/8 NI SNOILVDINDWKHCD ILI¥NJIHNW 9E6E0% 00 S6T L¥F9L D
00°006°T £1/€2/8 NAAE ¥ SIVINHGY HEOVLS SOVN XA A} 00 S6T SPF9L  ND
00 0T £T/52/8 A ILYEYSEYH YIVLILYYN 968¢0% 00 S6T PPE9L WD
98°91¢ €1/ce/8 DONI SHEHIYS AEM GLB8ED¥ 00 S61 GEF9L MO
00°000°S cr/ce/8 ONI DNILANIYH ¥ VIAEW 11D Z9Z%0% 60 S6T LEF9L D
0S5 FLE £1/c2/8 OHDS ¥YM HILM¥NOA DJITHOLSIH 9Z800T CO0 G661 CEPIL M)
00°'0007SE ET/€2/8 DONYUTIOH ADIdadIH 9B6EOY 00 G6T 0EPSL D
00°000'0T £T/€E/8 ONIGTOH ADTIIAHEH 986£0% 00 S6T 6ZTF9L D
05°62T €T/ce/8 DONI QALIWITNN S2TIIVHED SYTIFOF 00 G671 SZTHIL  MD
00006 £ET/€2/8 0 EDNIYMYI LLOITIH Z00v0% 00 G671 0Z¥9L  MD
00 052 €T/€2/8 HLIANNY ‘STEINYA ETTPOd 00 G671 LT®#9L XD
00 80¢ €T/ce/8 ¥ OIAYIDO ‘YISHID 8ZT6ECT 00 6S6T 9T¥9L D
LS %0E €T/€2/8 SNOTIOTOS snd DESH 0DIS0D 0Z000T 00 SBT PIF9L WD
00°'00T €T/tz/8 DONI SNININ MOOLSHOD 900%0% 00 GS6T TI¥9L D
00°6EE €T/ce/8 DTT TITH dI0H ADOLSHOD LBBEDY 00 G6T ITPOL AD
16 °'888°'G1 £€1/€2/8 ONI 0D TIIC AFTIVA NOSUYD 9TZ%0% 00 S6T £0%9L D
00°'€08 £€T/te/8 SIMET ILLODS ’TTdddnd TLOEOF 00 S6T 86€9L MO
00 0Se €T/€2/8 AFN O 2058V S, HOSSHSSY I90E0T 00 56T 68E9L  AD
00" ¥EZT'G £1/60/8 0D WY FEAONUL 3 YINIDYIA ¥68E0Y 00 561 €LESL D
00 TLL'T €T/60/8 SA0EMOD HNCILSIWOL HHL TO6C0¥ 00 S6T §9¢9L MDD
00°%2T £1/60/8 W YAANYS ‘ado4avy ZOGEOT 00 SG6T 0EEL9L D
00°s2 €T/60/8 HONI¥d HVMOHHU ‘SIMET SHZF0P 00 S6T Z0ESL MO
0064 €1/60/8 ONI aNvaavodd JLO0dS 10H €SLEOF 00 S6T 26794 MDD
00" 0SE €T/60/8 L FONTaAMYI LIOITIE Z0D%0¥ 00 S6T 0LZ8L  AD
05°86 £€1/60/8 OTT TIIW d7I09 AD0LSWOD LBREOV 00 S6T SSE8L  AD
TE €L €1/60/8 TAYHOIW ‘OZ¥TIOD SYZVO¥ 0C S6T ZSZ9L ND
9L 060°FT €1/60/8 ONI 0D IO ATTIYA NOSHEYD STZHOT 00 &6T SHZIL  AD
SL°9% £T/92/L W YIANYS °ga04avd Z06E0% 0C G671 69T9L AD
00°S0€°¢g €T/92/L ONI OLSAd SECVOF 00 S6% ¥OT9L ¥MD
TS5 €0T €T/92/L NONNVS  ‘ NOUHOD 0ECvO¥ 00 S6T 6ZT9L MDD
ST 8L €T/TT/L W YAGNYS ‘ayodavd Z06E0F 00 S6T €€09L A
00" 00S’'¥% €T/2T/L MOCTYS docId 40 1EMDJNd 9S$10% 00 S6T 6E6SL  NAD
0S8 LS €1/82/9 W VICNYS qEodavy Z06E0% 00 S6T S88GL  AD
00°0ST €T/82/9 ¥04D 0LS00T 00 S6T ZZ8SL MO
00" 08T ET/¥1/9 HYJO0dAQ ‘¥aaNzIg 656€0% 00 S6T £955L  MD
00091 €T/t0/8s HANEY ' ISVWWHH Z60F0% 00 S6T L¥ESL  MD
00" 00T £1/90/% HATAVH-ENNY OENND 0vTP0% 00 S6T 90TSL M2
Q00 €€ €ET/SE/T ¥ OIAYIIO "YISHUD BEZ6E0Y 00 S6T SIS¥L  MD
ZT LET €T/E0/T {(0D) HANYAOMd HIVIS IS 86866 00 S6T TRZHL MD
98¢ ZT/0€e/11T SI¥N0A T YANJIVH LIOVOF 00 S6T ¥90%L  NMD
666 ZT/01/8 dT ENYdOdd SYDIUHAWY 6F6E0% 00 S6T g866cL  MD
00-zg TT/%0/TY ONI dDIA¥NHS TVDAT YAYAEN 69ZT0T 00 S6T £960L MO
00 0% 1T/Te/% 40084 LI¥ELavoaac 189€0% 00 S6T LZEE69 D
98 21 0T/L2/8 ANVHS ‘NOXICG 6Z600% 00 S58T1 £59L9 D
€6°08T 0T/2T/¢ d1d ‘av¥Ed CAANNYD ‘UEdINd S¥620% 60 S81 PEZ99 D
oF " 8% 60/08/TT HEYISHT ‘©IManT GETEOP 00 S61 8€E59 MO
¥6° ST 60/9T/T MAYTID ONITHAN 8LYTOT 00 G671 S£929 D
£€E° L 80/T0/L YNILSIHN‘1Ind S90€0% 00 <61 56809 MO
8695 80/T0/L EDI¥A ¥IdLIvMdONG £S0£0% 00 S6T TESDS D
00 S¢ 80/61/G AAIVA I NIAEA S6620% 00 S&T £EF09 D
00" L%T 80/8T/¢ SNYOT HZWOH HJIMAYINOOD SETTO0% 00 S&8T 0Z86S D
S8°LT Lo/8t/eT DT SHENI¥NYE S99 GEEZOT 00 S&T 6€T6S D
Junoury 23ed HosuD sweN osiordug/iopusa  # uosxad beg yueg # yoeun di

£T/1e/8 - ¢oo0/00/0 woxg

666666 USNOIUL T #309UYD woxd

syoeyn buTtpurising

ONILNOODOY S.dddnsSvyadl TZ 6580 @ 8WTL unyg €T/60/60 @ 53ed UNY

T sbed ALNOOD AHIOLS 0SLTIE :oN 3xodey




8T 9TT o¥%¢ 1 TeloL

8T 91T 9%E $Te305 yueg
0T ' 0% 60/¥%T/2T HILIL NYOIHAWNY 18914 £8E00T 00 G6T 11859 da
S6°09 €T/0€/8 TAVHOIW ‘NOSTIM PEOT 00 G6T 058¢€  dg
¥0°-296 €T/0E/8 NOWWd ‘SAITIIH CHGT 00 S6T 6¥8cc ¥ud
SL°81€ €T/0E/8 TYOANYS ‘NIVIDKW T#6T 00 S6T 8¥8c€ ud
ET"LLE €1/0€/8 qAT00d9 ' ATENYId 6161 00 G6T L¥8EE ¥d
80°0T0'T £ET/0€/8 I 9E¥D ‘SSHH ZET 00 S6T 9%¥8EEc ¥4
00" 0SL £1/0%/8 LZZFH# DOSSY WHEIHDHII HYIJ TOS006 00 G6T S¥8EE  Ud
LL %S9F £1/0€/8 SHOQT NOINO/HWDSAY Z0¥006 00 G671 PFEEC ¥4
¥L°09S £T/0€/8 XW¥L dALAY SNI HSVYM/JAddWAH LOE00E 00 G6T £¥8EE MU
00" GL €1/0c/8 0O SNI H4IT 2IJIDv¥d £0E006 00 S6T Z¥8EE ¥4
6% VLT £T/0c/8 XVIL ¥HLAY OVIAY/d8d dWH ZOE006 00 S61 T¥8EE ¥d
68 %ET’T £T/08/8 NY'Id S2T1 OVid¥/dEad dWH TOE006 00 G6T 0¥8E€€ ¥d
05-9t1e’e £T/0€8/8 dNo¥s "SNI (J04LIVH FHL DCOEQOG 00 G6T 6€£8EE ¥4
§9° 8L €T/0€/8 SZT 'SNI HAIT TYINOIOD 102006 00 S6T 8¢8ee  ¥ud
6678 €L/08/8 INHAIDODY TYINOTOD 002006 00 S6T LEBET ¥4
0T 0S¥’ ¥L £€T/0E/8 GLLE9SESTR/ATLEY 15 AN 050006 00 G6T 9E8EE ud
6T 98% £€T/91/8 THVEDIW ‘NOSTIM FEOTL 00 GS6T TERBEE Aug
L% 06T €T/91/8 HIJod ’AMEMvVId 6T61T 00 G6T TESEE ¥d
80°0T0'T €1/9T/8 L DE¥D ‘S8HEH ZT1T 00 S6T 0E8EE dd
00°521°T €T/et/8 LZECPH# DOSSY WAIHOIA d¥Id 105006 00 S6T gz8Ee Aud
€L SESFL €T/9T/8 6LLSOSESTH/HILEY 1S AHN 0G0006 00 GS6T g18gEe ¥4
¥9°L98 £1/80/8 GLLGOSESTH/IILET 1S AEN 050006 00 S6T €18EE ¥d
56" 6%Z £€T/20/8 AIA0d ‘ATHMYId 6I6T 00 S6T 608€E ¥d
957616 °SL £€T/z0/8 GLLGOSESTH/ITLET &5 AEN 0S0006 00 S6T 68LEE &4
00°8Z8°¢ £T/e2/8 ONI S¥00L ALID YINIDYUIA £68£0% 00 S6T £1594 MO
00°D08‘9 €T/€2/8 0D ¥¥ HENDNEL ¥ YINIDYIA P68EOT 00 S6T ZIG9L D
00" F%L°T €T/ce/8 SAOEMOD HENCLSEWOL HHL TO6ED¥ 00 S61 S0594  MD
PL9LE £€T/€e/8 ANAYM HIAASHD ' NAWIL 68LEOT 00 S61 Y0694 D
00°S6T‘Z c1/ee/8 AYVH ' QI0AAYILS 8¥820% 00 S6T TOS9L D
00°S6T g€T/€2/8 07 ATIJITANIS ZSTEO0¥ 00 G661 86F9L D
00 ILT €T/€2/8 VYHd TYNOILYN HIYIS dHATIS £Z6E0F 00 €61 96¥9L D
00°026 €1/€2/8 T NOILDELO¥d H¥IA VIddAIS 0862071 00 S6T £6P9L MDD
0589 c1/ce/8 W VEANYS ‘qiodavd ZOGEDQY 00 S6T 6LF9L D
00 2LT £€1/¢€e/8 d OTEHONY ‘INIMLAJ S68E0F 00 S61 gLFPOL D
JUNOUIY ajea MoauD swen ssfoTdwm/Iopusa  # ucsasd boeg sued # ypsup di
£T1/Te/8 - 00/00/0 woag
666666 UbBNOIUL T #30BUD woag
g3ooyDd bBuTrpurising
DNILNOODOVY §ndHANSYHIL TZ:65:80 * 8WIL UNY ¢I/60/60 ¢ 23ied UNY

Z abeg ALNNCD AHACLS 0SLTYE :‘oN 3jxoday




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 9/17/13 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required | |

1. Tifle: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval,

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ T—

Agenda Item No. j‘




Storey County Community Bebelopment

L

Busginess

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 82440 « (775) 847-0066 « Fax (775) 847-0935 » buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office September 6, 2013
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the September 17, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:
A, ALIO MEDICAL - Home Business / 21850 Adobe Rd ~ Reno (independent sales, books only} VCH
B. SPRIMOG, INC. - Contractor / 9965 Cincinnati Dayton Rd ~ West Chester, OH (install equip.)
C. SIERRA HEARTH & HOME — Contractor / 2350 South Carson St ~ Carson City (install fireplaces)
D. PAINTING RENO.COM - Contractor / 204 Ave de la D’Emerald (handyman) RB
E. WIDE OPEN EXCURSIONS - General / 1777 Per Drive (off-road tours and racing) TRI
F. HIGHLAND PHOTOGRAPHY — Home Business / 400 Panamint (photography-books only) VCH
G. CHEP USA — General / 8517 South Park Circle ~ Orlando, FL (pallet rental)
H. VISION DESIGN PAINTING - Contractor / 11 Glen Carran Circle ~ Reno

Inspection Required
ec: -‘Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office

Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Sept 17, 2013 Estimate of time required: 10-12 min

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [ Public hearing required [[J

. » _ Nevada Division of Wildlife (NDOW]) to give update on trapping and hunting regulations as they pertain to Storey County code within
L. I,l.t.l,t: the Virginia City Highlands, Highlands Ranches and other congested areas.

2. Recommended motion NO ACTION

3. Prepared by: DENY DOTSON

Department: COMM. SERVICES Telephone: 775-847-7500

4. Staff summary: NDOW representatives will give a brief overview of current state statute(s) and answer
questions regarding who and what laws are enforceable in regards to hunting and trapping.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ,» Comptroller

7. Legal review required: YES

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

%Memnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[3 Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[

Agenda [tem No. q




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 9/17/13 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [x ]

1. Title: Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) presentation on its Regional Water
System Report and the Bureau of Reclamation Plan of Study for the regional water system.

2. Recommended motion: Presentation/Not For Possible Action
3. Prepared by: Ed James, Director for the Carson Water Subconservancy District.

Department: Planning Department related Telephone: CWSD at 775.887.7450

4. Staff summary:

The purpose of the Comprehensive Regional Water System Report (Report) is to provide a regional
overview of the water supplies and future water demands in the watershed. Included in the report is an
analysis of changes in runoff patterns for the Carson River, discussion on the possibilities of
developing water leasing and water banking programs, discussion on regional water conservation
programs, and discussion on potential regional water system interties. It is important to note that this
Report is not intended to supersede any water purveyors’ Water Master Plan, but rather to provide a
regional overview. The Report is available on the CWSDY’s website at:
hitp://www.cwsd.org/newems/userpages/2013CompRegWtrSystemPlan. aspx.

Highlights of the Report:

¢ The runoff patterns for the Carson River have been changing over the last 70 years. Part of the
changes is due to climate impacts and part may be due to changes in agricultural practices.

¢ Currently, all the water purveyors can meet their immediate and near future water needs. Some
water purveyors will have issues meeting their water needs in thirty years. Potential threats that
could impact all the water purveyors are changes to water quality standards or possible groundwater
contamination.

e Every water purveyor currently has a water conservation program, although some are more robust
than others. Even though every water purveyor does have a water conservation program more can
be done to educate and promote the wise use of water. One of the most cost effective ways of
meeting future water demands is linking various water systems together. To do this in an organized
fashion it may be worthwhile for the various water purveyors to meet in an informal or formal
setting to open communication on how they can meet the future municipal water needs of the
watershed by working together.




5. Supporting materials: The full plan is located at:
hitp://’www.cwsd.org/newems/userpages/20 [ 3CompRegWirSystemPlan.aspx.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: n/a _n/a___ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: n/a
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
% ﬁepartment Head Department Name: Planning
@Mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

St b

Agenda Item No. | O




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 9/17/2013 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent { | Regular agenda [ x] Public hearing required [ x]

1. Title: Presentation/Not For Possible Action: Ed James, Director for the Carson Water
Subconservancy District (CWSD), to present the CWSD’s Regional Flood Management
Plan and Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) flood Risk Map Charter
applicable to counties located within the Carson River Watershed.

2. Recommended motion. Receive and file.

3. Prepared by: Carson Water Subconservancy District staff.
Department: Planning related Telephone: (CWSD) 775.887.9005

4, Staff summary:

DISCUSSION: In 2008, Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) and the five counties located along
the Carson River (Alpine, Douglas, Carson City, Lyon, and Churchill} adopted the Regional Floodplain
Management Plan (RFMP). At that time Storey County was not a participating agency with CWSD and,
therefore, the RFMP was not presented to the county. This RFMP was the result of a large collaborative
pracess involving the Carson River Coalition River Corridor Working Group, floodplain administrators and
staff from each of the five counties, and other interested stakeholders. The goal of the RFMP was to
identify activities and projects that could reduce future flood damage to the watershed and the residents.
As part of this process 38 suggested actions were identified (see attached list). it should be noted that
these are suggested actions with no requirement that the counties who adopted the RFMP to implement all
the projects identified in the plan.

Edwin James and Brenda Hunt from CWSD will give a brief overview of the RFMP. One requirement of the
RFMP is that it be updated every five years. Ms. Hunt will also provide a presentation on the revisions and
updates in the draft document. The revisions follow the Table of Contents of the original 2008 document to
assist a reader in understanding the supplemental document content. The update is also being completed
to assist those counties that participate in FEMA’s Community Rating System (CRS) program, namely
Carson City, Douglas County, and Storey Counfy. The update includes the Risk MAP Charter that was
signed by CWSD, counties along the Carson River, FEMA, and several other state and federal agencies.
The Charter represents a good-faith effort by all parties fo share data, communicate findings, and plan
mitigation activities to protect communities within the watershed from flood risks. The Charter does not bind
a county to do any particular program but ensures that FEMA and local county governments work together.
Attached is a copy of the Charter.

The criginal 2008 RFMP is available on the CWSD website at
http:/fwww.cwsd. org/newcms/admin/Uploads/Finalfloodplainpland_08.pdf, and the revised Appendices are
available at http://www.cwsd.org/newcms/Admin/Uploads/AppG-KDraftFPMGTPlanRevision201387.pdf.




5. Supporting materials:
See attached: RFMP Suggested Actions and Appendix J Risk Map Charter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: n/a Fund: n/a __n/a__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

_n/a___ District Attorney

3. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Planning
ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
] ]

Agenda ltem No. l I




Risk MAP Charter for the Carson RiVer Watershed

Purpose:

Working in a close collaborative effort, Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD),
FEMA Region IX (FEMA), U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), U.S. Geological
Survey (USGS), U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), State
NFIP Coordinator, State Hazard Mitigation Office, and other partners (as listed on page
5) will identify, assess, communicate, and plan for flood risk within the Carson River.
Watershed (watershed), which includes portions of Alpine County in California and
Douglas, Carson City, Storey, Lyon, and Churchill Counties in Nevada. The flood risk
information provided can be used to enhance hazard mitigation plans, make informed
decisions to 1rnpr0ve resilience after flooding, protect the beneficial functlons of
ﬂoodplams and ralse awareness about local flood nsks o

_ This charter.

» Details the Tong-term flood hazard mapping vision for the watershed;
Describes the desired mapping, assessment, planning information, and planning
products;

» Describes the assistance that CWSD and FEMA will provide; _

e Summarizes local flooding concerns and indicates areas where floodplain cha.nges

_are expected; and - _

s - Describes the roles and respons1b1htles of the CWSD, FEMA, and other sugnatory

partners.

Watershed Vision:

In 2008, all counties along the Carson River adopted the “Carson River Watershed
Floodplain Management Plan™ (FPM Plan) that describes the long-term goals and
objectives for floodplain management. These goals are based on identification and
mapping of floodplains to create a broad-based awareness of flood hazards and provide
the data necessary to stpport community floodplain management programs. The
mapping program will provide many benefits to watershed communities, property
owners, and citizens. These include: : :

& Increased public awareness and action to reduce risk to life and property;
-~ s - Ability to build upon flood hazard da a;and maps produced during the Flood Map '
. Modemization (Map Mod): program Lo
o Assess present and future risk; :
~ ®  Address gaps in flood hazard data to form a sohd foundation for risk assessment
and floodplain management and provide entities with information needed to
mitigate flood-related risk;
e Protection of the natural and beneficial function of drainage-ways and
floodplains, including trail corridors, parks, recreational areas, wildlife habitat,
- flood storage, and groundwater recharge; and,
¢ Encouraging “Good Neighbor Policies” throughout all communities w1th1n the
- watershed.




Risk MAP Charter for the Carson Ritler Watershed

Mapping and Assessment: o

The watershed experiences ﬂoodmg incidents on an average of every five years. Types

of flood hazards include riverine and alluvial fan flooding and debris flows. Major flood
events are typically the result of rain-on-snow events. Flood stordge in the upper
watershed is limited and available storage is not regulated. Therefore, flood flows are not -
actively managed and large flows can occur downstream. The watershed contains areas
of open floodplains that are continually under threat of change and development. The
FPM Plan calls for the protection of the natural function of these floodplains, especially
lands within Carson Valley, which provide the bulk of the flood storage for the entire
watershed.

Based on previous studies, information obtained during community pubiic meetings for
the development of the F PM Plan, and d1scovery meetings for mapping activity

plan 1dent1ﬁes the sequence of work to be performed in order to meet the goals and

objectives for floodplain mapping and associated assessments and is consistent with the

community goals described in the FPM Plan.

Regulatory Products:

FEMA will provide Alpine, Douglas, Carson City, Lyon, and Churchill Counties with the
following updated regulatory products to support floodplain management and flood

insurance administration.

. Flood Imsurance Study (F IS) Report: The FIS describes the county’s ﬂood
history and provides technical information on the study.
* Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM): The FIRM identifies the county s ﬂood
- -hazard zones, base flood elevations, and floodway boundanes ThlS map 1s also
used to determine where flood insurance may be requn'ed .

Flood Risk Products:

CWSD and partners will work closely with FEMA to produce the products listed below
which identify locations and causes of flood hazard changes and quantify the risks
associated with those changes. This will allow Alpine, Douglas, Carson City, Lyon, and
Churchill Counties to use these updated data and products to make informed hazard

- :mltl gatlon Iand use and development and emergency management decisions.

Changes Since Last Flood. Insurance Rate Map (FIRM): Changes since the
o __ilast FIRM identify areas where the floodplain, floodway, and/or flood zone
-.'{.:des1gnataons have changed sirice the previous flood study. Engineering factors
.. that may have contributed to any changes will also be identified.
e " Areas of Mitigation Interest: Areas of mitigation interest identifies areas where
" conditions may contribute to the severity of the flood hazard and associated
- losses. These include areas with a history of flood claims, hydraulic or other
structures that contribute to backwater impacts, and areas experiencing land use
change or development. _

20132012

Page2




Risk MAP Charter for the Carsoﬁ-R_ﬁrer Watershed 3

FEMA Resources to Support Flood Mitigation Actions:

FEMA encourages floodplain management activities that exceed minimum requirements
through programs such as the Community Rating System (CRS). The watershed
currently has two CRS communities, Douglas County and Carson City. FEMA also
offers Hazard Mitigation Assistance grant programs that fund eligible mitigation
activities which reduce disaster losses and: .protect life and property from future disaster
damage. Information on these progra ; along with other related State
Federal, and association Tesources thro _

Commumcatmn and Coordmatl :

FEMA, CWSD, and partners wi ;_together to estabhsh a consistent flow of
information about project status, timelines, and next steps *In addition to regular status
reports, CWSD will coordinate with the counties, cities, and other entities in the '
watershed. CWSD will establish a Flood Mapping Project Management Team (PMT)
that will meet on a regular basis to ensure that the goals-of this charter are 1mp]emented
in a coordinated manner. - The PMT includes representatives from all counties, cities, -

Federal, State, and other ngvermnental entities throughout the watershed, CWSD 1S'-also o

the coordmatmg entltyff "_r the Carson River Coalition (CRC), a large Watersh' d-wide -
“R b rtunities to review and comment on
mapping programs and the implementation of the hvmg tiver concept as descnbed in‘the
adopted Carson River Watershed Regional Floodplam Management Plan,

FEMA will work with Alpine, Douglas Carson City, Lyon, and Churchill Counties to
erthance their ability to communicate flood hazards and associated risk to people who live
and work within the watershed.

Specific meetings for each phase of mapping include:

o PMT Meetings: These meetings will focus on setting project expectations, roles '

and responsibilities of the PMT, and on validating and gathering data.
- e "Community Coordination Officer {(CCO) Meeting/Open House: Local _
- officials will be provided with FIS and FIRM information and requirements for
~map adoption. Meetings will be closely followed by open house meetings where

-FEMA, CWSD, and local community officials will present project results to. local ‘

citizens and explain the impact that the results will have on development . :j:: .
planning, and flood insurance.

‘& Flood Study Review Meeting: Local officials, State, Federal Tnbal and non-
governmental entities will be provided the opportunity to.view and. comment on
drafts of the engineering analyses and flood risk data. This‘meetir
include highlights of hazard mitigation planning and Impiementatlon of best
management practlces to reduce ﬂood ha.zards in the watershed '

Roles and Responsibilities:

This Risk MAP Charter represents a good—falth effort by all parties to share data,
communicate findings, and plan mitigation activities to protect the communities within
the watershed from flood risk. It is not legally binding nor does it preclude a community
from participating in the FIRM appeal process. The parties listed in the signature block

. Page3 S . 271312012




R_.isk MAP Charter for the Carson River Watershed

- below agrée to collaborate on flood hazard identification aCtIV]tIGS risk analysm products,
and will consult with each other to integrate contributions into flood hazard identification
efforts. It is intended to provide a common “Good Neighbor” strategy to address flood
hazards and increase resilience within the watershed.

FEMA and CWSD will provide local officials with regular updates on project status, the
data and products described above, and outreach guidance to include local awareness of
flood risk. These efforts will better enable local communities to take action to reduce .
risk, through the adoption of the maps, development or enhancement of mitigation plans,
and increased communication with citizens to inform them of their risk and the steps that
they can take to mitigate that risk.

Alpine, Douglas, Carson City, Lyon, and Churchill Counties, and other entities will
provide input and updates throughout the study process to verify data and ensure that the
information accurately represents their communities.

. CWSD, FEMA, and local ofﬁc1als agree to communicate as needed over the course of

*each project outlined in the mapping program to review project milestones, outcomes,

~ and impacts. CWSD and the PMT will meet at least twice a year to discuss, plan, and

coordinate all mapping program projects.

If for any reason an entity who is a signatory to this document wishes to withdraw their
. part101pat10n ﬁom the Risk MAP Cha.rter they may do so at any time by subrmttmg a

Page 4 2/13/2012




Risk MAP Charter for the Carson River Watershed

: We, the undersigned, agree to work togeth_. _o&mplement this Risk MAP Charter for the
" Carson River Watershed to the best of our: ab111t1es and w1th1n our legal authorities and
delegations. = :

Chuck Roberts, Chairman C Sally Ziolk@fwski : '
Carson Water Subconservancy District FEMA Region itigati Isi

Date Signed: ;g! MZ 12— Date Signed:

Alicia Kirchner, Chief . G R FEkEnodinaRy Jason King, State
USACE Sacramento District, - - .». - Dlvmon of W urces = Engineer
‘Planning Division o Dt ' (7— 1 -
Date Signed: _37§={2 R AN
W; o EOJ/ZE’K
, ' Henry Skip Veatch, Chairman
Nevada Department of Public Safety Board of Supervisors |
~ State Hazard Mmgatlon Office A}pme County, Cahforma :
/i | W
Lee Bénner, Chairman " Bob Crowgll, Mayor . |
Board of Commissioners SRR Carson City, Nevada

Douglas County, Nevada
'"Date81gned 3 "-}/{Q

~ Date Signed: 2-/ \H /3—0 12

Chuck’Robérts, Chairman - o .Nonnan Fr@%ﬁmm‘an

Board of Commissioners -+ o Board of Commissioners

Lyon County, Nevada - L _'*Churchlll County, Nevada

Date S1gned 3133 / - Pate Slgned_ Feb;_uary 15, 2012

Page 5




Risk MAP Charter for the Ca_r_sg_n Rlver Watershed

‘Kenneth Parr Area Manager
U.S. Bureau of Reclamatlon
Lahontan Regional Offi

Date Signed: & ‘2" / ///a

Ernest Schank, Bresident of the Board of
Directors, Truckee-Carson Irrigation - .
District

' DateSIgned ﬁ‘( //';;‘Zol:L

ﬁyn %/MW%

Jon Mlttelstadt Meteorologlst in Charge

Admlmstratlon i_: e
National Weather Servme Reno, NV
DateS1gned ‘f 26 QO/Q L

Page 6

4/16/2012




Table 4.7-1

SA-1 Adopt Living River approach to retain river system in a more natural state that allows the river to | All entities na
access its floodplain. Recognize that not all areas of the tiver system can be allowed to migrate
freely due to special designation (i.e., Superfund area) and/or existing infrastructure.

SA-2 Adopt a good neighbor floodplain management policy that recognizes that actions by one All entities nfa
property owner can impact adjacent and downstream property owners.

SA-3 Floodplzin and flood hazards skould be considered with open space program objectives when Local and triba! governments, | n/a
selecting acquisition targets and establishing management strategies for open spaces. NGOs, CWSD

SA-4 [nvestigate areas where the implementation of stream zone buffers would provide multi- Local and tribal governments | p/a
objective benefits for river system and downstream communities.

SA-5 Plan for and mitigate cumulative effects of watershed urbanization. All entities n/a

SA-6 Manage development in special flood hazard areas and other flood hazard areas (those known Local and tribal governments; | p/a
flood hazard areas not included on most current FIRMs) to provide public safety and protect the | CWSD
natural functions and benefits of floodptain lands.

SA-7 Retain lands that provide floodplain storage and maintain or restore connection of river witk Local and tribal governments, | Question [;
floodplain through land acquisition, conservation easements, Iocal open space programs, TDR NGOQs, landowners SNPLMA; NGOs;
and PDR Programs, and other protection methods. local governments

SA-8 Encourage the incorporation of low impact development principles into sub-division Laocal governments na
developiment proposals for floodplain lands to decrease run-off and minimize loss of floodplain
storage capacity.

Carson River Watershed Floodplain Management Plan

Page 52




e S

e

R
Kentify and promote options for lan

i

Federal, State and

SA-9 downer incentive programs, such as floodplain leasing Local & tnbal governments,
program and conservation easements that provide compensation to landowners providing NGOs, CWSD, CRC, lacal sources,
ecosystem services, landowners Question 1,
SNPLMA
SA-10 Promote and utilize best management practices as a means of protecting riparian habitat. All entities n/a
Higher Regulatory Standards
5A-11 implement or enhance county ordinances that include floodplain protection as a purpose, account | Local governments nfa
for the loss of floodplain storage volume, and mitigate losses through a variety of methods.
SA-12 Investigate feasibility of implementing additionat measures that go beyond minimum FMEA Local governments
requirements.
SA-13 Develop model watershed floodplain management ordinance language that can be adopted by CWSD, CRC, local na
counties to provide watershed-wide consistency. governments
Flood Data Information and Maintenance
SA-14 Secure funding for and conduct watershed-wide unsteady state modeling to identify flood water | Local & state governments, NDEP, CWSD, other
storage requirements and to look at the cumuiative effects of watershed development, CWSD local & state entities
SA-15 Support FEMA’s Map Modernization Program and encourage FEMA 1o update FIRMs with Local governments na
current and future conditions. Significant verification of topography and other variables should | FEMA
be conducted prior to release of draft FIRMs. CWESD
SA-16 CWSD continue fo participate in FEMA’s Cooperating Technical Partner Program. CWSD, FEMA n/a
SA-17 Strive for up-to-date ard consistent data collection and maintenance to include updating of flood | CWSD Federal, state and
studies where necessary and conduct studies for significant water courses and alluvial fan areas local grant sources
that have not been analyzed. This data should be used to update FEMA maps and fill data paps. | Local governments
Complete delineation of the flopdway throughout river system and incorporate into FIRMs.
SA-18 Flood studies and maps should be updated after significant flooding events. Lacal governments All grant sources

Carson River atershed Floodplain Management Plan

Page 53




Elevation Reference Marks (ERM) shouid be permanent monumenis and updated on a regular

SA-19 Local gdvemments
basis.
SA-20 ERMs should be in the same datum as base flood elevations on FIRMs or a datum that is readily | Local governments nfa
convertible to FIRM datum. Maove towards FEMA recommended NAVD 88 datum,
SA-21 A master list of ERMs should be developed, maintained, and made available to interested parties. | Local governments; CWSD nfa
SA-22 Photo-Monitoring program {on-the-ground and aerial) should be developed and coordinated ona | CWSD na
watershed level to decument flooding and floed hazards in a consistent matter.
Channel Migration and Bank Erosion Monitoring
SA-23 Known and projected hazard areas including channel migration hazards should continue to be Conservation Districts, Federal, state and
documented and updated information should be incorporated into planning processes. CWSD, NDEP, WNRC&D, local resources
FEMA, local & tribal
governments
SA-24 LiDAR and/or aerial photography (on a watershed level) should be conducted on a 5-year basis, | CWSD, NDEP, CVCD, Federal, state and
or as needed, to provide updated information on channel movement and floodplain condition. DVCD, WNRCED, NGOs, local grant sources
BOR, local gavemments
5A-25 Establish building set-backs in flood hazard areas, where appropriate, to reduce severe hazards Local and state entities n/a
from channel migration.
SA-26 Channel cross-sectional surveys should be conducted and well documented to track long term CWSD, conservation districts, | Federal, state and
changes in river channel. WNRC&D local grant sources
SA-27 Tdentify unstable stream banks and areas with high potential for erosion. Conservation districts, nfa
WNRC&D, NDEP, CWSD
SA-28 Promote the use of non-structural, bic-engineering (soft-engineering wlilizing natural materials) | All entities n/a
techniques in river restoration projects in combination with other proven methods.
i

Page 54




o

. Update the 1996 Fluvial Geomorphic Assessment.

s

3 W”S“fiﬁg
)

WNRCAD, CWSD, NDEP,

SA-29 Federal, state and
conservation districts focal grant sources
Floodplain and Flood Hazard Qutreach and Education
SA-30 Develop watershed-wide outreach and education program about floodplain importance and CWSD, CRC Federal, state and
flooding hazards. local grant sources
SA-31 Brochures should be developed for distribution on a watershed level with consistent messages CWSD, CRC na
and information for the general pubtic,
SA-32 CWSED website will provide information on the Regional Floodplain Management Pian and CWSD nfa
provide emergency contact informaticn. Local governments and other entities can link to this
website to increase distribution.
SA-33 Annual Flood Awareness Week will be established with the objective of providing information CWSD, CRC, Local & tribal nia
about flooding and flood hazards to the general public. governments
SA-34 Special Events, River Work Days, and other outreach opportunities should be utilized to help CRC, WNRC&D and other Federal, state and
raise awareness of flooding hazards and importance of floodplains. local & tribal entities local grant sources
Reduce Infrastructure Impacts
SA-35 Investigate epportunities to remove existing restrictions, such as berms, to allow flood waters to | Lecal & tribal gevernment Federal, state and
access floodplain. organizations, Jandowners lecal sources
SA-36 Limit the use of future management measures such as dams, levees, and floodwalls. Local & tribal government na
organizations, landowners,
SA-37 Design future bridges and roads to protect floodplain, accommodate and not restrict changing NDOT, local governments Federal, siate and
Tiver course, and minimize back up of flood water. local sources
SA-38 Investigate opportunities to enhance grade control strugtures Local governments, CWSD n/a

Carson River Watershed Floodplain Management Plan




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approve bid award for Siphon and Waterline Air Release Valve Project

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve bid award to Coon’s Construction in the amount of
$205,012.76 less an immediate negative Change order of minus $-27,969.26 for a total
award of $177,043.50.

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin
Department: Public Works Telephone: 847-0958

4. Staff summary: Storey County Public Works and the Storey County Water System have been
working with the County’s Engineer of Record, Farr West Engineering on a pipeline
improvement project for the purchase and installation of automated air release valves to be
installed on strategic locations along the Siphon and pipeline from Lakeview Estates to
Virginia City. Engineering and design were completed in July 2013. The project was put
out to public bid on August 2, 2013. Bids were received and publicly opened on August 22,
2013. Bids ranged from a high of $334,008 to a low of $205,012.76. The lowest
responsible bidder was Coon’s Construction. In order to bring the low bid within range of
the project estimate of $175,000 - $178,000, a change order needed to be issued reducing
the sites from 18 to 15, saving $27,969.26.

5. Supporting materials:
ALL ATTACHED:
A. Siphon Bid Tabulation
B. Engineer’s Estimate
C. Coon’s Construction Bid Documents
D. Farr West Engineering — Letter of Recommendation of Award

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: Infrastructure Capital Projects
76 - ~c0
% Comptroller 0%0-070 - SHYOT7

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney




8. Reviewed by:
mﬁ Department Head Department Name: Storey County Water System

Mp County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
SV B

Agenda Item No. |4




61°GS8'GST 8£'905°90% 00'800°vEE_ Joo"00v‘9/Z [00°000°80Z }9/'zT0°G0Z [:ie0L1 uo1INIISUO) pig aseg

09'ZEEY 0070022 00°0£6'0 looooo's  Jooroos'z 00°009'C 51 T

08'v/0'S 09°978'v 00°9vE's loooos's _oo.omm,v 61°800's X T {313 “JusA Jan0] ‘saxog ‘¢
GZ°980'9 05" L£9°E 00°0L0'1Y 000009 looseo's  loorooos S 1

logrzo's 09928t |oorave’s 00°00£'s 00'059't 6T°€00'S S1 1 {'232 ‘3UBA "13A0D 'saX0q ‘¢
SZ'190'9 05'£8S'E _oo.onoﬁ 000009 00's29'c  Joo00S’E | 1

log veo's log9zs'y locrave's 00'00E'S 00'059t 6T°£00'S S1 1 {7219 ‘JuUBA IBADD ‘SBXO]
ST'55H'S looszr's lootsss 000009 000542 jo0Qos’s S 1

18°641'S Z9VLE'S _oo.qmmﬁ Q0°00E"s 00052 7 661’ 1 T {232 ‘JuaA Jan0d ‘saxoq ‘i
foo'g99'y foo0og'z foozzo's 000009 00008'T  {00008°C $1 T

08'vL0'S 09'928'y 00'9vE’S 00°00£°S 00°0S9'% 6T'E00'S 51 T (*339 JuBA J2n0D ‘sax0q ‘¢
00 8TL'Y 00002 00'zL08 000009  Jo000%'T 00'000'€ 51 1

08'£0's 099287 00'9vE’s 00'00g's _oo.omo.¢ 6T'E00°S S 1 (018 ‘3UBA JBA0D ‘sax0q t
05'008°S 05'LE9°E 00°'LE6'6 000009 |ooszoe 00'009°E 51 T

OT'££b°S 0Lv62'S 00°'E#8’S looroog’s  loooot's OF 68%'S 51 1 {319 ‘JUaA “13A0D ‘saxoq ‘(
00 7b0’S 00°5.8'7 00'927'8 looooo's  loooszz Jooaons s1 1

8 LZVS 69°68C°S 00°Z£8'S loorooe’s looroot's LE6L7'S 51 T {7319 “JuUBA JBA0D "SaX0( 't
05'8E6°L 00°969°S 00°Z98'7T _oo.ooms _oo.ooo.m 00'Z65’s 1 T

16'695'8 P SrE'S 006868 foocos'e  Joooar's 88'0£5°8 51 T ('313 '1UBA JBA0D ‘S3X0Q 19}
SLAZT'L 00°9E6' 00'6ET'TT foor00s', 00’008t o020 $1 1

£6°695'8 Pi SYES 00°686'8 000098 00'091'8 88068 51 1 {~339 "JuU9A 19402 ‘saX0Q ‘18-
SZ°S509 loo99s's looest’s 0070052 00006'c  looesa’s S1 I

£6'695'8 b She's _oo.mmm‘w 00°009'8 000918 8R°0£S°8 51 I {1233 "JUBA “1BA0D ‘SBXO] 19
ST'0EE9 loogos e loossr's 00'009°8 00006t Joozeo's 5] 1

{6'762'8 i GPE'S foo's26's 000054 00°091'8 88'0E5°8 51 T ("212 "JUBA JBA02 ‘SBX0Q 19}
00°TEF'S 00'996'E 00°Z6T'6 000098 00'006°E 00'ZE0'Y S I

/60628 b SHE'R 006868 0070054 Joco9t’s 88'0ES'8 51 T {'218 "JUSA "JBAOJ ‘SAXOQ 13]!
00 IEP'9 00°996°E 00'Z61°6 000098 |oo'00s's 0020y ] T

£6'162'8 by SYE'S 00'686'8 00°005°2 _oo.oﬁ.w 88'0£5'8 57 T {*219 ‘3UBA JBA0D '59X0Q ‘13
G4 126'L 00°969'S 00'6TLTT 00°009'8 _oo.ooo@ 00°'Z6E°S Sl 1

L6'P6T'8 b SrE'S 00'686'8 loogos’s _oo.omﬂw BR'0ES'Q 51 T {'032 ‘JUaA “19A0D ‘sEX0( 13|
00°'T£09 00'9TLE 00'Z61'6 _oo.ooms _oo.oo,q.m 00'ZE0'v Y| 1

£6'695'8 T ShES 00°686'8 looo09's _oo.omﬂ.m 88058 7 1 (2318 "Ju3A U9A0D ‘SBX0Q 3|
6Z'199'9 00985y 00°/66'6 loocos'z  |oooosw 00°Z/8'F 51 T

16'695'] P SVER 006868 00'009°'8 00'09T'8 88°0£5'8 S1 T {"218 ‘1usA ‘4an02 ‘saxoq 13
05°669'S 00919t 00'050'8 0070052 oooov'e  loozes's 51 T

£[6'695'8 P SYES 00'686'8 00°009'8 00°091'8 88'0ES'® S1 T {1013 JUDA “JOAOI ‘SIXO0( 13|
S/ERL0T 0S°L8F'ST 00°000°£Z 00'000's2  JOO'SLEZE 004 $1 T




FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

© August 26, 2013

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director
Storey County Public Works

P.O. BOX 435

100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV 89440

Subject: VIRGINIA CITY SIPHON PIPELINE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (AIR
RELEASE VALVES), Project No. ST-2013-298 - RECOMMENDATION OF
AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Dear Mike,

As you are aware, bids for the Virginia City Siphon Pipeline Improvement Project were opened
on August 22, 2013 and Coons Construction LLC was determined to be the lowest responsible
and responsive bidder. Coons bid submittal was reviewed and was found to meet all project
requirements. References were checked and found to be very positive; they come highly
recommended.  Furthermore, Coons Construction meets the qualifications presented in
Instructions to Bidders, Article 3, of the contract documents which is to say that together with

- their subcontractors they have been engaged in this general class of work and have a history of

completing projects successfully. They and their subcontractors are licensed and bonded.

Based on the above information, we recommend the Storey County Commissioners award to
Coons Construction the base bid for an amount of $205,012.76 less an immediate negative
Change Order of $-27,969.26 for a total award amount of $177,043.50. The budget for
construction is $177,043.50 which leaves no money for contingencies. Near the end of the
project, if further funds are required, we will negotiate with Coons Construction and request
additional funds be approved by the County Commissioners. As of now, we do not expect any
construction change orders and believe Coons Construction will work with Storey County Public
Works to adequately address any concerns without increase to the contracted amount.

Should you need any further information, please let me know.

Sincerely,
Farr West Engineering

/ /
uck Reno, P.E.
Project Manager

5442 LONGLEY LANE, SUITE B « RENO NV 89511  {775) 851-4788 ¢ FAX (775) 851-0766




Change Order

No. 1
Date of tssuance:  August 26, 2013 Effective Date: August 26, 2013
Project: Virginta City Siphon Pipeline owner: Storey Co, Public Works Owner's Contract No,; ST-2013-298
Improvements (A Release Valves)

conract: Virginia City Siphon Pipeline Improvements (Air Release Valves)  [pate of contract:

contracter: COONS Construction LLC Engineer's Project No.: 0564

The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:
Description: Remove Bid ltem 12 & 13 (Site-G) -$12,562.88

Remove Bid item 28 & 29 (Site-D1) -$7,803.19

Remove Bid ltem 36 & 37 (Site-H1) -$7,603.19

Total amount removed to meet available funding: -$27,969.26

Attachments: {List decuments supporting change):

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:
Criginal Contract Price: Criginal Contract Times: ] Working days [ Calendar days
Substantial compietion (days ar date); 80 .
$ 205,012.78 Ready for final payment (days or date): g0
[Increase] [Decrease] fram previously approved Change  [Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change Orders
Orders No, N/A to No, N/A . No.__ N/A to No, N/A
Substantial compfetion (days): NIA
$ N/A, . Ready for final payment (days); N/A
Contract Price priar fo this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
Substantial completion (days or date); 80
$205.012.76 Ready for finai payment (days or date); 20
finerease] [Decrease] of this Change Qrder: {Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order;
Substantial completion (days or date): 6]
$ -27,969.28 Ready for final payment (days or date}: 0
Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: Confract Times with all approved Change Orders:
Substantial completion (days o date): 80
$ 177.043.50 Ready for final payment {days or date): a0
RIW;Z' % ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED:
By e sy By: By:
" Engineer (Authorized Signature) Owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor {Authorized Signatyre)
Date: 3/3 5 // 5 Date: Date:
Appraved by Funding Agency (if applicable): Date;
EJCDC No. C-941 (2002 Edition) Page 1 of 1

Prepared by the Engineers' Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed by the
Associated General Contractors of America and the Construction Specifications Institute,




Q@% ﬂs\\a\mﬁw
repre o ooy d
S 1 X

UL MOJaq 238309y

Alopd [eaowsy

ol <oory aiMU

Eifd1/ 2 2

i
&) #9900 4> 49 102'90] 4 m\_m\a\ bz
o TP dwﬁh\ (g 2
05 E0'LLT 9£°ZE0'S07 210
00'884'89 o0'0TE'BL gowep/qaw+ioqe)
05'SSL'80T 9L'264'92T sued

6L E00'S b6 L% + srE00's
“loocos'e loooose

oa 1708

5T°€00S bbbz + fsreoos

00'005°E

ESCTh ¥

PT66P"S

A N A T

Joooos'e o0r003's i
ov 657’ o ek +lowesy's
100'000° 00°0C0'E
16LY'S TEehbr [iesers
loozses Joozeg’s
Hilsgoes's 2% h-~+[sgoEsa
il O0'Z20's b0'2L0's
i 33'0£5'8 "h i |szocss
o0 on°zE9’e loozeae
88" 88'085'8 9% b Hewocs's
o 00'2E9'E 00'2£9°E

2 B 95k [sgoes's 95HOVE %z ,.
%@@@@mﬁﬁﬁ g o0 2k
s bt

Aja|s|algge v

{218 "lusA ' 1an03 sax0q .n_om o3 ..N ANV ,T) S

E n.udn

T

T {"319 ‘Jan “1aa0d saxcd ‘dois diod 7 .>m< W) Siepaiely To-ans| ve

T ACQR 485 £f |
T (1238 "Juan tanod ‘saxaq "doys d103 ,7 ‘AdY 2} SlepRien E.E_Im .lm.m...
T Joqe] 13-345% TE

T

(/033 *JU3A *15A00 '53X09 JAIOPIOM ‘NS 9 ANY ,0) SIPUAIEIN 13115

e H-a48

N2 WA ._O)ﬂu M.GXE ngOﬁ_N—S i) ) >z¢. ..mu S|eLISIBIA] H-335)

.ﬁ-

T A 303 SonB SIOR

10qe7 4-231g|

51 1 _SS 12-8us) sz
51 1 [213 “JuBA “sano ‘saxoq 'deys 6o 2 ‘Ady .z} siesiep T-eus] oz
S T
St I {1213 “Juaa Janad “savoq ‘dons €103 ,2 ‘ANY ,T) Slebotery Ta-ausE vZ
51 1 Joqe) Ty-ausf £z
51 1 [ "t “3a03 'sax0q "dols dios .z 'AUY 2] sleusieny Tv-ays| zz
5] 1 JOqes 3-a)i5| EZ
51 T {18 “Judn “J8A0D 'SOX0Q 1B[OPIOM 'ASH,9 AUV 0} sleuiew ¥-a1s| o7
) I Joqey r-ays) 61
51 1 {919 JU9A “J9ADD ‘5aX0G “JAJOPIRM ‘AD 9. AUV 9] SIEMSIRW r-ous] 8T
51 1 08T |95

51 T

k13 T

S 1

e
00°ZE0' 51 I iI
25k + [anioes's A5'holE 5 I {915 UBA 3103 8300 ‘IR10DIRM "AD 8 "N ,0) Siepieiy -ousk gr
00'Z68's §1 T Joqe] 3-9us| 6
23085'8 25 b legnes'e G5 hoLE 51 I {238 3uan 43800 “sox0q 19j0p1aM ‘AD .9 'AYY L9) Steriate F-aus| ¢
00°2ZE0Y oozEn’y 0 I sogerg-ans| 4
BE'OES'S 35 h+ [egoese 95 BOVE 51 1 {1933 "ian *Jano3 'saxan BIOPEM 'AD O ANV 0} Sienelen a-aus| 9
loozeay 51 T sagen >-aus] g
%8 ha lgeoess 9% O E T 51 T [*212 juaa UenoD ‘soxogq I9(0PRM AD 5 AHY ,5) SlEUSIEN Daus) §
bozER's 51 I Joqey g-augt
25'h 4+ lagoes'y i 51 1 {1213 uan san03 senoq “3jopiam ‘A0 .0 AUV O] Sienslen g-aus] T
[ 00°002'] m._ H UONeTIGowS[ pue uchezqoNg 1
m._ oy y ,mu_,b”u | Mmmmw, | 3_ ] : " uopdpsssy .
..m ,.,,ﬁ‘ = u ; su06) m._mwc_ucm s | A :a ; ndpsaq

ETOT ‘ZZ 1SN9NY G_E...._amih aig.

mucmEgo..aE_ supdid | osa__m >u_u m_:_m A




BID FORM

Project Identification: Virginia City Sipkon Pipeline Improvements

Storey County Public Works, State of Nevada PWP Number: ST-2013-298
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pag
ATHIEIE 1 — Bid RECIPIGIE ... ... ceererescericsenmeac st seeessom st s b ts s ces e e s st e me 18t £ae s an a8 48424 re e et e emene e eeesaseereneren
Article 2 — Bidder’s AcKTOWIEAZEMIEIES «.....ou.voe e reemere et seesemeeseasseseeseen .
Article 3 — Bidder’s REPIESBIMALIONS . .....ccccoveueieeerreeereserearsnssess e sse s s sessesseesses eesesssessesessssss s sostrees ases e sesenssmessseresoeeeeseneeesaver s seens
Article 4 — Bidder’s CertifICalION ... ecnicerreceemresneceonesissenssss s sssresssssss s sssssessestss s sees et seesems e esnes
Article 5 — Basis 0f BId ... nssssssssssiese ot beeees e seeseeees
Article 6 — Time of Completion.........
Article 7 — Attachments to This Bid..

Article 8 ~ Defined Terms ......
Article 9 — Bid Submittal .......cecevririeiriseecemsnnssisnsnnns

= TRV RC I R

ARTICLE 1 - BID RECIPIENT

This Bid is submitted to:
Farr West Engineering
Virginia City Siphon Pipeline Improvements
5442 Longley Lane, Suite A
Reno, Nevada 89511

1.01 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with Owner in the form
included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bidding Documents for the

prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding
Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

201 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation those dealing
with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to aceeptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for
such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of Owner,

ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that;

A. Bidder has examined and carefuily studied the Bidding Documents, other related data identified in the Bidding
Documents, and the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged:

Addendum No, Addendum Date
| g~e-13
2z ¥-19-13

3 3213 @ jOyFam

B. Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that
may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work,

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC, All rights reserved.
Page 1 of 7




Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and
performance of the Work.

Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to
the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating fo existing surface or subsurface struchures at the Site
{except Underground Facilities) that have been identified in $C-4.02 as containing reliable "technical data,” and (2)
reports and drawings of Hazardous Environmental Condmons if any, at the Site that have been identified in SC-
4.06 as containing reliable "technical data."

Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder; information commonly known to contractors doing
business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits fo the Site; the Bidding
Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the
effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work;
(2} the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder,
including applying the specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly
required by the Bidding Documents; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs.

Based on the information and observations referred to in Paragraph 3.01.E above, Bidder does not consider that
further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this
Bid for performance of the Work at the price(s) bid and within the times required, and in accordance with the other
terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents,

Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the
Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder has
discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder,

The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions
for the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted.

Bidder will submit written evidence of its authority to do business in the State or other jurisdiction where the
Project is located not Jater than the date of its execution of the Agreement.

For a Unit Price Bid, the CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the cost of the work and materials ancillary or
necessary to the Bid liems are included with each appropriate Bid Itern and that the OWNER will not pay extra for
work and/or materials which are ancillary or necessary to each Bid Item.

ARTICLE 4 - BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

4.01 Bidder certifies that:

A,

This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not
submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group, association, organization, or
corporation,

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid;
Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or.entity to refrain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for the Contract. For
the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value likely to influence
the action of a public official in the bidding process;

EJCDC C-4140 Sugpested Bid Form for Constrnetion Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EYCDC. All rights reserved.
Page2of 7




2. “fraudulent practice” means an intenticnal misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process
to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or {c) to deprive

Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the
knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and

4. *coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to
influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.

ARTICLE 5 — BASIS OF BID

5.01

Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following price(s):

Desci o : = jant Inits:-| Price’ |~ Total
1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 3_. F00.d B, 700.00
Site-B Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
vent, etc.) s _|8,53088,530.88
Site-B Labor _ 1S i3,83z.00|3, 832, 00
Site-C Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
vent, etc.) 1 LS ' 5. 88 3,5349'9
5 Site-C Labor 1 LS |4 g7z.co|t @t 00
Site-D Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
& | vent, etc.) LS #5328 5.530.86
7 Site-D Labor 1 LS W.o3z.eddo52.00
Site-E Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
8 vent, etc.) 1S | 853089 & 53-.89
g Site-E Labor LS |5,397.00|5,392.00
Site-F Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
10 | vent, etc.) 1 s |8 530% ,530.89
11 | Site-F Labor 1 LS [4032.00l4032 .00
Site-G Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover, :
12 | vent, etc)) LS 8:,53«:.3_5' 2,570 .55
13 | Site-G Labor LS Hoxz.00 |4 65200
Site-H Materials {6" ARV, &" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
14 | vent, etc) L5 |7.53as5y] %.530.58
15 | Site-H Labor 1 LS 3£ 32.00|8,632.00
Site-] Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
16 | vent, etc.) 1 LS |9530.48 | §530. 98
17 | Site-l Labor 1 LS  3(:32.00)3,L37.00
. 2

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 Nationzl Sociefy of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. AH rights reserved.

Paged of 7 |




Site-] Materials {6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
18 | vent, etc.) 1 LS _I€.530.84] §530.46
19 | Site-i Labor 1 LS |50 ftec (5072.00
Site-K Materials (6" ARV, 6" GV, weldolet, boxes, cover,
20 | vent, etc) 1 LS £ 53089 5,530.98
21 | Site-K Labor 1 ) 5”'“ 3392.c0
Site-Al Materials (2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent, § 2
22 |etc) 1 LS __i5u79.3p | 5¥79-32
23 | Site-Al Labor 1 LS e o | T 000,00
Site-B1 Materials (2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent, &
24 | etc) 1 LS |§,¥51¥0 |5, 989.5%0
25 | Site-B1 Labor 1 LS |3 Loo.co |3, b00.00
Site-C1 Materials (2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent,
26 | etc.) 1 LS [300%0%] 5 008, 1%
27 | Site-C1 Labor 1 LS [3,000.00 |3 0o0.00
Site-D1 Materials (2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent,
28 | etc) 1 L5 |5e3.19 | So03.01
29 Site-01 Labor 1 LS {L%e.00 \Zgoo.00
Site-E1 Materials {2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent,
30 | etc)) 1 LS__|5499.2¢ | 5499.24
31 | Site-Ellabor 1 LS |3, S00.04|3 S00.0¢
Site-F1 Materials (2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent,
32 |ete.) 1 LS {§pe3.14 | §woiif
33 Site-F1 Labor 1 LS Foo.e0 |7 ,00
Site-G1 Materials (2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent,
34 | etc) 1 S {5003.19 Jee.|9
35 | Site-G1 Labor 1 LS [36oe.valZ boo.os
Site-H1 Materials (2" ARV, 2" corp stop, boxes, cover, vent,
36 | etc.) 1 LS |5ee3.it | 550311
37 | Site-H1 Labor 1 1S |Z beo.co0lZ, Lot Do
' Base Bid Construction Total: |20%, 01z, #»
TOTAL BASE BID PRICE-$. Z. O5, 01%. . P& (without alternates)
$ 70 hordred Cive Thousend e ly ollars _and S;-Vrﬂ‘\lj 5% Lents,
In Words

PLEASE NOTE: The Owner will award the base bid (Bid Schedule) to the overall lowest responsive bidder excluding
alternates. The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids and remove items as needed to meet available funds.

Unit Prices have been computed in accordance with Paragraph 11.03.B of the General Conditions.

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engtneers for EJCDC. Al rights reserved.
Page 4 of 7




Bidder acknowledges that estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids,
and final payment for alf unit price Bid items wili be based on actual quantities, determined as provided in the Contract
Documents.

The requirements of Nevada Revised States (NRS) shall apply to this project. The BIDDER is responsible for
compliance with all applicable statues. These statutes include, but are not limited to:

A, NRS 338.0117  Quantification to receive preferences in bidding,

B. NRS 338.020  Hourly and daily rate of wages must not be less than prevailing wage in county.

C. NRS 338080  Exemptions

D. NRS 338.141  Bids to include certain information concerning subcontractors; requirements for substitution
of named subcontracts.

E. NRS 338.147  Award of contract to contractor who submits best bid.

ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION

6.01 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for final payment in
accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions on or before the dates or within the number of calendar
days indicated in the Agreement.

6.02  Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.

ARTICLE 7 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID

7.01 The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:

>

Required Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond (EYCIXC No. C-430) or Certified Check (circle type of security
provided); (0430-1 & -2); ‘

List of Sub Contractors, 5% and 1% (440-1, 2);

List of Suppliers (may be included with List of Sub Contractors);

List of Project References {may be included with Qualifications Statement);

Evidence of authority to do business in the State or jurisdiction of the Project;

Contractor’s License No. {may be combined with another attachment);

Contractors Qualifications Statement with supporting data (450-1);

Signed Compliance Statement, refer to specific equal opportunity requirernents set forth in paragraph 18.10 of the
General Conditions (RD 400-6, EEQ) (0460-1);

I Signed Cenification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier Covered
Transactions (AD-1048) (0470-1);

TOMEmUOw

K. Signed Contractors Waiver of Interest and Contracfors Waiver of Bidder Preference (490-1, 2).
boed ractors-Qualifications.Statement-Rroject-Gompleted-&=Rrojectsinprogress(490-1 .

o : F——Signed-Rb-Instragtion T940=05 Exhibit-A=1-Certification-for-Contrasts-Grantsrand-Toans-(0480-3);

FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL ITEMS IN THIS ARTICLE MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF THE
BID.

ARTICLE 8 - DEFINED TERMS

8.01 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instractions to Bidders, the General
Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

EJCDC C-410 Sugpested Bid F orm for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2047 National Society of Professional Engineers for EICDC, All rights reserved.
Page5of7




ARTICLE 9 - BID SUBMITTAL
9.01 This Bid is submitted by:
If Bidder is:
An Individual

Name (typed or printed):

By:

(Individual’s signature)

Doing business as:

A Partnership

Partnership Name:

By:

(Signature of general partmer - attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

A Corporation
Corporation Name: C oonsS ch_n f)‘_?"roc-n"fo A LG

State of Incorporation: /uc Ve de

Type (Geperal Business, Professi_onai, Service, Limited Liability):d. .- e J / 3152’%
/ e Yy . B

By: -‘_/;" (XA J" L e
(Signature -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed): ‘I}_ n-e , F. C:sbf’-) %
Titte: _/Manaaiqs Member

.
Attes J

Date of Qualification to do business in _[State where Project is located]  is 5/ i 1109,

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EYCDC, Al vights veserved,
Page 6 of 7




A Joint Venture

Name of Joint Venture:

First Joint Venturer Name: (SEAL)

By:

(Signature of first joint venture parmmer -- attach evidence of authority fo sign}

Name (typed or printed):

Title:

Second Joint Venturer Name: (SEAL)

By:

{Signature of second joint venture partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Natme (typed or printed):

Title:

{Each joint venturer must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership, and corporation
that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.)

Bidder's Business Address | 3 @Q‘POnﬁo dr. sote B
Mocnd Hovse  abg 89706

Phone No. 7 25~ 246 14 bo FaxNo. Z75 ~ 246 - 1 L1
E-mail We 5 @ CCO_nS . bJZ

SUBMITTED on Z.Z. Ajos# ,2003 .

State Contractor License No.. 35064 €37/ Y5A . [if applicable]

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracis
Copyright ® 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC, All rights reserved.
) Page7 of 7 )




BID BOND #COONS-13
: PENAL SUM FORM

BID BOND

Ay singlar referemce o Bidder, Bunsty, Owner or afher jrry shall be considered pioral where applicable.

BEDDER fdiame gnd Addrecc):
COONS CONSTRUCTION, LLC

13 AFFONSQ DRIVE, STE. B, CARSON CiTY, NV 89706

SURETY {Neme and ddddvess of Princimt Plape of Buskess):
NORTH AMERICAN SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY
100 Pine St., Ste. 2200, San Francisco, CA 94111

OWNER, (Nome oand Addbressy
STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
100 TOLL RD., VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440

BED
Bid Boe Dater AUGUST 22, 2013
Proscription (Pryect Nopit and Include Lodians:
VIRGINIA CITY SIPHON PIPELINE IMPROVEMENTS

BOND
Boad Number: COONS-13
Txate fNor dater than Bid gue datel: AUGUST 16, 2013

Pemalsum  NOT IO EXCEEDEME PERCENT OF THE AMOUMT.BID- 3 R,
(Wornds) {Frguresh

Sorery and Hidder, Btsading 1o be legatly hound herehy, Swbist to the torms set fork betow, do each catss Bis Bid
Bogd t he duly execnwd by anapthorizd offieer, spent, of seprosemiative.
Must be of lesst 5% of Bid amount.

RIDDER SHRETY \
COONS CONSTRUCTION, LLC . [Seal)NORTH AMERIGAN SPECIALTY INSURANGE LOMPANY. A Samb

23 .

Bidder's Name asmd Corporste Sl Surety s Raank amd Comhorsi

By _ By: X
Sigpature i2) )
, R. BLACK
Brist Mame
. ATTORNEY-IN-FACT
Tile Title
Atest _ AIRSE NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ATTACHED
Suansture Srpmture
Title Titke

Note: dbove wdilreses are i be ssed for giving any veguired notion. Provide exécution by any additianal pariies,
s ws pocat venkerers, i nevessary.

IO Gt Tt Bund (Percd v Parmy
 Tapelafl .




PENAL SUM FORM

1. Bigder and Surery, omily and severally, hind femselves, thesr heirs, excontors, sdministators. suooessars,
and aszigns iy o Craneer spun: default of Bidder the penat sum sct forth on the fnce of this Bond. Paveient of
the pr::mf sam is the extent of Bidder's apd Surety's bahility. Recovery of sueh penaf sum wnder fhe fenns of this
Band shall be Owner's sole and #xclusive remedy spon defantt of Bidder,

2. Defaule of Budder ehall ocear upon the failure of Ridder to deliver within $he time rogqered by the Bidding
Doguments (o any exicagion thereol drroed to I wriung by Owner) the exetuied Apresment faquined by the
Bidding Decnmesss and any perfonnahes snid puvient bonds teguined by the Bidding Documents.

3. Thus obligarion shafl b well and wid i1
3 Owoer ssoepts Bidder®s i and Ridder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents {or

sy extonsion thereel agresd to-in writing By Owasr} the executed kg;rmmem requaived by the Bidding
Decunznts s any perforssance aud paviment bonds reguired by te Bidding Docusnents, or

3% Al Rids sre egiected by Onviner, or
33 Oweer fails 1o issoe g Notice of Award 1 Ridder within the fime spectfied in the Bidding Documents

{ow Ay coxraassion therof agreed to-n writing by Bidder and. 1€ wpplicable. sangomed 1o by Surety when
regraret by Parasraph 5 heronfl,

4. Payment mncer this Bond sl be due and payable upon defidls of Bidder 2nd withic. 30 calondar daws afier
recoipt by Bidder and Surety of wiitin pstiee of dofuul Trmh Duaen, wiieh netios will be grven with resmonable
promptress, idemtifying this Bond @ the Project aivd includiag « statement of the wrount die.

3. Busety wmves notice of any and aff defeoses based on or yriing oot of ny time stension % issue Notwe of
Avanid spreed W B writiog b;. Cavner andl Bidder, provided tha the jotal time for ising Netiee of Award
incloding exensions shull nik i the eppropae execed 120 divs fomt Bid due dete withow Suren's wellteg
consent.

6. N sull or selfion shall by commemosd woder this. Bond prior w39 walendar duws sfier fhe wotice of deful
reguired i Paragraph 4 shove is receivest by Bidder angd Surety snd fo-no-cese Ister Sem one your alier 104 duc
Hate,

7. Any ait orucive wmder s Bund shall br commenced oty = & ¢ourt of campoteat Jursitiction Jesued i
the a.um, s which fhe Project 1= Tocated.

8, Notices uquired hercunder shall e dr writing and sent - Bidder and Surety »i their Tesprctsve addressos
Shisw oy the $ace of this Bend. Such nokcos may be sent by pessonal delivery, commercial courier, v by United
Srates Hewmistered ar Centtfied Mail, rotum receipt reqm-me:d pastape: prospgil, “ael el e dioenvod to b effective
ROT receii v e Piry conoame]

% Swrery shall covse 1w be stached 1o is Boud » vone énd effective Power of Siomey evidencing the
anthority of the offices, agent, or sepresentstive who excented this Bond on betedf of Surety 1o axeeute, seal. und

detiver ssch Bond and bind the Surety thershy,

H. This Bond is inteaded 10 ¢onform to 3l applicable stannory requirements, Any apphieablc mquvwmm of 3y
applicatile statets thet fus deep omitted from this Bond shall Te desmed w be included herein 85 5 st Jorth ot
Tength. 3F any provisaon of this Boad condliets with oy applicibie sy, then the provizion of smd srstore shall
govern and the vemainder of this Bonsd:that ts ot cordlict therowith shall eontinue in Gl force snd offect,

B The termr "Bid™ as wsed huret iacludes o Bid. offer, or proposal as applicable.

EICPT O T Buad (Poniil Seor Fowras
Progeseal by the Expecors Jant Contrser Dooomeadts Cammiiter,
Pune2af2




CALiFORNIA ALL—PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Couniy of Sacramento

before me, E. Johnson, Notary Public :

On q
! DaL

personally appeared Sandra R. Black

Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer

Name{s) of Signer(s}

¥

A A P P A
. E JOHNSON &

COMR, #1854775. =
3 NOYAR PUBLIC © CALIFORNIA g

L/ SECRAMENTO COUNTY
Comm. 1:9\

)., i p OCT. 15,2015 ;

Place Notary Seal Above

OPTIONAL

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to
be the person{s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they
executed the same in histher/their authorized capacity(ies),
and that by histher/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s)
acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of
the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is frue
and cotrect,

Witness my hand and official seal.

1‘7/{1 Vivz g A\

Signature
Signature of Nolaﬁdhlic E. Johnson

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the decument
and could prevent ftaudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document:

Document Date;

Number of Pages:

Signer{s) Other Than Named Above;

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)

Signer's Name: Sandra R. Black

O Individual
O corporate Officer — Title(s):

O Partner — [J Limited [J General

b Attorney in Fact RIGHT THUMBPRINT
O Trustee o OF SIGNER.

O Guardian or Conservator Top of thumb here
O Other:

Signer Is Representing:
North American Specialty
Insurance Company

Signer's Name;
£l individual
[J Corporate Officer — Title(s);
[ Partner — (] Limited T] General
O Attorney in Fact

[ Trustes

[J Guardian or Conservator

O Other:

RIGHTTHUMBPF!INT

Top of thumb here

Signer Is Representing:

© 2007 National Notery Assaciation « 8350 De Soto Ave., P.O. Box 2402« Chatswonh CA 91313 -2402 « www.NationzINotary.org iiam #3507 Fieordar Call Toli Frae 1-800-876-6827




NAS SURETY GROUP

NORTH AMERICAN SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY
WASHINGTON INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY

GENERAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT North American Specialty Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized and existing under
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and having its principat office in the City of Manchester, New Hampshire, znd Washington International
Insurance Company, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire ang having its principal office in the City of
Schaumburg, llinois, each does hereby make, constitute and appoint:

SHARON J. RUSCONTI and SANDRA R. BLACK.

JOINTLY OR SEVERALLY

- Its true and lawfui Attorney(s) ~in-Facl, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for and on its behalf and as its act and deed, bonds or other writings
obligatory in the nature of a bond on behalf of each of said Companies, as surcty, on contracts of suretyship as are or may be required or permitted by
law, regulation, contract or otherwise, provided that no bond or undertaking or contract or suretyshlp executed under this authority shal) exceed the

- amount of. FIFTY MILLION ($50,000,000.003 DOLLARS

This Power of Attorney is granted and is signed by facsimile under ang by the authority of the following Resolutions adopted by the Boards of
Directors of both North American Specialty Insurance Company and Washington International Insurance Company at meetings duly called and held
.on the 9" of May, 2012:

“RESOQLVED, that any two of the Presidents, any Managing Director, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President, any Assistant Vice President,
the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary be, and each or any of them hereby is authorized to execute a Power of Attorney qualifying the attorney named
in the given Power of Attorney to execute on behalf of the Company bonds, undertakings and ali contracts of surety, and that each or any of them
hereby is authorized to attest to the execution of any such Power of Attomney and to attach therein the seat of the Company; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of such officers and the seal of the Company may be affixed to any such Power of Attorney or to-any
certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such Pawer of Attorney or certificate bearing such facsirnile signatures or facsimile seal shall be
binding upon the Company when se affixed and in the ﬁ.lture with regard to any bond, undertakmg or contract of surety to which it is attached.”

Sy,
\‘i\ ALTY I/ :
o R
.:' / .
i - By
{ :
&

Sieven P. Anderson, Seaior Vice President of Washiogton Interoationsl Ensurance Company
& Senior Vice President of North America Speclalty Ensurance Company

By ﬁg‘ﬁﬂym’w

David M. Layman, Vice President of Washington lnterngtional Insurance Company
& Vice President of North American Specialty Insorance Company

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, North American Specialty Insurance Company and Washington Inzemauona] Insurance Comps.ny have cansed their
official seals to be hereunto affixed, and these presents to be 51gned by their avthorized officers this26th day of Juny - 2012

North American Specialty Insurance Company
Washington International Insurance Company

State of Ilinois

County of Cook s
On this 26tk day of June , 2012 , before me, & Notary Publie personally appeared __ Steven P. Anderson_, Senior Vice President of

Washington International Insurance Company and Senior Vice President of North American Specialty Insyrance Company and David M. Layman , '
Vice President of Washinglon International Insurance Company and Vice President of North American Specialty Insurance Company,

personally known to me, who being by me duly swomn, acknowledged that they signed the above Power of Attorney as officers of and

acknowledged said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of their respcctive companies,

i, ™ s
J°OFFICIAL SEALY yoA /O
JDONNAD, SKLENS p Monna £ Abdno
“{Notary. Public, State of Ulindis  § Donna D. Sklens, Notary Public
$My Commission Expu'es 108620157
I, Jeffrey Goldberg ., the duly elected __Agsistant Secretm of North American Specialty Insurance Company and Washmgton

International Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Power of Attorney given by said North
- American Specialty insurance Company and Washington International Insurance Company, which is stilt in full force and effect.

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and affixed the seals of the Companiss th:leQ day Of

Jeffrey Goldberg, Vice President & Assistant Sscretwy of
‘Washingion Intemanienal Ipsurence Compeny & North American Specialty Insurance Company




5% LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Each BIDDER shall list below the name of each subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work
or improvement to the contractor for which he will be paid an amount exceeding 5 percent of the prime
contractor’s total bid and the number of the license issued to the subcontractor pursuant to chapter 624 of the
NRS. The general contractor shall also list himself as performing all remaining work not otherwise
subcontracted that is exceeding 3% of the total bid. A general description of this work shall be listed.

ofal Contract

1. (Describe all remaining work not otherwise (Remaining {Prime contracior)
subcontracted, see above,) pe"f:f;‘:i‘; of Ceons Con 5‘1,..‘“-,.},"‘;” LLcC |

Sie afmr.‘ﬂj ARV iask I dren
Al Work beaides Ueld?nj and
f2ad czjlcfpi\:"(, %yu:ftmmtb

subcontracted:) | T20. Bost 160 }

3%

Uy gt~ MV 453
38o0thA ¢ 39/95A

2, . . C Lo subcontmcﬁ;;)E . \
Ucla:nj lf.d-”?dj id&-‘q’ﬁ"‘.o'\ L ﬁaéé 5 'ng.;‘::c" ”3;1():»1“, ,nj

7%

Rewe pi 895N Le B HFZHG

3. (subcontractor)
4. (subcontractor)
5. (subcontractor)
6. {subcontractor)

7. Soppl ey

©l%

(5% supplier)ufﬁ-f-ern Nevedq de*‘;
950 S, Rocle Bivd
Afurles A K443/

(5% supplier)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed,
3% Suppliers may be included on this or another page.

05/01/01

00440-1




1% LIST OF SUBCONTRACTOQRS

Within 2 hours after the corpletion of the opening of the bids, the general contractors who submitted the three
lowest bids must submit a list of the name of each subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the
work or improvement to the contractor for which he will be paid an amount exceeding 1 percent of the prime
contractor’s total bid or $50,000, whichever is greater, and the number of the license issued to the
subcontractor pursuant to chapter 624 of the NRS. This list may be emailed or faxed to the owner or owner’s
representative, or may be submitted with the Bid Proposal Form. The general contractor shall also list himself
as performing all remaining work not otherwise subcontracted that is exceeding 1% of the total bid or $50,000,
whichever gater. A general description of this work shall be listed.

Project Name:__, ___V:f\:;iv_\}_e-ﬁ.i}!.\.«_,....fe.i-.pi».t.»r....'P"ﬂs.);m:...ngmkcmmfﬁ ........ R
Bidder Name:. (o 0n3.. Conadeedion b€

License'Namber
1. (Describe all remaining work not otherwise (Remaining | (Prime contractor) )
subcontracted, see above,) perCenI:age; o CCZM 5 Can&‘!'fuc“‘-'ﬁr\ Ltc
- N work no
Sr"fc C'L’C{f'f\ﬂ i AevV a\r‘lS‘L'-L}'{'O’\ subcontracted:) P_(D Box HE0
All scopes of Work besides Dagon NV G403
Je U,‘.«j and BGA%OJM‘:J‘:- Folm _ 3 ’ ?

° 3govba ¢ 29155A |
2.UpMdoay € uling axd fasdefedions (subcontracior) MaVerick Eng tecrias
ok S.:.ta"{e,s 7Z Po. Bex 17237

Repe pi gqst) fie# 49296
b
¥ Redrogicplic x-fugs Eaem
.5Z 314 Jpadore Br Sufe oo

Limcedh oA TGy
(enbreamroctor} S, pf)"(r"
Sengen Precas
GZ5 Ber A lyY
: 5% Sperks WY €Y
5. ie (ebromtruetor) Jopplie
6-\ @p[ut"/‘ %ﬁkm Medﬂé_ﬁuapéj
é/Z gye § Qecle Blvd
Soxsks AV S9HS]
6. (subcontractor)

4.Supphes

7. . {subcontractor)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be atlached if needed.

05/01/01 00440-2




AUTHORITY TO SIGN FOR LIMITED LIABILITYCOMPANY

DATE: January 28, 2009
We, Coons Construction LL.C, 13 Affonso Drive, Suite B, Carson City, NV 897086, cerify that
Daniel F. Coons

has the authority to execute documents on hehalf of our company. This authority extends to afl
contract documents as well as banking signatory.

Sworn to:

This Hay of January 28, 2009, by

Kelly L. Coong
anaging Mepber




AUTHORITY TO SIGN FOR LIMITED LIABILITYCOMPANY

DATE: January 28, 2009

We, Coons Construction LLC, 13 Affonso Drive, Suite B, Carson City, NV 89706, certify that
Kelly L. Coons

has the authority to execute documents on behalf of our company. This authority extends to all
confract documents as well as banking signatory.

Sworn to:

This day of Janéary 28, 2009, by

Danie! F. Coons
Managing Member




_~Tiog SI0108AU0D SjelS BPEAS .:@Q

&

MEND BOUB'SNOOD SIDNYE A TINYa

wwz_o,__:moonmmE,?imzo_Enz:ou_ .
GNY SHAI-6-Y!SLINANGDT AN Jid-6LV:STdid 1squiay Buibeuey'SNOOD ANIAT ATED

S102/1E/ED 133414 X3 SNIVHG ‘SHIMIS-SIV ONIOVED ANY ONILVAYIXT-£v
000°00%'9% LHANIT S

((s)uoneolsse)d Buimolio) su) Ul JOJDEAUOD B S8 pasusol| ANp S|

‘STAIDNIEG

YG616E£00 oN osusor

800 '60 yoie 23Us PasUDIfT

OTT NOILLONHLSNOD SNOOD

1ey) soyIuso pieog SI010eRUOT) BJE}S BpBASN aU |

00LI-58y (T0e)

irL1-889 (6L2) |
LZGE8 BRPRASYN ‘Ouay quom wW_Ql_:O{Zlmaz Ou MJQ...{;FMW 2068 BPEADN U OSIBPUAL
001 8Ung ‘aaug femalen) 0496 o 51258 TN V0Dt

Q0Y0 BPRADY LUSYINNG

AP0 BPEAAN LaYHON

f

o R FESCRI




SLOZ/LEED 18T udX S

_~PIR0g SIO0BNUOY SJ8)S BPEAaN ..E@O

2

TIOHIWWOD TIWINS B TVILNIAIS3N-Z8

HEND BqUBW'SNOOD SIONYH S T3INY
aqwapy BuiBeue' SNOOD INNATT ATIIN

000'00% 98 LA SIWAFONIMG
1(s)uonesyisse Buimo)|o) sy} Ul JOOBIILGD B SB pasuadl] Ainp s| -
V9008E00 "oN esua0l
BODZ '60 YMEW 6OLS PESUST
OTINOILONHLSENOD SNOOOD
1BU1 S8)iLIeD pieoy SI010BIU0YD 811G BPRASN 84|

bi1-889 (GL2) _ . 00L-08 (202
L2568 epenay 'ousy Dmaﬂ\cﬂ mmebc.@ﬂmblzco m&;{:-nlm 72068 EBREBASN UOSJOPUDE) m_
001 BHNS ‘onuQ Aemeles) (496 002 SIns ‘9j0u0 st 1o DLEZ
SO BPRABYN LISYPOYN a0 epeaay Lasnog M_




i

e
\2”,:@?%%@ 5

3

3

2
3
il

i

Zpl e

2




CITY OF CARSON CITY

BUSINESS LICENSE DIVISION This license is not transferable.
108 E. Proctor St. _ o
Carson City, NV 89701 POST IN A CONSPICUQUS PLAC] .

(775) 887-2105

COONS CONSTRUCTION LLC License Number: 13-0000g422
PO BOX 1460 License Expiration Date: December 31, 2013

Date Issued: February 15, 2013
DAYTON NV 89403

Business Location: O QF T, MOUNDHOUSE
Nature of Business: RESD/SMALL COMMERCIAL/EXCAVATING

License renewal is the respensibility of the license holder and must be renewed prior to the expiration date to avoid penalties.

[ LICENSE - NOT TRANSFERRABLE

POST IN A CONSPICUOLS PLAGE

{UMBER A
a . e COUNTY OF  FROM 01/01/2013 T0 12

(S
EAFY  WASHOE %@%
@vs”  NEVADA g/

This license cannot be transferred or assigned. It is
valid only for the licensee and location shown halow.

THIS CERTIFIES THAT COONS CONSTRUCTION LLC
IN THE NAME OF DANIEL & KELLY CCONS
LOCATED AT 13 AFFONSO DR #B MOUNDHOUSE NV

/3172013

S
»]
e

COONS CONSTRUCTION LLC
DANIEL & KELLY COONS
PC BOX 1460

DAYTCON NV 89408

This license certifies that the name above has paid the required fees to the license collector of Washoe County
and is hereby authorized to conduct business and is subject to the provisions of law.




Entity Details — Secretary of State, Newvada

B/22/13 B:27 AM

COONS CONSTRUCTION LLC
Business Entity Information
Status: Active File Date: 1/28/2009
. Domestic Limited-Liability . . .. .
Type: Company Entity Number: E0041822009-0
Qualifying State: | NV gﬁ;_"f Officers | /312014
Managed By: : .Ménag.ing'Members Expiration Date: o
NV Business ID: | NV20091032286 g}‘(‘;i,“ess License 113110014
Registered Agent Information _
Name: KELLY L COONS Address 1: 13 AFFONSO DRIVE
‘1Address 2: SUITEB City: MOUNDHOUSE
State: NV Zip Code: - 189706
Phone: Fax:
Mailing Address 1: Mailing Address 2:
Mailing City: Mailing State: NV
Mailing Zip Code: : '
Agent Type: Noncommercial Registered Agent
Officers i_Include Inactive Officers
+ Managing Member - DANIEL F COONS
Address I: 13 AFFONSO DRIVE SUITE B |Address 2:
City: MOUNDHOUSE State: TNV
Zip Code: 89706 iCountry: USA
Status: Active {Email:
Managing Member - KELLY L COONS )
Address 1: 13 AFFONSO DRIVE SUITE B jAddress 2:
City: MOUNDHOUSE State: NV
Zip Code: 89706 Country: USA
Status: Active Email: '
Actions\Amendments
Action Type: Articles of Organizatiqn
Document Number: | 20090076462-76 # of Pages: 1
File Date: 1/28/2009 Effective Date:

(No notes for this action)

Initial List

Action Type:

http:// nvsos.gov/sosentitysearch/PrintCorp.aspx?Ix8nvag=0PUloV)hhrLOScZUWgwXkA%253d%253d

Page 1 of 2




Entity Details ~ Secretary of State, Nevada

8/22/13 8:27 AM

Document Number: | 20090095273-87 # of Pages:
File Date: 2/3/2009 Effective Date:
(No notes for this action) .

Action Type: Annyal List T

Document Number: } 20100400904-40 # of Pages:
File Date: 6/4/2010 Effective Date:
(No notes for this action)

Action Type: Annual List

Document Number: | 20110066525-78 # of Pages:
File Date: 1/27/2011 Effective Date:
(No notes for this action}

Action Type: Annual List

Document Number: | 20120010778-78 # of Pages:
File Date: 1/6/2012 Effective Date:
(No notes for this action) L
Action Type: Annual List m
Document Number: | 20120874183-86 # of Pages:
File Date: 12/28/2012 Effective Date:

(No notes for this action)

htip:/ /nvsos.gov/sosentitysearch/PrintCorp.aspx?| x8nvg=0PUloVIhhrlOScZUWgwXkA%253d%2 53 d

Page 2 of 2




CONTRACTOR'S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT
PROJECTS COMPLETED & PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

Name, Location and Design Date Reference/Contact
Description of Project Owner Engineer Completed Contract Price  Include Address and
Phone

P/(:caba See A#acllaf(—. All Ma:) al3o be Used as Reeronies

05/01/01 00450-1




Discription of Date Contract
project Owner Engineer jCompleted| Price Contact
Church of |Peek F&G Construction Gary Gladwill
Dayton Valley the Engineeri 289 River Boat Rd Dayton NV
Church Nazarene ing 1 9/1/13 107,600{89403 775-246-9950
Manhard Manhard Consulting Rebecca
50 Fortune {Consultin Bernier 3476 Executive Point
50 Fortune Dr LLC E 6/18/13 731,660|Way Carson City NV 89706 775-
Storey Miles Construction Mike Barrett
VC Pool ADA County |Berger- 61 Industrial Parkway Mound
Building Public Works|Haffigan 6/21/13 135,573|House NV 89706 775-246-3722
Dayton Rich Wilkinson Dayton Valley
2012 River Valley |RO Conservation District PO Box
Stabalization Conservatio |Anderson | 1/14/13 333,632(3053 Carson City NV 89702 775-
Dayton Miles Construction Stacy Reid
Station #37 Valley Fire 61 Industrial Pkwy Mound
Storage District |Big Horn 8/7/12 191,118|House NV 89706 775-246-3722
Miles Construction Stacy Reid
Owens Berger- 61 Industrial Pkwy Mound
Residence Gary Owens |Haffigan 8/31/12 131,676/House NV 89706 775-246-3722
Peek Miles Construction Stacy Reid
El Centro Herbert |Engineeri 61 Industrial Pkwy Mound
Market Muro ng 8/10/12 185,957|House NV 89706 775-246-3722




Stantec Storey County Public Works
Virginia City Virginia City |Engineeri Shannon Gardner 110 Toll Rd.
StreetScape Public Works|ng 4/27/12 529,087 Virginia City NV 89440 775-847-
Como Miles Construction Stacy Reid
Engineeri 61 Industrial Pkwy Mound
F&M Mafco F&M Mafco {ng 6/29/11 296,231{House NV 89706 775-246-3722




USbA Form Approved
Form RD 400-6 OMB No. 0575-0018

(Rev. 4-00)
COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

This statement relates to a proposed contract with S‘lo{z\!\, CGJ-“L Pedic Waries ’[ Fory «-leu\e-sf-
3 :

[—' ﬂ:i tageiiag
J (Name of borrower or grantee)

who expects to finance the contract with assistance from either the Rural Housing Service (RHS), Rural Business-
Cooperative Service (RBS), or the Rural Utilitics Service (RUS) or their successor agencies, United States Department
of Agriculture (whether by a loan, grant, loan insurance, guarantee, or other form of financial assistance). I am the
undersigned bidder or prospective contractor. I represent that;

1. T[y] have,[ | have not, participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to
Executive Order 11246 (regarding equal employment opportunity) or a preceding similar
Executive Order.

2. IfThave participated in such a contract or subcontract, I [\/]have, [ 1 have not, filed all
compliance reports that I have been required to file in connection with the contract or
subcontract.

If the proposed contract is for $50,000 or more and [ have 50 or tmore employees, 1 also répresent that:

3. @1 , have, lt’}’ have not, previously had contracts subject to the written affirmative action
program requirements of the Secretary of Labor,

4. If I have participated in such a contract or subcontract, F{ ] have, | ] have not, developed
and placed or file at each establishment affirmative action programs as required by the rules
and regulations of the Secretary of Labor.

I understand that if' I have failed to file any compliance reports that have been required or me, I am not eligible and will
ot be eligible to have my bid considered or to enter into the proposed contract unless and until [ make an arrangetnent
regarding such reports that is satisfactory to either the RHS, RBS, or RUS, or to the office where the reports are
required to be filed.

I also certify that I do not maintain or provide for my employees any segregated facilities at any of my establishments,
and that T do not permit my employees to perform their services at any location, under my control, where segrepated
facilities are maintained. 1 certify further that I will not maintain or provide for my employees any segregated facilities
at any of my establishments, and that 1 will not permit my employees to perform their services at any location, under
my control, where segregated facilities are maintained. ! agree that a breach of this certification is a violation of the
Equal Opportunity clause in my contract. As used in this cerlification, the term “segregated facilities” means any
waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms
and other storage or dressing areas, parking Jots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation
and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the
basis of race, creed, color, or national origin, because of habit, local custom, or otherwise. I frther agree that (except
where I have obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts
exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause; that I will retain such
certifications in my files; and that 1 will forward the following notice to such proposed subcontractors (except where
the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods): (See Reverse).

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency muy not conduct or sponsar, and a person is not reguired ta respord io a colleciion of information unless
it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0575-0018. The time required to complele this information
collection is estimated io average ) minutes per response, including the time jor reviewing instructions, searching existing daia sources, gathering and maintaining the
daia needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

Position ¢ RD 400-6 (Rﬁ‘f’. 4'00)

05/01/01 00460-1




USDA Form Approved
Form RID 400-6 OMB No. 0575-0018

(Rev. 4-00)

NOTICE TQ PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREMENTS FOR
CERTIFICATIONS OF NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES

A certification of Nonsegregated Facilities, as required by the May 9, 1967, order (32F.R. 7439, May 19, 1967)
on Elimination of Segregated Facilities, by the Secretary of Labor, must be submitted prior to the award of a
subcontract exceeding $10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clanse. The
certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or for all subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly,
semiannually, ot annually)

NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.8.C. 1001,

N o W27 o

Signature of Bidder or Prospective Contractor
Canici  F. CeonsS

P O. Bex 140 Dadken v g9403
Address (including Zip Code}

05/01/01 00460-2




U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier Covered Transactions.

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment
and Suspension, 7 CFR Part 3017.510, Participants’ responsibilities. The regulations were published
as Part IV of the January 30, 1989, Federal Register (pages 4722-4733). Copies of the regulations
may be obtained by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency with which this transaction
originated.

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE)

(1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it
nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, dectared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency.

(2 Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
This certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Cooﬂﬁ C’ons,[-md",cy\ L Lc v.‘r\qiniq C,,‘-rl-\ Srphen B peline .Z—h‘ﬂ)i’cb‘-rvMJ 5

Organization Name PR/AWard Number of-Project Name PPHe sF-2013-2 9g
Tniel £, Coonms Maing gins _ Member
Name(s) and Title(s) of Authorized Representative(s) [ )

@,W,, / 4—@% g-11-13

Signature(s} Date

Form AD-1048 (1/32)

01/04 00470-1




Instructions for Certification

1. By signing and submitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the
certification set out on the reverse side in accordance with these instructions.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this fransaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue
available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances,

4. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
*voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage
sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this
proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

5. The prospective lower tier participant aprees by submjtting this form that, shouid the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction
with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation
in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction
originated.

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include
this clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
— Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant
in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide
the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principles, Each participant may,
but is not reguired to, check the Nonprocurement List.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not reguired to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly entered into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this iransaction, in addition
to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

Form AD-1048 (1/92)

01/04 00470-2




05/01/01

CONTRACTOR'S WAIVER

Contract G o P spelin Impmwmen')(s

As a condition of award of the said Contract, the undersigned Bidder
acknowledges that he is aware of the provisions of Nevada Revised Statute 338.160,
which provides for investruent of Contract retainage, and the payment of intérest
thereon to the Contractor after completion of the project.

The undersigned Bidder further agrees to waive and does hereby waive all his
rights to investment of and payment of interest on retainage, as provided by said
statute, upon the understanding that the regulations of the lending agency prohibit
such investment and that, without this waiver, loan and/or grant funds for this project
will not be available.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Bidder has executed these presents this

L2 day of ﬁﬁ\ﬁ* 23

_(oons Consdrdion  LiLC

w O, S L

Title Managiae  Member
Jd

NOTE: This instrument should be executed by the officer who executes the contract
and in the same manner.

00490-1




05/01/01

CONTRACTOR'S WAIVER

As a condition of award of the said Contract, the undersigned Bidder
acknowledges that he is aware of the provisions of Nevada Revised Statute (NRS)
338.147 subsection 2(b) which provides for bid preferences for contractors who have

been “certified as eligible to receive bid preferences” by the state contractors board,

The undersigned Bidder further agrees to waive and does hereby waive all
his/her rights to the provisions to receive bid preferences under NRS 338.147 upon
the understanding that the regulations of the lending agency prohibit such bid
preferences,
and that without this waiver, loan and/or grant funds for this project will not be
available _

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Bidder has executed these presents this

22 day ofA&d'd&% Zed3

Ceons Consfrockon  LLc
Bidd

er
By »‘Q _,ncm,&.(v/ ,,Z(}..y__,___,___

Title Mangging _ Merber
sy ,

NOTE: This instrument should be executed by the officer who executes the contract
and in the same manner.

00490-2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 17, 2013 Estimate of time required: 5-10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion / Action of proposed Jail Fund Resolution to resolve issues and clarify the
maintenance and use of the Jail Fund; and to record such resolution with the Nevada
Department of Taxation.

2. Recommended motion: Approval and setting of the ad valorem percentage that will be
allocated to the fund. Motion example: Imove to approve the Jail Fund Resolution as
written (or amended) with an ad valorem allocation of 7?7 percent.

3. Prepared by: Sheriff Gerald Antinoro

Department: Sheriff’s Qffice Telephone: 847-0959
4. Staff summary: For some time there have been questions regarding the use of the jail fund.
. This resolution seeks to clarify the fund, its allocation, and its usage.

S. Supporting materials: Proposed Jail Fund Resolution

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Jail __ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: M
istrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
epartment Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

r———
e |

Agenda Item No. | )




RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF
JAIL FUND

The Board of County Commissioners in and for the County of Storey, State of
Nevada, at a regular meeting held on September 17, 2013, it was determined that the

public interest requires the creation of the Jail Fund that will serve as follows:

1. This fund is being created to account for the operations and maintenance of the
Storey County Jail.

2. A percentage of ad valorem tax will be allocated annually by the Board of County
Commissioners for funding of the jail. -

3. A transfer from the General Fund will cover any fund deficit,

4. Funds obtained through fees received from the housing of prisoners will be
retained in the jail fund for jail use.

5. Any fees collected by or through the Sheriff’s Office may be deposited into the
jail fund to offset any General Fund transfer.

6. Any remaining balance at the end of the fiscal year will be carried forward to the
next fiscal year.

7. Required fund balances will be determined based on projected expenditures for
the fiscal year.

8. NRS that may apply are Chapters 354, 350, 332, 271, 288, & 231.

Whereas proper notice has been given of the intention to act upon a resolution
authorizing the creation of a fund, now therefore, it is HEREBY RESOLVED that the
Board of County Commissioners of Storey County, State of Nevada, hereby approves

creation of the Jail Fund for the purposes stated above.

It is further resolved that the clerk forward the necessary documents to the
Executive Director of the Nevada Department of Taxation, Carson City, Nevada.

DRAFT LANGUAGE - JAIL FUND RESOLUTION




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 17, 2013 Estimate of time required': 5-10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion / Action of proposed change to brothel license fees

2. Recommended motion; Approval and setting of the license fees to become effective January 1,
2014.

- 3. Brepared by: Sheriff Gerald Antinoro

Department: Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 847-0959

4. Staff summary: Currently there is a single license issued for brothel operations in the county.
~ The licensee was advised in January 2012, there would be a license fee adjustment
following the licensing issues that led to the revocation of one license and the re-licensing
or expansion of his other license to cover both buildings. To date there has been no fee
adjustment pursuant to that conversation.

5. Supporting materials: See attachment,

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Jail Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

3. Reviewed by:

epartment Head Department Name:

ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[} Approved
] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
] !

Agenda Item No. \L\




STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

September 9, 2013

TO:  Storey County Board of Commissioners

RE: Brothel Licensing Fees

In 2011, the Wild Horse Brothel’s license was revoked due to a violation of Storey County
ordinance. Following the revocation, the license holder, Mr, Lance Gilman, applied for an
expansion (or re-licensing) of the Mustang Brothel to cover two physical plants that had been
previously prohibited until the 2009 revisions of the ordinance. The Mustang Ranch was “re-
licensed” in 2012 to cover both buildings, including the former Wild Horse Brothel.

During the re-licensing process, Mr. Gilman and his legal counsel was informed there would be a
licensing fee adjustment due to now covering what had formerly been two brothels, which the
ordinance had not considered when it allowed for licensing of contiguous properties under a
single license. '

In conversations subsequent to the 2012 re-licensing of the Mustang Ranch, discussion of an
acceptable rate has taken place yet no set amount has been established nor has it been brought
back to the board for discussion. It would be my recommendation that the established brothel

- license fee be maintained, with the addition to the licensing fees schema to cover contiguous
propertics at a rate of % of the existing fee rate.

Example: Mustang Brothel — Primary building  $75,000.00
Additional building  $37,500.00
Total fee for the Mustang Brothel license: $112,500.00
‘While the Mustang Brothel is used in the example, this fee schedule would apply to all current

and new brothel operations. I would further suggest this fee schedule become effective January
1, 2014.

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

PO Box 498 203 South C Street Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 9/17/2013 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ 3

1. Title: gee attached agenda language.

2. Recommended motion

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

4. Staff summary: Enclosed pages: (1) cover; (10) findings; (11) conditions of approval; (12) proposed motions.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed in staff report appendices.

6. Fiscal impact: n/a

Funds Available: n/a Fund: n/a Comptroller
7. Legal review required: o
a District Attorney
3. Reviewled py:
epartment Head Department Name: Planning

@M County Manager Other agency review: __All county departments

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

—

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No. \6
Other; Planning commission recommended approval on August 15, 2013.




Planning Case No. 13-006
Attachment to Agenda Request form:
Agenda Language for September 17 Commission meeting:

Discussion/For Possible Action: Application for Final Map of Division into Large Parcels-
Merger and Re-Subdivision, by Storey County Properties, L.1.C/Harold R. Lucey, Lockwood,
Nevada. The proposal is to reconfigure and divide two existing parcels to create two additional
parcels. The new reconfigured parcels will be approximately 74, 187, 440, and 8,325 acres in
area. The request will be accomplished through the Division into Large Parcels and Merger and
Re-Subdivision processes pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes. The subject properties are
located approximately at 3005 Canyon Way (APNs 004-131-08 & 004-111-01), Lockwood,
Nevada, lying within Portions of Sections 13, 24, 25, & 36, Township 19 North, Range 20 East
and Portions of Sections 19, 20, 21, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, & 35, Township 19 North,
Range 21 East M.D.B.&M, Storey County.




CASE NO.:

APPLICANT:
PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

REQUEST:

MEETING LOCATION:

MEETING DATE:

MEETING TIME:

Storey County

Board of County Commissioners

Staff Report

2013-006
Harold Lucey
Storey County Properties, LLC

3005 Canyon Way, Lockwood, Nevada (APNs 004-131-08 and
004-111-01), lying within Portions of Sections 13,24,25 & 36,
Township 19 North, Range 20 East and Portions of Sections
19,20,21,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34 & 35, Township 19
North, Range 21 East M.D.B.&M Storey County

Final Map of Division into Large Parcels—Merger and Re-
Subdivision map. The proposal is to reconfigure and divide two
existing parcels to create two additional parcels. The new
reconfigured parcels will be approximately 74, 187, 440, and
8,325 acres in area. The request will be accomplished through
the Division into Large Parcels and Merger and Re-Subdivision
processes pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes.

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

September 17, 2013

10:00 AM

10f20




Staff Report - 2013-006 Planning
Storey County Properties, LLC 775.847.1144

I. KEY TERMS & DEFINITIONS

1.1  Large Parcel. NRS 278.471 defines a “Large Parcel” as a parcel which is at least one-
sixteenth of a Section as described by a government land office survey; or, forty acres in area,
including roads and easements. NRS allows Storey County by ordinance to govern the division
ten acre or larger parcels, including roads and easements; however, Storey County does not
currently have an ordinance allowing this. The requirements under NRS 278.471 do not apply to
Large Parcels of one Section or 640 acres.

1.2 Merger and Re-Subdivision. NRS 278.4925 defines a “Merger and Re-Subdivision™ as
the merging and re-subdividing of two or more contiguous parcels of land or lots without
reversion of the preexisting parcels to acreage. The recording of the re-subdivided parcels or lots
on a final map, parcel map, or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate, constitutes the
merging of the preexisting parcels into a single parcel and the simultaneous re-subdivision of that
single parcel into parcels or lots of a size and description set forth in the final map, parcel map or
map of division into large parcels, as appropriate.

1.3  Tentative Map. A survey map that is filed with the planning commission for its review
and to which conditions in accordance with NRS 278.471-278.4713 may be applied.

1.4  Final Map. A survey map that is filed with the Board of Storey County Commissioners
following action by the planning commission. The Final Map may contain conditions and
modifications that were imposed by the planning commission and the Board. The Final Map
must be filed with the Board within one year of filing with the planning commission, unless
waived per NRS. Once approved by the Board, the Final Map is recorded with the County
Recorder’s Office.

II. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

2.1 Planning Commission action, At the planning commission hearing on August 15, 2013,
the planning commission heard testimony from the applicant and county staff (no public
comment was received). The applicant provided diagrams, photos, and maps of the subject
property and the proposed changes. Discussion between the commission, staff, and applicant
included access concerns, reasons why the applicant was proposing the changes, and the overall
scope of the application. There was no public comment or opposition presented regarding the
proposal. Staff presented an addendum to the planning commission; it amended the conditions of
approval by adding a condition pertaining to access to Parcel 2. Said condition read: “3. Access.
The filing of the Final Map with the Board of County Commissioners shall be accompanied by a
Statement that there shall be no sale, transfer, division, or merger of Parcel 1 and/or Parcel 2
shown on the Final Map unless legal and permanent access to Parcel 2 is established by deed or
delineated on a Record of Survey. This statement shall be recorded with the Office of the Storey
County Recorder to accompany the deeds for said real properties.” The planning commission
accepted the addendum and those modifications were to be incorporated into the County
Commission recommendation (see Section 2.2 below for condition modification). County staff
read into the record its recommended findings to be included with a motion for approval. The

9/3/2013 20f20




Staff Report — 2013-008 Planning
Storey County Properties, LLC 775.847.1144

planning commission voted unanimously (all planning commissioners were present) to approve
the project in accordance with the stated findings as recommended by staff.

2.2 Background. The applicant proposes to combine then subdivide two existing Large
Parcels to create two additional parcels and two remainder Large Parcels. The purpose of the
land division is to create two parcels that are contiguous to existing developed land and provide
for potential future commercial expansion. At its August 15 hearing, the planning commission
conditioned a deed restriction provision to Parcels 1 and 2 (see Figures 2.2 and 2.3). It required
Parcel 2 access to be delineated on a Record of Survey prior to sale of either Parcels 1 or 2. Since
Tentative Map approval, staff and the applicant agreed on alternative access to Parcel 2 through
an existing right-of-way in abutting Washoe County. Accordingly, the recommended conditions
of approval in this report contain no provision for deed restrictions for access.

2.3 Existing conditions. Shown in Figure 2.1, there are currently two existing parcels of
approximately 8,545 and 400 acres in area. Both parcels are vacant. Parcel 1 abuts Heavy
Industrial Zoning and uses, Parcel 2 is surrounded by vacant land zoned F Forestry.

2.4  Proposed conditions. The applicant proposes to combine an existing 8,545 acre parcel
and an existing 440 acre parcel to then re-subdivide creating four parcels. The new parcels will
be approximately 187 acres and 74 acres, and the two remaining parent parcels will be
approximately 8,284 acres and 440 acres (see Figures 2.2 - 2.4).

2.5  Access and easements. The submitted map delineates existing easements crossing
subject properties, including utility easements for NV Energy power line transmission, and
access easements serving new Parcels 3 and 4. Proposed access easement to Parcel 3 was
reviewed by the Storey County Fire District and county staff. They meet the purpose of NRS
278.4713; however, substantial grading for access will be necessary before development may
occur. The following summary on access corresponds to the illustration in Figure 2.4:

e Parcel 1: Primary access to this parcel is from the Canyon Way public right-of-way.

o Parcel 2: This parcel is accessed from the historic “Immigrant Road™ abutting subject
property from neighboring Washoe County. The Washoe County Board of
Commissioners recognized the “road” as a legal public right-of-way in 2006.

¢ Parcel 3: This parcel is accessed from a 25° wide easement located along the north
boundary of Parcel 4. That easement is connected to another easement crossing the
north abutting parcel to Avenue of the Colors (see Appendix D, Grant of Easement).

e Parcel 4: This parcel is accessed from a 25’ wide easement crossing the north
abutting parcel to Avenue of the Colors (see Appendix D, Grant of Easement).

2.6 Water source. There are no submitted plans to develop the subject properties with uses
requiring domestic water. Thus, requirements for dedication of water rights to the county
pursuant to SCC 16.24, in accordance with NRS 534, do not apply. For this reason, the applicant
is also not required to file a Point of Diversion Map with the State Division of Water Resources.

9/3/2013 ' 3of20




Staff Report — 2013-006
Storey County Properties, LLC

Interstate 80

Ptanning
775.847.1144

Lockwood

_ - SB8°36'07E REFERENCES
I“g 265283
B} o R1= LUSGLO PLAT OF TOV
2% — » »
iy + APN 4—{11-07 APPROVED
&
Y8 5 Mamantra LLC 21 EX’St’ng R2= U.8.6..0. PLAT OF TOV
3= (before map change) APPROVED
g ¥ R3= PARCEL MAP FOR MENI
N ‘?’lN R4= ROS FOR DH LAND, Doc
.
L4 .
; o “ T
s | oo, Toomede = |
: : ¥
é of o - C Dev. Co. :"l" ™ ‘
o ifig o 8 E . 4
iy B v-| a Section 18 | . -
BN 12 a _ ~4 Section 17 L Lot
ERS B B S i d
& 9 S "
: T L:];- | AP -1l
Conyon Géneral
Improvement Dist
—— H
i Al
LOCK
i COMb
8z
=
23
EL\J
zlﬁ
&4
-

—G16-3 \

1

9/3/2013

4 0of 20




Staff Report ~ 2013-006 Planning
Storey County Properties, LLC 775.847.1144

Figure 2.2: Existing conditions before merger/re-subdivision. See full map in Appendices A-C.

24—176—14
City af Sparks MSA N

SBEIE'07E REFERENCES
5 e SBB3E REFERENGES
13 . 2652.8F iy
;a _;:‘ AP 41107 R1= U.S.G.LO.PLAT OF TOV
ii N 111 APPROVED
55 Alementra LLE 21 Amended R2= U.SG.LO PLAT OF TOV
) 5|3 APPROVED
3F (after map change) R3= PARCEL MAP FOR MENI
: g% R4= ROS FOR DH LAND, Doc
. @A '
< .
i 7,
a - ~
g AP amm-o =T T ;
i visla East S 5 ' s
] Dev. £o. 1% ™~
§ & & :
= TG | Secton s _ ~ Sectlon 17 L Lot
E . e “:%\ ] //
r _! —‘]-l APN 4—121—41
Ganyan General
—— = u
LOCK
= SOl
Saeas
(=]
5
]
&
=z
%
P
"/"1 K
)
bR

Figure 2.3: Conditions after merger/re-subdivision. See full map in Appendices A-C.

9/3/2013 50of 20




0gicg

‘0 pue g saopuaddy ul dew ||n} 8ag UoISIAIPgNsS-al pue 19blawl Jo s|ielep pue siualae uiew Bumoys jdisoxs dn-asol) iz sanbiy

1939 00G = WU | (0

R £605E8 3,00,00068 |
BVL6% BLEELS _ ﬁ
Saudy 68'981 ;
' I+
1 SaLIYI6'84 ; a0
s g ol
2 : 3
i ¢ 1000 i m JoD ] ¥
i #
dopy sty sod - CERRLHEIE T
! | N
B9 : g
iy s s e 5%.7\ o ay GSNTS ST
JumTEn g h | 1\!%5& ¢ —— A3 AN
MR i 34 15 | grag ;.?ﬁw
y dyy oy puy P
O WG
I€-1Th- N \\/s&%ﬁﬁﬁ?& - ~ ’
I i -
mmwmzm_.E l&ll.ﬁlil:[ e .ﬂuaﬁvh“u Dco_p.mz U—O @#OMW MW mm
Y2 . Ky do
_ -
AT T e v T paouoy ! ¢
- @ | g _ .
S e R 001211 N ¢ P
..//. | L > \\.\\.\. — v
N - . a0 gy
L N
. _ —— Ty
/,/ mﬁbﬂmmz T
AN
\




IIlI. KEY ISSUES

The Tentative and Final Maps comply with the provisions of NRS 278.471-278.4725 in that they
create less than five parcels, delineate required information by statute, and provide necessary
easements for access to each subject parcel and for utilities.

IV. LAND USE COMPATIBILITY

Table 4.1 demonstrates existing land uses and zoning designations in and around the subject
property. The land division maintains conditions allowable in the I-2 Heavy Industrial and F
Forestry Zones, which are applicable to the subject land and surrounding land. Uses for which
the reconfigured land will provide are consistent with the use designations in the Storey County
Master Plan,

R e e

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION

commercial, and natural resources

LAND USE ZONING
SUBJECT |Vacant (all parcels) Heavy and light industrial, I-2 Heavy Industrial;
LAND agricultyral, mining and processing, |F Forestry
commercial, and natural resources
LAND TO |Storey: Heavy industrial uses | Storey: Heavy and light industrial, Storey: I-2 Heavy
NORTH including animal hay and food |agricultural, mining and processing, |Industrial;
processing and open material | commercial, and natural resources F Forestry
storage. Washoe: Vacant/R.R.
LANDTO |Vacant Heavy and light industrial, I-2 Heavy Industrial;
SOUTH agricultural, mining and processing, |Forestry
commercial, and natural resources
LAND TO |Mobile Home Park Heavy and light industrial, MHP Mobile Home
EAST Lockwood Regional Landfill  |agricultural, mining and processing, |Park; I-2 Heavy
Vacant commercial, and natural resources Industrial; F Forestry
LANDTO |Vacant Heavy and light industrial, 1-2 Heavy Industrial;
WEST agricultural, mining and processing, |F Forestry

Table 4.1: Description of subject property and vicinity

V. PUBLIC SAFETY

In addition to access for each respective property owner, the access easements may be utilized
for wildland fire suppression. There are no evident conditions created by this proposal that would
cause public safety risks.

70f20




Staff Report — 2013-006 Planning
Storey County Properties, LL.C 775.847.1144

V1. APPLICABLE CODES & REGULATIONS

6.1  Minimum acreage. The subject properties are zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial and F Forestry.
SCC 17.35.050 and 17.32.030 requires parcels in the 1-2 Heavy Industrial Zone to be no less than
3 acres and no less than 40 acres in the F Forestry Zone. The parcels created and reconfigured in
this application will exceed these minimum land area requirements.

6.2  Tentative Map. NRS 278.471-278.4713 regulates the division of land into Large
Parcels. The applicant must file a Tentative Map with the planning commission for the subject
property and submit an affidavit stating that property taxes will be paid by filing of the Final
Map (see 6.3 Final Map) as required by NRS 278.4725(8)(c).

The map must be entitled “Tentative Map of Division into Large Parcels”; additionally, the title
will be suffixed with “Merger and Re-Subdivision”. The map must be prepared and certified by a
professional land surveyor; must show the approximate, calculated, or actual acreage of each lot;
and show the total acreage of the land to be divided.

Any roads or easements of access which exist, are proposed in the applicable master plan, or are
proposed by the person who intends to divide the land, must also be delineated on the map.
Easements for public utilities that provide gas, electric, and telecommunications services and for
any video service providers that are authorized by NRS 711 to operate video service network in
the area must be shown...and public utilities that provide water and sewer services; easements
for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuously flowing watercourses; an indication of
any existing road or easement which the owner does not intend to dedicate; the name and address
of the owner of the land.

6.3  Final Map. Pursuant to NRS 278.4725, the Board of County Commissioners with
recommendation by the planning commission will take final action with an approval, conditional
approval, or disapproval of a submitted Final Map. The action of the Board must be based on the
requirements of NRS 278.472 which state the following:

¢ The map must be:

o Entitled “Map of Division into Large Parcels — Merger and Re-Subdivision”;

o Filed with the Board of Storey County Commissioners no later than 1 year afier the
date that the Tentative Map was first filed with the planning commission*;

o Prepared by a professional land surveyor;

o Based upon an actual survey by the preparer and show the date of the survey and
contain the certificate of the surveyor;

*The applicant submitted a waiver of NRS 278 requirement that the Tentative Map be heard within 60
days of application to the planning commission. Therefore, the applicant must submit the Final Map to
the Board of County Commissioners within one year of action by the planning commission.

9/3/2013 8of20




Staff Report - 2013-006 Planning
Storey Couniy Properties, LLC 775.847.1144

o Clearly and legibly drawn in permanent black ink upon good tracing cloth or

produced by the use of other materials of & permanent nature generally used for this
purpose in the engineering profession. Affidavits, certificates and acknowledgments
must be legibly stamped or printed upon the map with permanent black ink;

24 by 32 inches in size with a marginal line drawn completely around each sheet,
leaving an entirely blank margin of 1 inch at the top, bottom, and right edges, and of 2
inches at the left edge along the 24-inch dimension;

Of scale large enough to show clearly all details; and

The particular number of the sheet and the total number of sheets comprising the map
must be stated on each of the sheets, and its relation to each adjoining sheet must be
clearly shown.

¢ This map must show and define:

All subdivision lots by the number and actual acreage of each lot;

Any roads or easements of access which exist and which the owner intends to offer
for dedication, any roads or easements of access which are shown on the applicable
master plan and any roads or easements of access which are specially required by the
planning commission or the Board of Commissioners;

Easements for public utilities that provide gas, electric and telecommunications
services, and for any video service providers;

Easements for public utilities that provide water and sewer services; and

Any cxisting easements for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuously
flowing watercourses.

» Additionally, the Final Map filed with the Board of County Commissioners must be
accompanied by a written statement signed by the Storey County Treasurer indicating that
all property taxes on the land for the fiscal year have been paid.

VIIL

MASTER PLAN

The proposed division of land conforms to and does not conflict with the goals and objectives of
the Storey County Master Plan including: maintaining a healthy environment for all residents of
the county (Chapter 9, Goal 1); and ensure land use plans are compatible with the zoning map,
master plan, and previous planning decision (Chapter 9, Objective 1.1). There are no proposed
land uses or land use changes, or changes to parcel size or configuration that would allow land
uses not currently allowed by the underlying zoning and Master Plan designation.

8/3/2013

90of20




Staff Report — 2013-006 Planning .
Storey County Properties, L1.C 775.847.1144

VIII. FINDINGS

8.1  Motion for approval. The following are found to be factual regarding the Final Map of
Division into Large Parcels—Merger and Re-Subdivision under the recommended conditions of
approval in Section IX of this report. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these
findings and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

8.1.1 NRS 278.471-278.4725 regulates the division of land into Large Parcels.

8.1.2 NRS 278.471 defines a “Large Parcel” as a parcel which is at least one-sixteenth of a
section as described by a government land office survey; or, forty acres in area, including
roads and easements.

8.1.3 A Merger and Re-Subdivision is defined in NRS 278.4925 as the merging and re-
subdividing of two or more contiguous parcels of land or lots without reversion of the
preexisting parcels to acreage. The recording of the re-subdivided parcels or lots on a
final map, parcel map, or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate, constitutes
the merging of the preexisting parcels into a single parcel and the simultancous re-
subdivision of that single parcel into parcels or lots of a size and description set forth in
the final map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate.

8.1.4 This approval is for a “Final Map of Division into Large Parcels—-Merger and Re-
Subdivision™. This title and the process by which the map is approved comply with NRS
278, including NRS 278.471-278.4725.

8.1.5 The conditions created by this map do not conflict with existing applicable zoning
regulations, including minimum parcel size and building setbacks.

8.1.6 Conditions created by the map comply with the land use restrictions and entitlements
underlying regulatory zone, are as stringent and not in conflict with federal, state, and
county regulations, and will not cause or facilitate impacts that do not already exist to
surrounding existing land uses.

8.2  Motion for demial. Should a motion be made to deny the requested Final Map of
Division into Large Parcels-Merger and Re-Subdivision, the following findings of fact with
explanation why should be included in that motion.

8.2.1 The proposal conflicts with one or more requirements of NRS 278.471-278.4725.

8.2.2 Conditions created by the map conflict with existing zoning regulations, including
minimum parcel size, building setbacks, or other zoning regulations, or the land use
designations of the Storey County Master Plan.

8.2.3 Conditions created by the map cause or facilitate impacts not already existing to
surrounding land uses.

8.2.4 The map does not provide sufficient access or access easements to one or more of the
subject properties.

9/3/2013 10 0f 20




Staff Report — 2013-006 Planning
Storey County Properties, LLC 775.847.1144

IX. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The conditions of approval and action taken on the Tentative Map by the planning commission
and the action taking on the Final Map by the Board County Commissioners must comply with
NRS 278.471-278.4725 and 278.4925. The following conditions comply with the NRS:

1. The Final Map shall conform to the requirements of NRS 278.471-278.4725 and NRS
278.4925 including, but not limited to, filing of Final Map within 1 year of approval of
Tentative Map*, map title, survey, and map requirements. If the Final Map is not filed
with the Storey County Recorder’s Office within 1 year (12 months) from the date of
Tentative Map approval by the planning commission, this approval shall become null and
void. (*The applicant submitted a waiver of NRS 278.472(1) requirement that the Tentative Map
be heard within 60 days of application to the planning commission. Therefore, the applicant must
submit the Final Map to the Board of County Commissioners within one year of action by the
planning commission.)

2. Asrequired by NRS 278.47235, the Final Map must also show and define the following:

e All subdivision lots by the number and actual acreage of cach lot;

* Any roads or easements of access which exist and which the owner intends to offer
for dedication, any roads or easements of access which are shown on the applicable
master plan and any roads or easements of access which are specially required by the
planning commission or the Board of County Commissioners;

e FEasements for public utilities that provide gas, electric and telecommunications
services, and for any video service providers;

o FEasements for public utilities that provide water and sewer services;

e Any existing casements for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuocusly
flowing watercourses.

3. The filing of the Final Map with the Board of County Commissioners must be
accompanied by a written statement signed by the Storey County Treasurer indicating
that all property taxes on the land for the fiscal year have been paid.

4. The Final Map shall not cause building or structure setback distances to become non-
compliant with the setback requirements in the respective zones.

X. POWER OF THE BOARD AND PLANNING COMMISSION

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The planning commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The planning commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the planning commission’s

9/3/2013 11 of 20




Staff Report — 2013-006 Planning
Storey County Properties, LLC 775.847 1144

recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the planning commission for further consideration.

XI. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains 2 motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by staff and planning commission in accordance with Findings under Subsection 8.1. Those
Findings should be made part of that motion. Motion 2 for denial may be made and that metion
should cite one or more of the Findings shown in Subsection 8.2, Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

A, Recommended motion. Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1,
conditions of approval shown in Section X [9] of this report, and compliance with federal,
State, and county regulations, I motion to approve Application No. 2013-006 Final Map of
Division into Large Parcels—Merger and Re-Subdivision.

Summary: Approve Final Map

B. Alternative motion. Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1,
conditions of approval shown in Section X [9] of this report, and compliance with federal,
State, and county regulations, I motion to approve Application No. 2013-006 Final Map of
Division into Large Parcels—Merger and Re-Subdivision with changes brought forth at this
meeting.

Summary. Approve Final Map with conditions

C. Alternative motion. Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1,
conditions of approval shown in Section IX [9] of this report, and compliance with federal,
State, and county regulations, I motion to continue Application No. 2013-006 Final Map of
Division into Large Parcels-Merger and Re-Subdivision, so that the map may be reviewed
again by the Board of County Commissioners before review and/or approval.

Summary: Continue Final Map for re-hearing

D. Alternative motion. Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.2 and
against the recommendation by staff, I motion to deny Application No. 2013-006 Final
Map of Division of into Large Parcels—Merger and Re-Subdivision.

Summary: Deny Final Map
Prepared by Austin Osborne, Senior Planner

Exhibits: (A) Assessor Parcel Map of subject properties; (B) Tentative Map; (C) Final Map; (D)
Property legal description; (E) Grant of Easement

9/3/2013 12 of 20




0ziogl

Mo S e

JOHSVM

| A N 5

- Am‘?a,
. ¥z .
Laps 980"
¥ @ r - .wi—,11.”.| mt - = g
- e B . | 4606 1 68057y £205 | 96751 ¢
- L -y LT A DL T
- - wr - n r * [}
. - .
a0 2

: ’ {(arrurxoaddy uenpindifuos pun adoyy)
senaadoud yalgns yo depy [9a16 1055958y 1V LIGIHXA




gcio vl

TE7 srerate trict v gy . -
[ ] sammse 1951 Q0G = usul | CIbiag I cemocn
U Pugeranied gLy iy Ty R
ey ALNICD ASOLE ——— _
s SNTLEAE T 2o, socovss 5 xmav o9 °s0s
» e e Spaieiyiacry .,
S HCHLIACE K|S 63 ROR YRS TLAIM D1 siHEIMARCLL A AL e e n‘m z 2soang o ¢ Poamr
’’’’’ i T 20 mma——— 2. 4 a
SIIVIAOUD ALNNOD ATUOLS = T - 2 vl
250 TN IOV aS DCUYY CLLM NORIAKY e s s e -l..lwﬁ.ni:.c T s aaET oA R A S 1Y
g . A3 st — < =
[ - [t e A T T S
R iz Py N { = .
et ] i e s .nn.cnrl"..dh\h e S ws THE | OPOABN L0 DIDIS
TR VI = | L i ey TR e imy Netw T1 PaLDwe 1w
—T ..I.f.“ —= CO-iTl—r MNdY
ana semrmannes e ST T T . o
—— T
A AL Tl B4 Y e I e T
o s s an e s ors . sy o | segy/eLs wancy w0 | 2
RERSS = __ ' ] A P " i H v v “ v s
TR M -~ = * %1 3
a— - - s o] s T bbeen /. 2 N S v s en! o 5z wn wg 3o p ¥ [ 5,7 o 3 g
AR sty s i m : _ ] _ um
ovff.?-ll\. & i ' I
sy o e O 4 vty ! I vanses S 5 B
B ey = R PR ! P N I I / ~
RO W AMYTINNT. Sotr CERLIT M- i AANMTTS TAL T Y T W TP 2 i Et e \ [~
e e Rl L TR L L R 2 =
e S e e R TR e oy A e = &
e ol s e v et s e TR T & _ vt Lo —,X _ _ wreime woive o P -&
il Soem : e, i i 2 " g
sanem b A | el
- - - [ I||.l|||_|| - - - _ \ﬁ?ll -~
= .- o
g et \ﬂoﬁisfﬂ!h H _ -l 23
ot g e | — SRR T ) ! S(s
= ey by vy A . ] 2
g2 ITnTRIRIS .,_/ * _ \e_s =1
2
i _ —_— - = = == =
B 9z uslieng v — BZ ustanos 62 woneeg 1 i M GF wouows m B
cava ~ ~ = |{= 2 5
s it e S Lo i ettt WM wonoss ) s e ) g & uohaeg ~ =
AR AL o IR o armret o SBTR Tk 0 SAa ¥ TS o RSy itz oua doa ) R g JE, e e s r2es =
o mE————— S . OV 02 FE e > = ~
' P H S ASNSIn { e E
oo By cwmess | (| i SN |
B e Y o] kY
AR e e
zE wenses o

SO—IS Lt Nav _

3

T S MPCITLAC L 4 1AL B (T AR FNVINCH M0 CCLANOI S et €T uopasE
-

LOA—IEL—P Ndv —

\
R e e - _ tencs won
RO AT A nd VRN AP AL —~
st -
NS SR . ! —_
\\ _ QU] asnper _ -
- —
[Rp—
fr-n
e o e —— oo AFEOES
s it o e R oA 30 By it N
\& FIVIE JAHAYTED .\.FE% -
O S w e e v S A R e N
o e RO O pri o L i Ay .
CTRRCHENC S W L SEAEVE OO D TYREPOCIN BRIV SRR AL. S0, P T ./.
ERATIEIL Y 4 o P I T T e ; E &7
T SRS 50 v : o v 4
s L] .Wuldmn%'. Lpem ..:Jmn.u. E

ey
BOISIAIPNG-2Y PUE J2TIIA-5]920€ ] a51E] 0JUI UOLSIAN(] JO dBA] FANEIU ] :F NqIXH




(AR €L0grelo

e SEY i rinas e PR3 00 = 4O L ejag . I G
(g Buroumse W DRIssbouptiug LEEEE oo

AT AT, KIS ot e s haviidod

R 250 LT S iR A

S8R TR LD TG AL A AL G T A A St
20 TNCALEO b 15w OF Sevwes TN 8L SRFARADL a3 ATAO Y o BTORe)
D UEE YT S SNON LTS AT SR L b e LAY WA B T L ERiRN S
S3T1YI40ud ALNNODI AIHONS bl [ S

N DI !
B T e LR ik L Gy 33w s
= o
ety ey

ST T
oy AL mIwe

e sy

Aprs romonnn

s nmaa e s Ty IR o et
Euaﬂxunﬂ.ﬁ“ﬂﬂr;.usuc%iﬂwwwaﬂigsnis: AN 1 0BBLARIE Z6TLY 200 Boupuny eml Aueos 3 BLEALIT FEBLY O0a I 8281/9/T 'cogty Boa
=1 . 1 A e | « o aalaiey 2un a_x:.ﬂ
a i 1 ’ i - & ¥4 AY 1 £ r 1 / 1 N oyg S 1
: o ! - N s /8 v 1zz4 ! ] = ke .Nn _ 1 \ A
= mr ¢S ! %3] \ 5 L NP 300 e AEE ./ 303 _u«m«.. k=Sl Iv 10, oy 300 hieu) TS «nJ_/r\ £E 307 4 39§ 30V 06 3T &
£ | ! , s F
z ' -
1 1 ' -
+ T uepaeg ¥ T UDHIRS IS UORTeS EC uonYes ¥ T wenoeg \\ IM
= 1 )
E :
fri
1 H 3

f.m
i...u........:....ﬁ oy s
s 0 e iy T 5
s b [ ~ k-
(S SR S A I L
E :\r_.f7 e mronne ! = \aﬂ al
e ¥ T B ks v ! a3 \ Shy
————— W YL + . = = ~.. - -2 m ==
B oz vanooes ' - BT vopoag 1 - voRaes. =
LT A 1§ GSAATIED S, CAL PTG El Ea = # oo
e L e 1 O = ) et b e i . o uenoog ha
200 A T AT i Ak w0 e Ao 6 AT S 3 [ - — e =i m =
SR ) B g dat
HRH T A TAKE, DirrARR LTRAICGDE ) . . VDV 0L EEE G H ™o pi /
e d 383002 \ - =
] e R O T . _ e e N = ——— ¥
FILLOPS sy St ety . . 5 N H m_“\ . N N H
e XTOTE ) TRV H SO—IS1—H MNav \ . Fr 180T ' C -
. 2 weines 5 - R ha
ARSI S o ey _ g : = 35
R e e ! o s =
ot iy e S e S e e S T L A BT ; - !
AU LS e LY S e 23 Vs Wac1e SO B3 TYSE S 43 P et o Zeaes oo dop 3
petaA b ok e R e e - L
I A AL - LO--1E 1+ Z&{ f— F
ETTC ARy e H e H —~— :
i - _ oup BSNIeN m -
ELTT — \
f pmy Y
L e T W) & II...I e 03, E9HOFS
Tt L ST s = ol == XA e
; : - VS OOHIWED pgneo SGESYR O #
s s L e AT NG I @ i s sy o SELE WAL SRR I Saanr  Sivime
M T ARG GO, £ R R R S I TS DT T Gl O Y S B o v
O A Y D LT KIS DT a i e RIS e S T AT A 7 Min iR e S %x»!:!ﬁ.ﬂ:i.&i ) 3 P i
ettt o, 4 ) e e R A e e P R s e T Ty LY £y Y & R E R
Al TTR VAR 0 317 / AT 0 Gy & MATRON 43 MNP 30 T BT BT - id - -

Er: Ex

UOISIAIpqNG-9Y pUE ._uw._uE-m_ou..um 93] 0)ul UOISIAL(] JO naE [eury U u_n:_mm

PrLL YRS

o1 'seiadolg Aunod Asio)g
Buuuelg

900-€10Z ~ Hoday yerg




Exhibit D: Property legal description

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Parcel I - Storey Co. Properties Large Parcel Map

A parcel of land situate in the Southeast % of Section 13, Northeast % of Section 24, Township
19 Notth, Range 20 Enst, M.D.B.&M., North ¥ of Section 19, North ¥ of Section 20, Township
19 North, Range 21 East, M.D.B.&M Storey County, Nevada, more particularly described as
follows:

Beginning at the southwest corner of parcel “A™ of that certain record of survey for DH Land Co,
recorded as docurnent 42094 dated June 16, 1978 in the Official Records of Storey County, said
cornet marked by an Aluminum cap stamped PLS6836 and the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

Thence along the north boundary of said section 20, § 87° 22' 47" W 806.46 feet to a seribed
stone marking the northwest corner of said section 20;

Thence along the north boundary of said section 19, 8 85° 54' 03" W 507.77 feet to a scribed
stone marking the southeast corner of section 18 Township 19 North, Range 21 East,
M.D.B.&M;

Thence along the north boundary of said section 19, N 89° 05' 11" W 2648.34 feet to a seribed
stone marking the Y corner cotrunon to said section {8 and 19;

Thence along the north boundary of said section 19, N 89° 36' 48" W 470.96 feet to a scribed
stone marking the notthwest corner of said 19;

Thence along the east boundary of said section 13, N 00° 34' 41" E 1123.40 fect;

Thence leaving said east boundary N 89° 00° 52" W 1330.35 feet;

Thenee S 00° 37 54" W 1312.10 feet to the south boundary of said section 13;

Thence S 00° 36'27" E 997.44 feet;

Thence East 5753.75 feet;

Thence North 1190.94 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING,

Containg 186.83 Acres, more or less,
The bagis of bearings for this deseription is NAD-83 state plane grid bearings,

Steven N. Bell, PLS 11420
Expires: 12/31/14

GA Engineering

280 Greg St. Suite 8

Reno, NV 89502

16 of 20




Planning

Staff Report — 2013-006
775.847.1144

Storey County Properties, LLC

Exhibit D (Continued)

LEGAL DESCRIPTTON
Parcel 2 - Storey Co. Properties Large Parcel Map

A parcel of land situate in the North % of Section 20, Township 19 North, Range 21 East,

M.D.B.&M Storey County, Nevada, more particularly described as follows:
Beginning at the southwest corner of parcel “A” of that certain record of survey for DH Land Co.

recorded as document 42094 dated June 16, 1978 in the Official Records of Storey County, said
corner marked by an Aluminum cap stamped PLS6836 and the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

Thence along the north boundary of said section 20, N 86° 48 52" E 1313.81 feet to the north %
corner of said section 20;

Thence along said north boundary S 88 55' 58" E 1285.62 to a rebar and cap stamped PLS 4787
marking the southeast cotner of said parcel “A™;

Thence leaving said north boundary South 1240.00 feet;
Thence West 2597.18 feet;

Thence North 1190.94 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING,

Contains 73.91 Acres, more or less.

The basis of bearings for this description is NAD-83 state plane grid bearings,

By 2

Steven N. Bell, PLS 11420

s ﬁaﬂﬂx‘ﬁ&-“.“ 3

Expires: 12/31/14 _:ﬁﬁf*wguﬁ‘{ﬁf\fq;}f“i‘um
GA Engineering G e, S
280 Greg St. Suite 3 P TL N
S "' : ' \;'« o~
Reno, NV 89502 T
%y . Yo
Wl 7

R a

9/3/2013 17 of 20




Staff Report — 2013-006
Storey County Properties, LLC

Exhibit E: Grant of Easement over north abutting parcel

8/3/2013

APNG4 - 121 -31

When Recoded return to:
Herman Menezes

100 Canyon Way
Sparks, NV 86434

Page 1

GRANT OF EASEMENT
(Public Utlity Easement and™-

Hermim Menezes, (“Grantor™), and Herman Menezes, (Gidntee), do hereby enter into this
Deed asof this oty day of mc;u\d,,, . 2613,

‘Witnesseth:

THE Grantor is the-owner of that certain real property more particulaily described
as follows: Parcel “A™ as shown on that certain record of survey for D H Land Co.
recorded as document no, 42094 on June 16, 1978, in the Official Records of Storey
County Nevada.

For pood and valuable consideration, the-party does by these presents grant a permanent
and perpetual easement for above and below. ground Public Utilities, and a private sccess
casement for in ingress and egress, as more specifically deseribed as follows:

A parcel of land in the southeast one quarter of Seciion 17, Township 19 North, Range 21
East, M.D.B.& M., more particularly described as follows:

A 25 foot wide easement the centerline of which.is more particularly described as
follows:

Cormmencing at the south1/4 corner of said
Section 1 7; thence 8.88°55°58"E 163.06 feet o
the True Point of Beginning;

Thence N 33°00°007E 448.68 feet;

Thence N 86°53°59" £ 356,61 feet;

Thence North 70 feet more or less o the south
boundary of an 80 foot wide public utility and
ingress and egress easement as sliown on that
certain parcel map for Hermian Menezes recorded e
as document 70883 on February 3, 1993, Official t\.‘\\ﬁ/o .;"!
records of Storey County, Nevada, M st

Planning
775.847.1144

18 of 20




9/3/2013

Staff Report — 2013-006
Storey County Properties, LLC

Page2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the party has caused these presents to be exeeuted the
day and year first above written,

STATE OF NEVADA }

COUNTY OF \usdhDteE )

On this 3 day of OOV 2013, persanally appeared before me, a
Notary Public in the County of »wooSinpe . .
Hermdn Menezes,
who acknowledged to me that they executed the above instrument. In witness whereof, 1
hereto set my hand and affix my seal the dare and year first written.

R o vy

Notary PiBlic O Expiration Date

RCZANNA BOWERS
Notary. Public - Stata of Revada
Apociiment Rocordad n Washoa Couty
8356- - Explras Janlty 30, 2014

Planning
775.847.1144

19 of 20




Staff Report - 2013-008 Plarning
Storey County Properties, LLC 775.847.1144

ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT o
K51 Y g 2080 Gi Sudte 8
for Hermen Menezes Rono, evads 0802
351/4, ﬁ;ﬁ_ﬂ:.’z.:Tigﬂ R21E MDBSM {775) 324.26563 Fox: 324-1560
" Storey. Gounty Neva E.-a Fallon: 775-423-8701

Exnibit @ Englneering ‘& Platining

80" P.UE. & Access Fosement per Doc. 70885

APN 4—121-29
\ APN 4-121-29

) jver
Truckee . Rix - L -
.._.--——-——."""_'—_."— ', 7 \\ Py
= R T
- EMsting. Bulldings , 000" >~ | _ -
\ Parcel 3
Porcel A _ s
| Map Doc: i 7 %7 /NepEISaE £,
. 45004 : %ﬂf’/‘ 356610 o8
. d | /4 Comer  HANIT000DE §E
APN 4—121-31 Section 177200 T 448.68' =1
1 T19 N R E){(g =
NGB ST e tee 5 -
— - — 1032.79 NB8E5'58"W 163.08"
i /
! L 25 P.LLE. & Private
gl 1 / Access Eosement
= |Cl$ per Lorge Parcel Mop
E
<
[;“5 & REFERENCES
2 Mop Doc. 42094 dated June 16,1978
5 Record of Survey for © H Land Co.
o | Kl
i Map Do¢,. 70885 cated February 5, 1993
2 Record of Survey — Paorcel Map for Manezes
g 0'_3‘
9
SCALE; 1" = 400’

9/3/2013 20 of 20




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 9/17/13 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting, A
follow-up letter noting those to be contiriued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: Sece attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Lesal review required: None

District Attorney
8. Revi :
' epartment Head Department Name: Community Development
ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[l Approved
] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e —
[ —

Agenda Item No. Il.D




Storey County Community DBevelopment

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775)847-0966 + Fax (775)847-0935 * buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office September 6, 2013
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the September 17, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS:
A. KATHERYN E. HORNADAY — Massage-Therapist / 100 North E Street (Silverland) vC
B. DATA GRAPHICS - Home Business / 2031 Saddleback Road (equipment storage only) VCH
C. COMSTOCK CIVIL WAR RE-ENACTING - Nonprofit / 1575 Plumas ~ Reno
D. CROAKERS PEST MANAGEMENT - 565 Sparks Blvd ~ Sparks (pest control)
E. PRAXAIR, INC. - 39 Old Ridgebury Road ~ Danbury, CT (lease equipment in TRI)
F. CHURCHILL MILLWRIGHT —Handyman / 665 Joel Way ~ Fallon (maintenance/handyman)
G. AMPLUS, LLC - General / 3033 Waltham Way (precious metals recovery) TRI
H. A B CUSTOM WOODWORKING - General / 200 Canyon Way (cabinetry) RD
1. NEVADA DISTRIBUTION SERVICES, LLC — General / 625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI

(public warehouse and distribution)
SCHWABE, INC. NATURE’S WAY)- General / 2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI
(distribution center for dietary supplements)

&

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




Correspondence




WASTE MANAGEMENT

September 3, 2013

Mr. Pat Whitten

Storey County Manager
PO Box 176

Virginia City NV 89440

Dear Pat:

We are approaching one of the milestones in our agreement with Storey County that
requires that we take action.

Article 3 provides that we give you notice before the 4-year anniversary effective date if
we wish to exercise our right to extend the agreement for an additional 5 years.

With the effective date being November 1, this letter will service as notice that we wish
to exercise our option to extend the Solid Waste Franchise Agreement between Storey
County, Nevada and Waste Management of Nevada, Inc. dba Storey County Sanitation.

With this extension, the new expiration date of the agreement will be October 30 2019.

I look forward to our continued association. If you have any questions please do not
hesitate to call me at 775-326-2322.

Sincerely,

G MARTINELLI
Waste Management

cC: Dale Barry
lohn L'Angelle




